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Major Accomplishments
RER

2023

_———

April

4H

>  The Group has always been committed to
charity and has been a strong supporter
of the large-scale charity cycling event
“Cycle for Millions 2023”. Mr. Raymond
Wong, the senior advisor of the Group, led
all staff of the Group to actively participate
in the event, helping to boost the strength
of charitable events. The cycling team
of Bright Smart set off from Tsing Sha
Highway, crossing the Stonecutters Bridge
and the Nam Wan Tunnel, which combined

sports with charity and contributed to the The cycling team of Bright Smart was ready to set off

charity with praCtical action. from Tsing Sha Highway to support the charity event.
AREF —EFLBE= B hSTFEARAZEE BABERBEGFE LERBLEPREK  REE

@%@ﬂﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁzma mn@ﬁﬁ&% ABIEBT) -

ﬁi%%@*ﬁﬁ$$%@—%%l%ﬂ@
 AEEEHIEES - BAEEH—F

wtﬁ¢@v ﬁ@m I A A B

B OBEPREE SENT REESE.

Group photo of the charity cycling event “Cycle for
M|II|ons 2023”
BHEEYEHHET2023|HESR -
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Major Accomplishments

RERL

April

4R

>

The Group has been adhering to the
concept of “Caring about Clients’ Needs,
Leading the Industry” by promoting
various offers from time to time to meet
the needs of extensive customers. Given
that the recent trend of U.S. stock market
outstripped other markets and investors
were increasingly keen on the investment in
U.S. stocks, the Group timely responded to
the market needs by substantially reducing
the margin interest rate for U.S. stocks to
a flat rate of 4.78%. By this act, we hoped
that our customers would be more flexible
in their use of funds to seize the business
opportunities of the investment in U.S.
stocks and the investment path of U.S.
stocks would not be impeded.
AEE-—BFRAEEME  EEKATHE
2 TRELNSEER RREBEARFPNT
Ko ERITHEREZBENREMTS - B
REEZEHERKREABBA  AEBEROD
ETHSHME  BERFRNERBREZ—
AE478% - B EEEXFRERTERE
eOEEREZRER EERREZK
WM -
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antages for Bright Smart clients trading U.S. stocks, including:

Holding a stock account, allowing them to buy U.S. stocks without
lopening additional account;

[Commission of only US$0.008 per share for trading of U.S. stocks
Lifetime waiver of platform charge;

Enjoying real-time quotes of U.S. stocks

Obtaining 24-hour eDDA service from Bright Smart, allowing them to
deposit money and trade stock products anytime




Major Accomplishments
RER

>  The “Win HK$1 million worth of gold for

guessing Hang Seng Index Closing Points

right (& F 1B 45 H1008 = &)” event held

by the Group has always been popular in

the public. The fifth round of battle was

very fierce. The winner was still entitled to

a consolation prize (% & #£) of HK$30,000

worth of gold, although he missed the

HK$1 million worth of gold. The Group held

a grand award ceremony to the winner by

presenting him with a pure gold shield.

AEBBERIEHEERIOEESEH—

MAZED  BABESERT5HE - 1S Mr. Chan Wai Ming (first from left), senior manager

REREASESESMB - BNFAI TS of Sales and Customers Department, Mr. Hui Yik

ETERI(LRE] NEBBITEEME  Bun (second from left), Executive Director and Chief

Hig REREXLTRMAEEE MBS Executive Officer and Mr. Chik Yiu Fai, Stanley (first from

HHE o right), Head of the Research Department of the Group
presented award to the winner.
REBHET S REEBEREREE(E-) ATEEHR
TRABRTENEE ()RR REERIELE (R
—)EETIEREE -

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (first from left) and the host of ceremony,
Mr. Choi Hong Nin, Michael (first from right) asked the
winner about his winning tips at the press conference.
HERWAEE(EIRREEHABRRFEEE IRD
ESLRRERENEREWR
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Major Accomplishments

RERL

June

67

The Group was invited by Chicago
Mercantile Exchange (the “CME”), the
famous American mercantile exchange
to co-organise a large-scale investment
seminar “2023 Global Investment Summit
({20233 X % & = & &))" where the
representatives from CME led a group
of renowned experts, including Mr. Hui
Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, Mr. Chik
Yiu Fai, Stanley, Head of the Research
Department, Mr. Tam Ka Hong, Pierce,
guest lecturer of CME, Mr. Jasper Lo,
guest lecturer of CME, and Dr. Jacinto
M L Tong, the vice chairman and chief
executive officer of Gale Well Group,
to provide insights into the investment
products, such as Hong Kong stocks
foreign exchange, futures, foreign real
estate market and ETF. This investment
seminar attracted more than 1,000
participants and the atmosphere was lively.
Participants have benefited greatly from
the seminar and actively asked questions
about the content shared by the guest
speakers.
AEBEZHZLEMRXGMEMITRS
FT(CME) (B W[ Z RO FTl K 58) - # A x ¥
(COBRHBEREG)RAIRERE - &
CEMRKXE-—RER  BEAEEH
TEERTHRERTEWELE HRIL
EEEELE CRMEFHEMEREL
G CCEAMEREMERCEERLES
EEFFERITBAZ G RETEHEER R
AEIAT R - SNE - BAE - SNEIHETE - ETF
EREER ~RABREBERSIAETA
WE2M BSRfaRi 2NnEHES
REZ VTHREESDEZNATERER -

The seminar was well received and attracted more than
1,000 participants and the meeting room was packed.
RREERERI R BFAREZL2M - RI5EEE
& o

A host of renowned economists supported the “2023
Global Investment Summit ({20233 K& E = IE&))
investment seminar and shared their investment secrets
in different areas.
—REBERRSNZF(R023RIKBERESHIIRE AR -
DETRGIBHIREWE -
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Major Accomplishments
RER

June

6H

> With fully reopening of the border between
Mainland China and Hong Kong, the
number of non-local residents visiting
the branches has more than doubled
compared with that before the reopening
of the border, and the demands for
account opening, enquiry and various
services have increased rapidly. Currently,
in addition to the fact that all of the Group’s
branches have been in operation on Saturday, the Group also operates four branches (Wanchai
Branch, Kowloon Headquarters, Mongkok Branch and Sheung Shui Branch) for seven days a
week to provide a warm and friendly service with high quality to its visiting customers.
hAEMEEBEAR  HNF/THELAMERRBAMNABBIGEULE  HRP  ERAREER
BERBZRLEA AEERRBRABEDITRERSELRARKIN - ETA4RH1TOELF
NEEBREE HAR EKDITNER —E287TREE  BRAINGELPEMB L INEEL
BR% °
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Major Accomplishments

RERL

10

July
7H

The Group was awarded as “Outstanding
Listed Companies (Securities and Futures)
(BE LT EERBESFRHH)) by
Oriental Daily News again in recognition
of the Group’s never-giving up spirit in
the face of adversity that in the past,
despite the stock market continued to be
uncertain and the Hong Kong economic
environment had been under the shadow,
the Group has been able to provide quality
professional services in global stock and

futures trading with diversified products
and aggressive business strategies, so Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief Executive

as to provide customers with a caring S}ffi(é;ar of the Group, accepted the award on behalf of
e Group.

and safe investment environment for teir e w1z 4 o 36 7 3 10 30 55 @ iy e 2 10 K S 1B 41
investment and create an all-win situation o
BREE o

of “customers, shareholders and the
Company”, which maintained its position as the leading Chinese-based securities company in the
highly competitive securities industry.
AEEBEER CRAB®R REMNBE IHEERBELFLPR)] - ARGAEEEFIRZFNES
RTE&Z%E’JFW ERERTHERBEIERBEELBERRAELRENERLT REZTTIENE
uu)SUEHXE’J SERE - REFRHERBERPEERISGNBEEXRY  RECERAR FEZE

REBOXLZENRERE GE 5P RENZERAGIN=ZRAE  ERFHUNZ S ERBTESR
#%E@%&Eﬁi‘@iﬁ

August

8H
>

BS Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures

(Doudou) mobile applications (APPs),

which were self-developed by the Group at

great expense, have been well received by

customers since their launch in 2019 and

have been recognised by the industry on

many occasions. Recently, the two mobile

APPs have been honored again. They

stood out from other securities firms and

once again won the “Outstanding One-

Stop Mobile Application for Securities and

Futures Trading” in the “Smart Financial

Management” category of the “Hong Kong

Digital Brand Awards 2023 (& /& % 1 %5(

5 @ k8 K #82028)” co-organised by The

Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry ~ Mr. Hui Yik Bun (middle), Executive Director and Chief
and a renowned radio station, demonstrating Executive Officer of the Group, accepted the award on
that “Baobao” and “Doudou” APPs are behalf of the Group.

excellent in smart trading functions and their A& B#HITEERITRAIEW (F) RN KREXEIE -

outstanding strength is obvious.

AEBREERTHENEBIE S (BB I RBAHE(TT) | FRERRENAPP) BTN
FHROURRIZPEN FLREEREE - MATHAPPRITEBREIKE  NABBEMED
ERELTASMO B BRI BISm B K R2023 M EEER I AR R - 1E RS 5 5 i R LA
i BEEBRGE - BABSEMEXFFREAREA AR YRIEEINES ] APPE
BEXINELNEURY BEEHN LS MmE
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Major Accomplishments
RER

September

9R

>  The Premier League, one of the most popular
football league in the world, surely created
a football frenzy in the city when it kicked
off. Coinciding with the listing of Manchester
United, a strong team of the Premier League
in the United States, the Group offered 2
shares of Manchester United (MANU.us) to all
new customers who met the simple criteria for
trading the U.S. stocks. The Premier League
is the world’s most eye-catching top football league. In addition to the existing shocking offers
of U.S. stocks trading commission of only US$0.008, a flat interest rate of 4.78%, and a margin
ratio of the U.S. stocks up to 90%, the Group also offered 2 shares of Manchester United listed
in the United States to its customers, hoping that customers could be more involved in the recent
frenzied atmosphere of the U.S. stock market and also further felt the excitement of the football
matches.
—MARX 2 HRECEE R E K] BT U E2MENER: @R B IRSMIEAEXE -
e AEEREAFEFEEXRR RAFFTEMEGRM IR E B2k SB(MANU.US) » B2 &
BEMTERERME  ASEREHRAERXMKRAN0.008% T FE—ABL78%LZAERIEZE
L ESZEOKMERERIN BREFPXHAESE ISR MEFPEERAZRAHBRANRR
Z 8 TRA] B AF RR IR B AR B

October

104

>  The winner of sixth round of “Win HK$3
million worth of pure gold for guessing
Hang Seng Index Closing Points right ({&
F1E 45 M300E T 2= £)” event held by
the Group was still entitled to a special
consolation prize (& & #%) of HK$30,000
worth of gold, although he missed the
HK$3 million worth of gold. To mark the
occasion, the Group specially arranged
a grand award ceremony, where Mr. Hui

Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief o ) . )

) ) Mr. Hui Yik Bun (left), Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, granted the g, tive Officer of the Group, granted the award to the
award and presented a pure gold shield to  winner.

the winner to congratulate him. AREBWITESHRITRAHTFEW LA (L) BETFE
AEERBEAEAMEPEEFROEF -

RESIEREREOEELESTE -

B NAEEERSETES RS - ARERE ASERRZHEANE RS  MRTE
SR TRERTEN LR RTEEE RETRALOE NBEEE -
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Major Accomplishments

RERL

12

November

1118

>

The Group has always been involved in
various charitable activities and actively
promoted various sports activities and
competitions in Hong Kong to carry
forward the concept of perseverance and
positiveness. During the year, the Group
continued to support the “Hong Kong
Squash Championships 2023” and became
a Gold Sponsor again. Nearly 90 top players
from all over the world gathered in Hong
Kong to compete in this platinum-level event,
which is classified as a Professional Squash
Association World Tour event. The “Hong
Kong Squash Championships 2023” was an
“M” brand-recognised event, which helped
to enhance Hong Kong’s image as Asia’s
sports events capital.

AEE-—MABL A REBESHE S SE
BEEFEPREE  BHRREMNER -
SERGEEEBRNXFIEBERBEE
2023) BEK A ERE - HI0M RA T
REWHTBRRFEERT 2MEER
IR EERGe HAKEEND SR
REE [ HBENRBEFEE2023] 2 —H M/
mERAEE - MBIRABABERTINE
EREZHOER -

In recent years, network transactions have
become more frequent and the number
of network risks and crimes has been on
the rise. In order to raise the awareness
of our staff on cyber security, the Group
and the Cyber Security and Technology
Crime Bureau jointly organised a training
seminar on “Technology Application and
Cyber Security” and invited Mr. Lester Ip
Cheuk Yu (% £ &), the Bureau’s Chief
Inspector, as the speaker to share the
information on common cyber fraud crimes
and practices, the implications of the
recent leakage of information from public
sectors on commercial organisations as
well as the sharing of individual fraud
cases. The seminar was very beneficial to
the staff of the Group and will be of great
help in enhancing network security for our
customers in the future.

MERERXZEHHmBE
MR MR RERTR
7 ROREHRE
SEETERR% -

Y/

MR E e K IFERTEEN - BIRIT R
AEERBERE2LMERRBASHBE SR RN RERARBERL
HENMBERESBELEIRE  BRAENZF
BEFRRHAREBARUR -
ERRABEFPEABEZZNHMEL  EEANT

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, attended the opening ceremony
of the “Hong Kong Squash Championships 2023” in
support of Hong Kong athletes’ contribution to the
squash community.

AEBATEERTRARTENEERKRLEIRR
BRIk EE2023] 2 HABE  XHEBEHERERN

Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Group (first from
right), presented a Certificate of Appreciation to Mr.
Lester Ip Cheuk Yu (¥ &%), Chief Inspector of the
Cyber Security and Technology Crime Bureau.
AEBEFFEEXIMEEE IBEERAIRTEELZER
BMEERFAEHEERESELE -

BETHPERZ2MRM
2IBIIEE LBFETH
FRNERFERETRT
EEM c RABESK

o

fot ﬂﬂ
&

=
bR (B B RFBR R 1 5

Ny

S
Ik
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Major Accomplishments

KERL

November

118

>

The Group has launched a “Referral Offer”,
through which our customers can receive a
bonus of up to HK$6,888 for referring their
friends to open accounts. A customer logs
in his account, collects his referral code,
and shares the collected referral code to
his friend, and when his friend opens an
account, he just needs to input the referral
code to receive the offer. For every friend
a customer refers to open an account, the
customer will receive HK$100 (per person),
the more he refers, the more he will be
rewarded. Upon completion of account
opening, his friend will also receive
account opening bonus of HK$100 and up
to HK$4,000.

AEBEHLEBARE] BREBMARA
BH$531%6888T c RFREFEAKRPIL
REREESN UTHEERNEBRB =4
AR ZHRAFPHRF@H AHEBRE - A
AENEE - BHE—UMARFARP  BF
AIERBI00TT (ABMFE) HERS &
ER% c EMRTHAFRF®E - AT EF100
TC RmiE4000THAFRE -

BARFETHMEEERIF | T =/ _MFFH
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Major Accomplishments

RERL

14

December

124

>

The Group once again co-organised
the “Bright Smart Securities x UBS AG
Warrants & callable bull and bear contract
(CBBC) Competition” with UBS AG, an
internationally renowned investment bank,
which attracted nearly 10,000 CBBC
and Warrants investment master-hands
to participate. At the award presentation
ceremony, Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, and Ms. Cheuk So Wah (2%
%), Head of Listed Derivatives Sales, UBS
Asia, presented awards to the winners, with
prizes worth up to HK$40,000.

AEEBEREBFZEZRERITIREEER
A BP(RA B A REETHRFRF
BB KRS E—BRFRBERIRESTF
S - ERERARB L KEERTEER
THRBHETEWEERKBEMN EWITE
EnHENRTESRENERETRER
O RnBERESBIET -

Ms. Cheuk So Wah (£ % #), Head of Listed Derivatives
Sales, UBS Asia (first from right) and Mr. Hui Yik Bun,
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group (first from left) presented the prizes to the
winners of the first, second and third prizes.

HREMN EMTEERHEEREEEEENMEAGE IR
REERTEERTRAHTENEAE(EH)BEETE
DE=RFEE -

Group photo of the two award presenters and all the
winners.

MUBEREZEEMEFSRESR -
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Major Accomplishments
RER

December
124
> The Group has always been committed to
public welfare and the needs of different
groups in the community. During the year,
the Group continued to support the “In the
Name of Love” HOHCS Charity Walk 2023
and became the Diamond Sponsor once
again. On the day of the event, apart from
the 3.5-kilometre charity walk and a variety
of shows and games, a parent-child race
and a children’s race were organised for
participants to experience the joy of fun i Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief Executive
activities and to promote family cohesion,  Officer of the Group, led the staff to participate in the
while a charity walk fgr wheelchair-bound %;‘ggﬁg% g%r%ef;gg%gg%%%aixéﬁ—%élﬁ
people was also organised to promote the B AEE 58817 o
integration of both healthy and disabled
people. It was a very enjoyable day for the
participants, who were able to network with
each other and work together to create a
positive impact on the community.
AEE-—RABRLATmREREETRTED
FRE SFURBRNIHINEZZIBER
H172023 - BEKRBLEYRE - NEDE
H:BRT3ABEABZIITREERE R
S REMABRFERREE  E2NERE
REBREBTROMY - TMEERERE T
FHNEIRBWREALTEELITRE - BEBE
REHEBEBES  ZRZERFIESHR - 2
MEFFEILES - RURXIREIHE - #F
HMOELEREOTE -
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Major Accomplishments
RER

2024

—E-UF

16

January

1A

>

The Group has received numerous awards from the Exchange and other prestigious
organisations over the past 30 years since it started its business in Hong Kong, and has been
well received by investors and recognised by the industry. The Group was the only broker in Hong
Kong to be awarded with three “Top Honours”, including “Influential Broker”, “Innovative Broker”
and “Broker Program Key Partner” at the 2023 annual awards ceremony organised by CME
Group, proving that Bright Smart Securities has not only been recognised by the industry in Hong
Kong, but has also grown beyond Hong Kong to become an international player.
REEEBTBRAFLI0OFUAR BEIFAXEMMEEBRERE REREEFORERSE
CREFTRIT2023F M BHEE AEEERRNERARBHERE "I KRKFEAE] 85 (KA
FENKEHE]  [REFSLEE] M EARSERLE]  REARE—NSEEELKRS BUAZH
[MBABHFIREBTBEERASTEIN SREGHES HEER-
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Major Accomplishments

KERL

BAERSEHEEERLR | —F

February

2R

>

Over the years, the Group has been
committed to the community and public
welfare, and has supported the fund-
raising activities organised by the
charitable organisation, “Joyful (Mental
Health) Foundation”, for 15 years. During
the year, the Group sponsored the “Joyful
Charity Walk 2024” as the Diamond
Sponsor in the hope of arousing more
people’s concerns for mental health and
raising the community’s awareness of and
attaching importance to mental problems
through this event. The Group firmly
believes in the importance of collaboration
and inclusion, and is committed to
spreading the power of love among more
people, giving back to the community
and demonstrating our commitment and
contribution to community development.
FEBESFR-—BLELE  BORH X
RHEERBIOBTHIBRNEREHER
E5F  SEFEUNEREN(OBER BE
BYBRERELTENEY FERBILKX
EE)  MEEZAHLERENEL IS
HEHBEHHENRBENER - KEER
EEERRNEEYR TREZHASEE
WAHE BOEErEg  REHTEZERSN
AEEMER ©

=/ ZNFFR

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group (fourth from left), led a group of
employees to participate in the charity run, contributing
both funding and efforts to the event.
REENTESRITBAHFEN EE(EHERE-—R
BEIZ2MESH  REHEBEX LT -

On behalf of Bright Smart Securities, the Diamond
Sponsor, Mr. Hui Yik Bun (fifth from left, front row) took
a group photo and officiated the 10km Start Ceremony
with Ms. Victoria K.M. LAM (#K 32 BH) (sixth from left, front
row), Founder and Trustor of the Joyful (Mental Health)
Foundation; Dr. Alice Y.M. WONG (& % 5£) (second from
right, front row), Chairperson of the Joyful (Mental Health)
Foundation; Mr. Chris Sun (2 £ &) (fourth from right,
front row), JP, Secretary for Labour and Welfare; Ms.
Strawberry Yeung Yuk Mui (%5 E1&) (first from right, front
row) and Mr. Timothy Cheng Tse Sing (&8 F &) (first from
right, back row), Ambassadors of the Year; and other
guests and runners.
FFRENAEGIFLII)RRBLEYERTEZS B
BITB RS E S A1 A A T AMER/NAFIHLZS)
LDETHEEE S TR EAEFL(AIEEED) 8T R
BRRRAEEFEHEEIP (RIFEAEM) - BLOAFESEH/N
HETHAE—)  BFHEEBHEE ) BREENZES
REBREFIORBERIZELSE o
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Major Accomplishments

RERL

18

February

2R

>

Over the years, investors have always
wanted to be able to grasp first-hand
market information, and real-time quotes
are an indispensable investment partner in
their investment journey. We have spared
no expense and obtained approval from
the HKEX to unconditionally activate real-
time streaming quotes (Lv1) for more
than 560,000 existing accounts. Clients
who have downloaded the BS Securities
(Baobao) App, purely upon updating to the
latest version of the trading program, will
be able to receive free real-time streaming
quotes (Lv1) of Hong Kong stocks, bid/ask
streaming quotes and bid/ask volume will
jump in real-time.

SER REE-—NFLERZETHE—F
B EFERBREEERER EFETA
FRRERE AEEERZHERTEK
N BRI A - R A #560,0001E 5
A E\EERBNRETREL: BT
BABH(BEB)APPHIRP - REBEE M &
RANZZER - Er AR EESERRD
RERREL)  BEA/BHERRERE
A/ BHOHEEH SRS -

The Group has been approved by the HKEX to provide
free real-time streaming quotes (Lv1) for Hong Kong
stocks to all of our customers.
REERBRASALERMETEREE X BRANFEER
B (L) RTS ©
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Major Accomplishments

KERL

March

3A

>

The Group has been committed to
providing a wider range of investors with
diversified products traded and thoughtful
professional services, and the Group was
awarded the “Top Retail Broker” at the
latest HKEX Awards annual presentation
ceremony by HKEX (0388). The award is
the highest honour at the ceremony, as
it is given only to those with the highest
trading volume and turnover among
HKEX ’s products. We are also the only
Hong Kong securities firm to receive this
award, demonstrating that Bright Smart
Securities, which has been rooted in Hong
Kong for over 30 years, has an unrivalled
position in the industry.

AEEB-—BEBRNRERNRKREERHES T
EHRXGEmMmMBOHNEERYE  £578
R ZF(0388) R FEM [ EERF AL
MBEHR F AEEXEKETELLR
Bl REAERRAR FHKSRERXN

Brian Roberts (first from right), Co-Head of Securities
Product Development and Head of Exchange Traded
Products, HKEX, presented the 'Top Retail Broker’
award to Mr. Hui Yik Bun (first from left), Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
BRABFERERBEITERRISIMEEEREE
Brian Roberts (F—) B [REZELLHIARTARE
BHTESRITRAARFEWEE(E—) -

B AAREXZANERTRZ2ENSBERZESNESERE  TREE-—NBEESFHES
tEIREE - AT R BRI MBS BHEXRMABEAR -

The Group is committed to nurturing elites
in the financial sector, particularly attaching
importance to the talent pool, and is
actively recruiting new talents. The Group
held a large-scale recruitment at our head
office in Hong Kong for two consecutive
days to hire new staff for various
departments, including the Customer
Services Department, IT Department,
Marketing Department and Compliance
Department. The Group has always
been treating our staff well. Since our
establishment, the Group has been offering
competitive remuneration packages and
diversified benefits in the market, as well
as providing good career development and
promotion opportunities for our staff, in

Bright Smart’s Recruitment Day was well received by a
large number of applicants.

BT AEAREERETE RERR -

order to attract elites from different sectors and expand its talent pool. The two-day Recruitment
Day was well received, with over 100 applicants wishing to join the Bright Smart family.

AEERNRBERARBE  LEERASE  BERBBENL - AEE - EMRETEENSE
BRETREBER ATRAMBAERIATF  BETFRBHN  EAREK  mHHEREBEERD
EZZEEEMN - AKE—MEFEL AEESEMS I —REESAEZFINOHFNEFER
STcEN  WREIRHRINBSERREAKE  URATERRINBEAL - BXA
TE - REMANBEERETHER R BEREAERIAR  FEMARS KRE °
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Branch Network

AT A

HONG KONG & &

Hong Kong Headquarters
BERBRER

Central Branch
R AT
Wanchai Branch

BT 5T
KOWLOON J1#
Kowloon Headquarters

NELPREE
Mongkok Branch

B B0 1T

Kwun Tong Branch
BEDT

Sham Shui Po Branch
IR 31T

10/F & 23/F (Sales & Customer Services Department),

Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central
FREGETNFRKLEERNEI0E2ERBELE
(BEERE PR #0)

Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 58-60 Queen’s Road Central
FIRE G REFE8-60E IR A A EEE

Shop 1, G/F, Gold Swan Commercial Building,

438-444 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai

BT SR FFIB438-444% £ 1578 ¥ KN E L 155 48

Shop G-01 on G/F, and Whole of First Floor of Honour House,
375-381 Nathan Road
NERBEI75-3815 2 B A B FTGO1SR M RIERE

1/F, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 39-41 Argyle Street, Mongkok
HEATEEZH0-NRSIUBERNEE

Shops 4-6, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road, Kwun Tong
BREZESRELTT OB TIE65

G/F, 39 Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po

RS SN0 FH T

NEW TERRITORIES  &#

Tsuen Wan Branch
REHT

Tai Po Branch
REHTT

Sheung Shui Branch
EXkD1T

Tuen Mun Branch

B 1T

G/F, Kwong Fat Building, 262 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
SE DB B EERNEM T

G/F, 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po

R EREI41-145F T

G/F, 99 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui
EKFTE IR T

Shop 23, G/F, Honley Court, 94-110 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road,

Tuen Mun
P EE B 94-110 SR R LM T 23 5748

BRIGHT SMART MOBILE TEACHING CENTRE B A #8285 &H
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(852) 2537 1371

(852) 3961 6688

(852) 3127 0888

(852) 3604 1888

(852) 3188 0928

(852) 3768 0888

(852) 3666 5688

(852) 3929 2798

(852) 3763 3388

(852) 3768 7188

(852) 3193 1688

(852) 6282 6635
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Awards
4218

1. Metro Broadcast/The Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry — Hong 6. CME Group — Broker Program Key Partner 2023
Kong Digital Brand Awards 2023 7. CME Group — Innovative Broker 2023
2. Oriental Daily News — Outstanding Listed Companies (Securities and 8. Joyful Charity Walk 2024 (Diamond Sponsor)
Futures) 9.  The Community Chest BEA Charity Golf Day 2023
3. CME Group — Excellent Partner Award 2023 10. The Hong Kong Council of Social Service — 10 Years Plus Caring Company
4. HKEX “Top Retail Broker” Logo

5.  CME Group — Influential Broker 2023
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Awards
4218

GhiEs) / BEEHEE — T84 BB KA %2023
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Year ended 31 March
HZ=A=t-ALEE

Increment/
2024 2023  (Decrement)
#m,/
BRI mE —T-=F OB 4)
$°000 $'000 %
Tr T
1 ) A
Revenue A 846,218 881,733 (4.0%)
Other income Hopth U 5 409,975 326,157 25.7%
Profit from operations g g 864,903 806,397 7.3%
Profit before taxation i Nz0p 605,048 692,195 (12.6%)
Profit for the year F A 7 558,842 620,595 (10.0%)
Total comprehensive income attributable to BERREMEAREEE
equity shareholders 558,509 620,880 (10.0%)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREKRAHNGEMW) 32.93 36.56 (9.9%)
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) BREBRF GEWN) 32.93 36.56 (9.9%)
Special dividend per share declared and paid ~ 5t1,697,296,308 % f% 17 & /& M
on 1,697,296,308 shares (HK cents) Sz SRR BB - 70.00 (100.0%)
Final dividend per share proposed after the REBERREERRSE
end of the reporting period (HK cents) % R HA A 2 OB Al
(31 March 2024: 1,697,296,308 shares, (ZZZmFE=ZA=+—H:
31 March 2023: 1,697,296,308 shares) 1,697,296,308% -
—E-_=F=Zf=1+—8:
1,697,296,308/% ) 33.00 50.00 (34.0%)
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The three-year “COVID-19 Pandemic Response Actions” in
Hong Kong finally came to an end last year. The citizens in
Hong Kong finally could offload masks and return to normal.
After the three-year anti-pandemic period, the global passenger
and freight traffic can finally operate as usual. Mainland China,
which has always been an important backbone of Hong Kong
economy, has finally resumed its normal business activities
with the full resumption of travel between Mainland China and
Hong Kong. According to Hong Kong Immigration Department,
the number of inbound and outbound travelers of Hong Kong
reached 212 million in 2023, representing an increase of 39
times compared to last year. The statistics also showed that the
number of visitor arrivals in Hong Kong was approximately 34
million in 2023, of which approximately 26.76 million were from
Mainland China. The total number of inbound and outbound
travelers in 2023 has recovered to 70% of the level in 2019.
The data is indeed encouraging, and judging from it alone,
Hong Kong’s economy will take off in full swing and seemingly
recovery is just around the corner.

BARFETHMEEERIF | T =/ _MFFH

EEER-ENHEBREBMETHIEEFR
REEER  2FTRERATUBOSEHT -
EEERLEE 2HNBEREETR £=
FRAETEE  BRANNEEE —BHE2K
EREEBRERENTEANM  EERKNEEE
HEEPEMMEAEMAE  TENAURELE
B RBEEBAREERS —E-=FFEL
ABE AR E212(8  REF LEFABE - it E
BN —TE-ZFEFBAEANXRLDS4008 0 £
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

However, the reality is contrary to our expectations. Hong Kong
is moving along the path to normalcy, it is never as smooth
as expected, and can be full of difficulties. In order to control
the rapidly rising inflation, the United States has been raising
interest rates sharply over the past year, which seems to have
brought the inflation under control on the surface, but has
actually triggered global currency depreciation, supply chain
disruption, soaring commodity prices and mounting inflation,
and dragging the global economy into a critical condition.
Given the uncertainty of the global economic outlook, Hong
Kong is not immune. The interest rate continued to be high,
which brought serious disasters to Hong Kong’s economy and
the domino effect has emerged. Firstly, Hong Kong property
market has continued to decline due to the high interest rate
environment and the weakening investment sentiment, and
the property prices have fallen to seven-year low; the home
buyers were facing more pressure in such high interest rate
environment. While theoretically the interest rate hikes are
conducive to increasing bank interest income and delivering
attractive returns on time deposits for individuals or companies
in a high interest rate environment, however, which is based
on the apparent stability brought by loan demand. As for Hong
Kong, the high interest rate environment has caused the weak
consumer market, the sluggish stock market and the high risk
of the property market. Enterprises had to slow down their
investment pace considering the speed of cash collection and
that the return on investment failing to meet their expectations,
and consumers reduced consumption due to lack of confidence,
which directly affected the demand for loans. As for banks, it
traded off the benefits of rising interest rates, and what was
more worried was the sharp rise in the number of negative
asset cases caused by the property market crash, resulted
in the declining quality of mortgage loans; and the bad debts
rose as a result of the increasing number of mortgage payment
defaults. Consequently, the calm surface of the banks cannot
diminish their unlimited underlying worries. Although the U.S.
has repeatedly indicated the possibility of interest rate reduction
this year, as there are many uncertainties in respect of its own
economic problems, the sensitive subject of interest rate cuts
at this stage is still all talk and no action. Therefore, in the
foreseeable future, the high interest rate environment will remain,
coupled with the increasing international geopolitical risks and
thereby the rising costs of the global manufacturing industry, it
is believed that the risks of wealth decline, asset impairment and
economic recession faced by individuals and enterprises are
inevitable in the short term. We have to review financial risks as
soon as possible, prudently manage finances, keep expenditure
within the limits of revenues to ensure sufficient cash flow,
and manage to respond to problems such as population
aging and labor shortage through the application of innovative
technologies, striving to increase efficiency and reduce costs
as much as possible, so that we are well equipped to explore
new growth points and respond to challenges and opportunities
under the development of the new economy.

BEFNETEHRE FEARLERZE
SR TMUTEEIARFIE - M B AT EEF RRm ik KB
REH &R LR BIRERE  RBE—F T
AEMET  REALSBRMEEES - B
HECHE2REERE HERXITE -
BAmERATRBERRME - < 2HEED
RARBNMWAESHME - ERIREEARD
AABAT  BEXNSHBEAS EEAEHE
SET ESHEELBETREENNE B
HBEBAE  ERXZASERELRERSE
BEST NEBMHERT BETCSKE
TtFEEL MERBEBALC ESRRRTE
NEE HAE R LB AN RITHF S
WA RLEAXRBNERFRESBRER
T BAUBNE®R  EEERERERTRT
RREWNRE - UEERD S ERFETERE
HEMERS B AR Bhef %=
BEIE €[ &R E N IRE EHARR RN
BRELK HEEELIARTHADEE &
R BEERF R HRITMESEBETHEE
TR E FSABELHRBTAKSIEEE
EERZ  RBEREXRTY®  EaE g
%o BIRET R0 RITERHERRE
By AEANFEERER BEXEZRE
HESFEAREMNARE  EAREBEEHHNE
BHEREFERZIEEN  BRERERE
EHRFGEE - DRAHERE At - £r] ALK
A BERRIDEFHE I LBEE MG B
[ B 7 38 R - B ERELE XA F A UL AR A
EXR - FAABREA  EXEHHFETE  BE
B AR OE R H R B A8 {5 R A D = 1 B R
2 BRERGEYBAR FEEM EAR
b REESRE AR WREEBERAF
B BEADZL SEPHNTEEHRE RE
MEEBEEAR T BIGMHEREHERS  EYH
MEAERTOEEKS -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

What remains a cause for concern is that the long-lasting
Sino-US issues have shown no signs of improvement, but
mutual sanctions continued to deteriorate and emerged one
after another. Since the incumbent U.S. President took office,
he has been repeatedly provoking China for various excuses.
During his term of office, it can be said that there were many
instances of trivial matters being turned into major issues
and fabrications being made out of nothing. In addition to a
series of unilateral international sanctions imposed previously
by the U.S. federal government authorities on the Chinese
Government, enterprises, institutions and individuals, as well as
diplomatic sanctions, economic sanctions and military sanctions
of different degrees, the U.S. federal government authorities
stepped up their sanctions measures last year. In terms of
economic sanctions, the U.S. federal government authorities
have been continuously increasing the degree of sanctions. As
early as starting from 2020, U.S. nationals have been prohibited
from investing in shares of Chinese companies associated with
the People’s Liberation Army, involving 29 Hong Kong stocks,
including China Mobile (941), China Unicom (762) and China
Telecom (728). Last year, the actions escalated. The Federa
Retirement Thrift Investment Board (FRTIB), which has an asset
size of US$770.5 billion and manages nearly 7 million U.S.
federal government employee pension accounts, announced
last year that its investment fund “IFund”, which invests in
international stocks, has changed to track a benchmark index
that excludes Mainland China and Hong Kong stocks, in effect
ceasing to invest in the Mainland and Hong Kong markets.
In addition to the escalating economic sanctions, Joe Biden,
the President of the U.S., has further expanded the scope of
sanctions to address the “most serious national security risk”
by signing an executive order to restrict U.S. companies from
investing in semiconductors, quantum computing and artificial
intelligence (Al) in China, including Hong Kong and Macau.
Experts said that the new ban was introduced at the time of the
recovery of China’s economy, it was apparently that the United
States caused China’s high-tech industry into a situation of
“cutting off capital flow” in an all-round way, even Hong Kong
and Macau cannot become the fund-raising gaps, which has
affected the continuous investment of private equity in China’s Al
industry, as well as the development of science and technology
enterprises such as “SenseTime”, which has been sanctioned by
the United States and turned to list in Hong Kong while delisting
from the United States, and even weakened the status of Hong
Kong’s financial center and semiconductor trade center. The
Federal House even ordered ByteDance to be separated from
its short-video platform TikTok (Douyin’s overseas version),
otherwise TikTok will be banned in the United States. This may
cause unemployment of approximately 8,000 U.S. workers.
However, Joe Biden will definitely not care about this but just
take suppressing the development of China’s technology as an
imperative task.

BARFETHMEEERIF | T =/ _MFFH
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

As both China and the U.S. are in constant conflict, Hong Kong
unavoidably becomes the most stricken area. Under the mutual
sanctions imposed by China and the U.S., foreign investors who
had been fond of investing in Hong Kong stocks certainly chose
to give up the proportion of investment in the Hong Kong and
the PRC stock markets due to different levels of sanctions and
the fear that they may be caught in a crossfire one day, which is
a common thing. As a result, the Hong Kong securities market
faced unprecedented difficulties during the Year. The Hang Seng
Index, in the absence of capital inflow, dipped below 15,000
points to as low as 14,794 points, and even hit a 14-month low,
which was even worse than the most severe situation in the
pandemic and the continued weakness of the Hong Kong stock
market had led to the continuous shrinkage of turnover. Except
for the fact that the investment atmosphere in Hong Kong was
not at all conducive and turnover has not improved, the Hang
Seng Index even recorded sluggish data in the previous year.
Apart from the fact that the United States and Japan markets
have already exceeded far ahead in terms of the trend, even the
Taiwan stock market, which has all along been regarded as a
non-dominant market, has also overtaken the Hang Seng Index
in terms of the number of points, and the Hong Kong market,
which has all along been ranked in the top three in the world in
terms of IPOs, was even squeezed out of the top five last year
and could only be placed in the sixth place, unfortunately being
surpassed by India, which is not an encouraging situation at all.

Hong Kong stocks has been in dire straits because, in addition
to the United States repeatedly imposing unjustified and
unnecessary sanctions on China, the foreign investments in the
Hong Kong stocks market and Mainland China stocks market
have dropped drastically and the investment quota for Hong
Kong stocks has fallen to a record low level that has never been
seen before; with the continued weakness of the Renminbi
exchange rate amidst the prolonged high interest rate in the
United States, Hong Kong stocks, which have all along been
relying on the southbound capital from the Mainland China to
further strengthen it, are obviously deprived of an important
source of support; the chain of problems fermenting in the
domestic property market in the Mainland China has led to a
lot of uncertainties about the economic growth rate of various
provinces and municipalities. The securities industry in Hong
Kong is facing unprecedented difficulties in its operation under
the adverse internal and external circumstances. According
to the information provided by the Hong Kong Exchange and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”), more than 40 securities firms have
closed down between January 2023 and the end of March 2024,
and it is believed that the problem of closure of securities firms
will continue in view of the uncertain outlook.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

According to the statistics of the HKEX, the total turnover of
the HKEX for the year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year”) was
approximately HK$23,781.7 billion, representing a decrease
of approximately 19.6% as compared to that of approximately
HK$29,586.1 billion for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the
“Prior Year”). However, the results of Bright Smart Securities
& Commodities Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) maintained good
profitability in adverse market conditions, with a consolidated
net profit after tax of approximately HK$558.8 million for the
Year, representing a decrease of 10.0% over the Prior Year, and
the total number of client accounts reaching 562,555.

Thankfully, over the years, the Group has always believed that
opportunities arise from adversity, and adhered to the business
philosophy of “taking what others do not want”. As a leader
of the securities industry, the Group has been proactive and
flexible be the market bull or bear, thus it is rewarded in spite of
adversity. Net profit for the Year amounted to HK$558.8 million.
| am pleased to present the results of the Group for the Year to
the shareholders. The Group recorded a total revenue for the
Year of HK$846.2 million (2023: HK$881.7 million), representing
a decrease of 4.0% as compared to that for the Prior Year.
Among which, brokerage commission income fell by 25.4% year
on year to HK$446.2 million (2023: HK$598.3 million) under the
shrinking turnover of the market. Interest income from margin
financing for the Year amounted to HK$392.0 million (2023:
HK$276.9 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
41.6%.

BARFETHMEEERIF | T =/ _MFFH
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Profit for the Year decreased by 10.0% to HK$558.8 million
(2023: HK$620.6 million) as compared with the Prior Year. Basic
earnings per share were 32.93 HK cents (2023: 36.56 HK cents),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.9%. To reward all
shareholders of the Company for their continued support over
the years, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company recommended the payment of a final dividend of
33.00 HK cents per share. The Board believes that the payment
of the final dividend will not have any adverse effect on the
underlying assets, business, operations, financial position or
cash flows of the Group. As at 31 March 2024, the total number
of the Group’s client accounts reached 562,555, representing
an increase of 2.7% over that of 547,742 as at 31 March 2023.
Client assets (including cash and stocks) decreased by 14.2%
year on year to approximately HK$50.2 billion (31 March
2023: approximately HK$58.5 billion). Achieving good results
despite the adverse market conditions, we are grateful for the
long-term support of our clients and the concerted efforts of our
colleagues in overcoming adversity over the years.

In addition to the solid implementation of the active, flexible
and “client-oriented” business philosophy, the satisfactory
performance of the Group was attributed to the following
advantages:

1. Two proprietary trading apps, BS Securities (Baobao) and
BS Futures (Doudou), have been well received by investors
since their eye-catching launch.
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2. Staying abreast of market trend, the Group has adopted
some market-oriented strategies and put forth some offers
such as:

i. Rewards of 20 shares of TraHK (2800.hk) and 10
shares of HSBC (0005.hk) for opening new accounts;

ii. Rewards of up to 10 shares of Tencent (0700.hk) for
rollover, with full refund of rollover fee up to HK$0.2
million;

ii.  Margin ratio up to 95%;

iv.  1-month genuine zero commission for trading of
Hong Kong stocks/A shares, and lifetime waiver of
platform charge;

V. Provide free real-time streaming quotes (LV1) for
Hong Kong stocks;

vi. ~ Commission of only US$0.008 per share for trading
of U.S. stocks, waiver of platform charge, and interest
rates for margin financing as low as 4.78%;

vii. Rewards of US$800 and lifetime waiver of platform
charge for trading of U.S. futures/Nikkei futures/
foreign exchange futures/gold and various global
futures;

viii. Commission for trading of Hong Kong futures and
options as low as HK$2.88 and HK$5, respectively;

ix. Real-time streaming quotes and real-time chart
analysis for global futures products; etc.

The Group adhered to its proactive business model and
all trading systems have already connected to the world’s
major financial markets, allowing clients to trade anytime and
anywhere through the “Baobao” and “Doudou” APPs and all
online trading channels. Moreover, the Group has been regularly
optimising and perfecting the functions and the speed to place
an order of all online trading channels. The Group has been
continuously enhancing and strengthening the promotion of the
24-hour Electronic Direct Debit Authorisation (“eDDA”) Service
approved by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. This service
allows clients to deposit money and trade financial products
anytime and anywhere regardless of time differences and Hong
Kong holidays after going through the one-off simple registration
procedure with any bank account.
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The Group perpetuated the expansion of its offline network by
operating a total of 13 outlets including Bright Smart Mobile
Teaching Centre, the first of its kind in Hong Kong, and some
branches now open seven days a week, in a bid to provide
clients with considerate services. To further refine this branch
network to serve customers closely, the Group will consider
any potential branch site with low rent, prime location and high
pedestrian flow.

While the Group is highly recognised by the society for its
services, it has always been upholding the principle of “giving
back to where one takes from” and actively undertaking social
responsibility. Over the years, the Group has been actively
involved in various charitable activities with a keen interest in
the community. The Group is passionate about caring for the
society. Over the years, the Group has adhered to the concept
of “from the society, for the society”, and contributed money
and efforts to help the groups in need. Over the past few years,
Yip Mow Lum, the Chairman, has donated more than HK$10
million to Hong Kong Baptist University to nurture the future
pillars of society. At a time when Hong Kong was suffering from
the ravages of the COVID-19 pandemic, a total of HK$30 million
has been donated to the Hospital Authority of Hong Kong in
the name of the Yip Mow Lum Charity Fund to express our
gratitude to all the medical workers for their fearlessness and
perseverance in the fight against the pandemic, and a cheque
was presented to Mr. Henry Fan Hung-ling, chairman of the
Hospital Authority. The Yip Mow Lum Charity Fund also made a
donation to the Haven of Hope Christian Service, to support the
“HOPES RUNNER” and “In the Name of Love” HOHCS Charity
Walk as a diamond sponsor. We also sponsored the “Cycle
for Millions” organised by Pok Oi Hospital and title sponsored
by Shanghai Commercial Bank, with the active participation
of our colleagues. The Group has also been supporting the
fundraising activities organised by the charity organisation
Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation for 15 years. During this
year, the Group sponsored the “Joyful Charity Walk 2024” as a
diamond sponsor. The Group has been recognised as a “Caring
Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS)
for more than 10 years. Such good deeds were numerous. The
Group had a proven track record of caring for the community
which are obvious to all.
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OUTLOOK

It is undeniable that since the return to the Motherland, Hong
Kong has always had a strong backing, that is, the Motherland’s
infinite care and support for Hong Kong and has been able to
get out of its predicament many times over the years thanks
to its motherland’s aids, turned the situation around, thus
getting back on track very quickly. Since last year, the Chinese
Government has repeatedly introduced a series of measures
as well as a myriad of policies to salvage the economy. The
People’s Bank of China has lowered the reserve requirement
ratio for several times in the hope of revitalizing the liquidity of
capital in the market, thereby further stimulating the investment
needs of enterprises and the willingness of residents to spend
money. The Chinese Government has actively rescued the
real estate market in Mainland China which is under a harsh
and severe situation, with a view to stabilising the real estate
market as soon as possible, laying the foundation for a solid
and pragmatic economic operation, as well as enhancing the
liquidity and flexibility of the capital market. After the introduction
of a series of policies and measures, it can be witnessed that
the Chinese economy has shown a definite upturn since this
year. China’s economy showed an obvious recovery in the
first 3 months of 2024. National Bureau of Statistics of China
reported that China’s gross domestic product grew by 5.3%
in the first quarter compared to the same period last year,
exceeding market expectations. As the inflationary pressures
in the U.S. continued to ease, in last December, the Federal
Reserve also expected to start reducing interest rates after the
middle of this year. The Federal Reserve is expected to continue
to reduce interest rates in 2024, subject to further improvement
in inflationary pressures. Inflation in Europe continues to run
at high levels, and the European economy fell inevitably into
recession in 2023 and may stabilize in 2024 as inflationary
pressures in the U.S. ease. China’s services trade deficit is
expected to widen significantly in the new year as China will
further open up to overseas travel. All these factors have caused
China decision makers to focus on domestic demand.
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In the year 2024, it is believed that our country will mainly
continue to promote economic and trade exchanges and
development between China and the countries along the route
and begin to develop mutual enhancement and linkages with
regional economic cooperation mechanisms. This combination
may frequently occur between China and the Gulf States,
China and Africa, and China and Latin America. It is likely
that the Shanghai Cooperation Organisation will shift from a
pure security cooperation mechanism to a dual security and
economic cooperation mechanism. The Belt and Road Initiative,
which has been implemented for a long time, is believed to give
full play to its unique advantages after the pandemic to enable
the Belt and Road Initiative projects to be implemented as a
multilateral cooperation to counteract the impact of geopolitical
tension under the economic interaction. It will also speed up the
progress of RMB digitisation, which will better stabilise China’s
financial system and bolster the Hong Kong economy.

The Stock Connect is a mechanism that has been implemented
for many years and links the stock markets of Shanghai,
Shenzhen and Hong Kong, allowing Mainland investors to
directly trade Hong Kong stocks and Hong Kong investors
to directly trade Shanghai and Shenzhen A-shares. The
southbound channel of capital flow is Hong Kong Stock
Connect, while the northbound channels of capital flow are
Shanghai Stock Connect and Shenzhen Stock Connect,
respectively. With the introduction of these measures, Hong
Kong’s stock market has enjoyed tremendous opportunities
since Hong Kong’s return, and the results are clear to all. With
the southward flow of capital from the north, it brings unlimited
impetus to the turnover of HKEX; In April this year, the China
Securities Regulatory Commission presented another gift to
the Hong Kong capital market that it released five measures
for capital market cooperation with Hong Kong, including
the relaxation of the scope of eligible stock ETFs under
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect; incorporating REITs into Shanghai-Hong
Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect;
supporting the inclusion of RMB stock trading counters into
Hong Kong Stock Connect; optimising mutual recognition
arrangements of funds; and supporting the Mainland’s
leading enterprises in various industries to be listed in Hong
Kong. The measures aim to further expand and optimise the
“Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect” mechanism, help Hong Kong consolidate
and enhance its status as an international financial center, and

SEomE  ARERD® R E R
SERHEEERNEE L REEHEAEA
R BIBI AT R M B TR ETBS - B8
BERFESHEREFDRTEER - E
SENERATERAE@R 2R LFA
ABBAREREAFRISRNAZ2EHES
BAERE) BITSEN % —HIEEEY
BEBFFRBEHES EEARTBET
Sl W—BIRENZRAENRREEY
45 BOA BB R 8 MA AN BRIB B AR
YL EAFBTTALMER  HED

RETSER—MRE -

HTZENEREEIZ @K LE  RI -
EEZHRTEEEROES  BAMKESE

EREEER AEBEREENEKERER
Al- BB FTRBAERB] L ERED
FIRIERBIRIRKB]  BE—Hhe /&
BREMSELDRESRERKE  KEBRB
KB EIEKETOBER  BEXMOKR S
KERSN: SFHA TREESBRER
BEAMBEALER ZHMHABEEATSEHES
1E¥EiE - B MABRRBBTIREETFAER
Em#E: BREITSHABRBE XFHARYK
BREXZHEGMABRRE BLELESERLTH:
AR ZFHAMITERACESERE LT - i
SHEE-SHRELCIEREBIRG  BHHE
AEEREAER SRS OMA - H R E MR

34 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2023/24



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

jointly promote the coordinated development of the capital
markets in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Specifically, the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, Shenzhen Stock Exchange and
Hong Kong Stock Exchange have reached a consensus to
moderately relax the average assets under management
requirements for eligible stock ETFs, reduce the requirements
for Hong Kong stocks equity weight of ETF products of Hong
Kong Stock Connect and the stocks equity weight of Hong
Kong Stock Connect, and make corresponding adjustments
to Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect ETF products to support the construction
of international asset management centre in Hong Kong.
The eligible REITs in Mainland China and Hong Kong will be
included in the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, further enriching the
variety of products traded on Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect. At the same
time, Mainland China and HKEX actively conducted research on
the inclusion of RMB stock counters into the Hong Kong Stock
Connect, and at present, relevant business schemes of which
have been preliminarily agreed on; It is intended to promote
the moderate relaxation of the restrictions on the proportion
of local sales of mutual recognition funds, allowing the
investment management functions of mutual recognition funds
in Hong Kong to be delegated to overseas asset management
institutions within the same group as the managers. In the next
step, the China Securities Regulatory Commission will further
strengthen the communication and coordination with relevant
authorities, support eligible leading mainland enterprises in
various industries to be listed in Hong Kong, and work with the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and other
relevant parties to guide the exchanges and clearing houses
in Hong Kong and Mainland China for joint promotion of the
smooth implementation of policies and measures as soon as
possible.
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The “Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area”
(“Cross-boundary WMC”), which was launched by the
governments of Hong Kong and Mainland China this year,
is one of the key initiatives of the connect mechanism of the
capital markets in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
The Cross-boundary WMC, which was initially launched in
September 2021, enables eligible residents from the Mainland
side and Hong Kong and Macau in the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area (“Greater Bay Area”) to invest
in wealth management products sold by the banks of the other
side through the closed-loop funding channels established
by their respective banking systems. The breakthrough of
the Cross-boundary WMC lies in providing a formal and
convenient channel, allowing retail investors to directly open
and operate investment accounts across borders for the
first time, with greater autonomy to choose their own wealth
management products. In January 2024, the relevant financial
authorities and regulators of the three jurisdictions issued
enhancements to the Cross-boundary WMC to optimise
the entry conditions for Mainland investors, expand the
number of participating institutions to include securities firms
that meet the requirements, broaden the scope of eligible
investment products, and appropriately increase the quota for
individual investors, and further optimise the promotional and
sales arrangements. As financial reforms will be deepened
continuously and more ties with other markets will be
established in Mainland China, Hong Kong will continue to be
an important gateway to the Mainland market for international
companies and investors. The further expansion of the market
connect plans (including the implementation of Cross-boundary
WMC, the inclusion of ETFs in the Stock Connect mechanism,
and the rapid development of the Greater Bay Area) will bring
about tremendous new opportunities for investors and the
industry. This will increase the capital flow to Hong Kong, which
is believed to bring opportunities to the capital markets and
unlimited business opportunities to the Group.
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The Group, being listed in Hong Kong for more than 13 years,
has tided over ups and downs in the stock market without fear
of market downturn. With the “Client-oriented” and “Caring
about Clients’ Needs” philosophy, the Group continues to
allocate more resources on the provision of more convenient,
good value and comprehensive investment products and
services to customers and enhance the speed and compatibility
of trading platforms, in order to cater to customers’ needs.
Whether in prosperity or adversity, the Group keeps pace with
times to strengthen its competitiveness and expand its business
with a view to competing with all competitors in the market for
market share and continuing to actively promote our services
in various ways to acquire clients. Upholding the business
philosophy of “integrity, sincerity, equity and conscience”, all our
staff will be united and devote themselves to our work, treat our
customers with sincerity and continue to work its way through
obstacles, explore new business opportunities, and provide our
clients with the best investment services in recognition of the
continual trust and support of our clients and shareholders.

Yip Mow Lum
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 June 2024
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MARKET REVIEW

The global market was an ever-changing landscape when
looking back on this year. Although the three-year COVID-19
pandemic has finally come to an end, its aftermath, hidden
worries and unforeseen effects have really worried the
governments of various countries. The supply chains of many
countries were interrupted during the pandemic, causing costs
to rise in all sectors and resources to be stretched thin, resulting
in soaring prices and worsening the inflation problem. In order
to suppress the unprecedented inflation, the U.S. had no
alternatives but to raise interest rates continuously to curb it. The
persistently high interest rates did, on the surface, alleviate the
inflation, but behind the scenes, there was an impact on banks’
lending business due to the high interest rates and therefore a
significant adjustment in the prices of various types of bonds, or
even default. In particular, the situation was relatively serious in
the case of mainland real estate corporate bonds, causing series
of bond defaults, and governments became cautious about
the economic outlook as they worried about recurrence of the
Lehman Brothers incident in 2008. Moreover, misfortunes never
come single, not only that the war between Russia and Ukraine,
which had been raging for a long period of time, seems to have
no sign of a ceasefire, but also the Middle East issue, which has
been a source of frustration for global investors for nearly half
a century, has become tense with the sudden collapse of the
Iran-lraq relations at the beginning of this year, and has driven
the gold price to a high level amidst all the political uncertainty.
Also, the energy prices showed no signs of decline in the midst
of war, therefore adding to the headwinds of a recovering global
economy.
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The overall economy of Hong Kong has been plunged into an
unprecedented predicament and the path to economic recovery
after the pandemic has not been as smooth as expected at
all since the Hong Kong government officially announced
the full lifting of all pandemic prevention measures and the
resumption of more commercial and economic activities, and the
opportunities presented in the reopening of the border between
Mainland China and Hong Kong have not been as satisfactory
as expected. The inflation problem in Hong Kong has continued
to worsen as a result of the persistently high interest rates.
The catering and retail industries, which have all along been
playing an important role in Hong Kong’s economy, have seen
a continuous wave of close-down due to rising costs and high
rents, as well as the trend of Hong Kong people’s northbound
spending spree, resulting in vacant commercial buildings and
shops everywhere. As for the property market which has
always been supporting Hong Kong economy, the property
prices have once undergone deep downward adjustments
due to persistently high interest rates in Hong Kong which
was caused by the successive interest rate hikes in the United
States, resulting in an increase in the interest cost of mortgage
repayment, coupled with the recession in all industries. Despite
the fact that the Hong Kong government has decided to revoke
the harsh measures on the property market with repeated urge
from the public, it is yet to be tested by time as to whether it can
really salvage the persistently weak property market or whether
it is just a temporary reversal of the downward trend. However,
with the uncertain global economic and geopolitical outlook, the
risk appetite for corporate investment, business expansion and
personal consumption is expected to remain conservative in the
near future.
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The relationship between China and the U.S. has always been
the biggest global concern over the past decade. On many
issues such as policies, economy and geopolitics, there are
serious disputes between China and the U.S.. Joe Biden,
the current President of the U.S., has not improved relations
between the two countries during his term of office but rather
escalating the sanctions against China. He has been more
assertive than his predecessor on trade and technology issues,
as evidenced by the Douyin and chip issues alone, showing
that he is a trouble maker, and he has even repeatedly signed
executive orders restricting U.S. companies from investing in
key areas of the Chinese and Hong Kong economy, creating
unnecessary friction and disputes between the two sides. As for
geopolitics, the Taiwan Question, the Indo-Pacific strategy, and
the Korean Peninsula all have been highly controversial issues in
recent years. It is believed that the relations between China and
the U.S. will never be improved unless the U.S. side changes its
provocative behavior. Given these problems, if any should go
wrong, the global economy will be affected, and Hong Kong is
not immune.

The Hong Kong securities market faced unprecedented
difficulties during the Year. The Hang Seng Index, in the absence
of capital inflow, dipped below 15,000 points to as low as
14,794 points, and even hit a 14-month low, which was even
worse than the most severe situation in the pandemic; and the
continued weakness of the Hong Kong stock market had led to
the continuous shrinkage of turnover. Besides the fact that the
investment atmosphere in Hong Kong was not at all conducive
and turnover has not improved, the Hang Seng Index even
recorded sluggish data in the previous year. Apart from the fact
that the United States and Japan markets has already exceeded
far ahead in terms of the trend, even the Taiwan stock market,
which has all along been regarded as a non-dominant market,
has also overtaken the Hang Seng Index in terms of the number
of points, and the Hong Kong market, which has all along been
ranked in the top three in the world in terms of IPOs, was even
squeezed out of the top five last year and could only be placed
in the sixth place, unfortunately being surpassed by India, which
is not an encouraging situation at all.
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Hong Kong stocks continue to be in dire straits because,
in addition to the continued weakness of the Renminbi
exchange rate amidst the prolonged high interest rate in the
United States, Hong Kong stocks, which have all along been
relying on the southbound capital from the Mainland China to
further strengthen it, are obviously deprived of an important
source of support; the chain of problems fermenting in the
domestic housing market in the Mainland China has led to a
lot of uncertainties about the economic growth rate of various
provinces and municipalities. Moreover, with the United States
repeatedly imposing unjustified and unnecessary sanctions on
China, the foreign investments in the Hong Kong stocks market
and Mainland China stocks market have also dropped drastically
in terms of intensity and willingness last year to a record low
level that has never been seen before. The securities industry in
Hong Kong is facing unprecedented difficulties in its operation
under the adverse internal and external circumstances.
According to the information from HKEX, more than 40
securities firms have closed down between January 2023 and
the end of March 2024, and it is believed that the problem of
closure of securities firms will continue in view of the uncertain
outlook.

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

The Board announces that the Group recorded revenue
of HK$846.2 million (2023: HK$881.7 million) for the Year,
representing a decrease of 4.0% compared to that for the Prior
Year despite market adversity. Net profit after tax attributable to
shareholders amounted to HK$558.5 million (2023: HK$620.9
million) representing a decrease of 10.0% as compared to that
for the Prior Year. Earnings per share for the Year was 32.93
HK cents (2023: 36.56 HK cents). In contrast, according to the
statistics of HKEX, the aggregate turnover of the market for
the Year was approximately HK$23,781.7 billion, representing
a drop of approximately 19.6% as compared to the aggregate
turnover of approximately HK$29,586.1 billion in the Prior Year,
demonstrating that the Group’s profitability outperformed the
market.
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In addition to the long term support and trust of our customers
and shareholders, the Group’s earnings have been able to
remain resilient under the fluctuating economy in Hong Kong
during the Year. Therefore, the Board recommends the payment
of a final dividend of 33.00 HK cents (2023: 50.00 HK cents) per
share for the Year to express gratitude to shareholders for their
continued support over the years. The Board believes that the
payment of the final dividend will not have any adverse effect on
the underlying assets, business, operations, financial position or
cash flows of the Group.

TOTAL NUMBER OF CLIENT ACCOUNTS
AND ASSETS

In view of changes in the market conditions, the Group
adjusted its marketing and operating strategies in a timely and
appropriate manner. Besides, the Group invested heavily in the
research and development of one-stop mobile trading apps, BS
Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures (Doudou), as it anticipated
the rapid increase in customers demand for financial technology.
With continuous improvement of their performance and
remarkable results, since its launch, the apps successfully drew
hundreds of thousands of downloads by customers. The Group
will continue to invest substantial resources and continuously
improve its trading platforms and services while upgrading its
network security devices in order to strengthen the protection
of its clients’ interests, be well-prepared for market fluctuations,
overcome challenges and seize opportunities.
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The Group has made constant progress over the years, and has
invested a lot of resources regardless of market conditions to
provide clients with more comprehensive, high-quality and more
professional services. As at the end of March 2024, the Group,
together with the Central Head Office and all branches and
“Bright Smart Mobile Teaching Centre”, had a total of 13 outlets,
covering the core areas of Hong Kong, some of which operate
7 days a week, breaking the industry tradition, to improve the
quality of client service and bring convenience to our clients.
The Group’s proactive expansion successfully led to a steady
growth in the total number of client accounts. During the Year,
the number of new accounts (after deducting the number of
client accounts closed) reached 14,813, increasing the total
number of client accounts to 562,555, representing a growth
of 2.7% as compared to 547,742 as at 31 March 2023. Client
assets (including cash, stocks and margin deposits) recorded on
31 March 2024 decreased by 14.2% to approximately HK$50.2
billion (31 March 2023: approximately HK$58.5 billion).
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REVENUE L' ON

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$846.2 AKAFEE ANEEWRABE846268EETL(ZF
million (2023: HK$881.7 million), representing a decrease of T~ =% :881.7A&ET) K LFE F¥K4.0% °
4.0% as compared to that for the Prior Year. A summary of the ARNEBREK DLW AREEHFIMOT
Group’s revenue by business divisions is set out below:

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=+—-HLLEE

2024 2023
—E-NF —E-=F
Proportion Proportion
of total of total Increment/
revenue revenue  (decrement)
LE -1 ON mElA #m,/
2 il il CRL )
HK$°000 % HK$000 % %
THER FAT
I e
Revenue from : REUTEE A
— Securities brokerage - BHEL 231,898 27.4% 331,551 37.6% (30.1%)
— Hong Kong futures and  — &EHE kgL
options brokerage 121,880 14.4% 135,206 15.3% (9.9%)
— Global futures - BEHEERL
brokerage 79,312 9.4% 114,485 13.0% (30.7%)
— Bullion trading - E2BRSH 6,284 0.8% 4,876 0.5% 28.9%
— Leveraged foreign — BREAINERS
exchange trading 770 0.1% 948 0.1% (18.8%)
— Stock option brokerage — I ZHifE &4 12,055 1.4% 14,641 1.7% (17.7%)
— IPO brokerage - BRAAHABELLR 1,010 0.1% 2,386 0.3% (57.7%)
Interest income from PO B X AR EGE T
financing B A 1,015 0.1% 777 0.1% 30.6%
Interest income from FREEF WA
margin financing 391,994 46.3% 276,863 31.4% 41.6%
846,218 100.0% 881,733 100.0% (4.0%)
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Securities brokerage

The total turnover of securities on HKEX for the Year was
HK$23,781.7 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of
19.6% (2023: HK$29,586.1 billion). Commission income from the
Group’s securities brokerage business amounted to HK$231.9
million (2023: HK$331.6 million) and accounted for 27.4% (2023:
37.6%) of the total revenue, representing a decrease of 30.1% as
compared with the Prior Year.

Hong Kong futures and options brokerage

The number of derivative contracts traded on the Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”) for the Year increased by
5.6% to 189.0 million (2023: 179.0 million). The commission
income from the Group’s Hong Kong futures and options
brokerage decreased by 9.9% to HK$121.9 million for the Year
as compared to that for the Prior Year (2023: HK$135.2 million),
accounting for 14.4% (2023: 15.3%) of the total revenue.

Global futures brokerage

As investment sentiment has declined due to the unstable
external environment, commission income from global futures
brokerage for the Year decreased by 30.7% to HK$79.3 million
as compared to that for the Prior Year (2023: HK$114.5 million),
accounting for 9.4% (2023: 13.0%) of the total revenue.

Stock options brokerage

Commission income from the Group’s stock options brokerage
for the Year decreased by 17.7% to HK$12.1 million as compared
to that for the Prior Year (2023: HK$14.6 million), accounting
for 1.4% (2023: 1.7%) of the total revenue. As stock options
are highly leveraged investment products, the Group carefully
monitors the margin level of stock option accounts and makes
adjustments according to market conditions in order to properly
control risks.
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IPO brokerage and IPO financing

Given the uncertainties in the global market, the persistently
high interest rate environment in the U.S., as well as the conflicts
between the two major powers, namely, China and the U.S.,
which have been escalating in recent years, and the frequent
occurrence of sanctions against each other; As a result, the
sluggishness of the Hong Kong stock market has been fully
exposed and the investment atmosphere is believed to be the
worst since Hong Kong'’s return, and with the shrinking turnover
of active market trading, the Hong Kong new stock market,
which used to be the most powerful one in the world, has also
become gloomy and dull. According to HKEX statistics, the
number of new listings in Hong Kong stock market continued to
decline in 2023, with 73 companies successfully listed in Hong
Kong in 2023, hitting a record low since 2014 and a decrease
of more than 60% compared to the peak number of IPOs in
2018; the total amount of IPO proceeds raised in 2023 was
approximately HK$46.29 billion, representing a sharp decrease
of nearly 55.8% year-on-year and reaching a record low since
2013, with a dramatic drop. It is not uncommon for the share
price to fall through below issue price on the first day of listing,
and overall investor sentiment towards subscriptions of new
shares in IPOs has fallen to a low point. Commission income
from the Group’s IPO brokerage business for the Year decreased
by 57.7% to HK$1.0 million as compared to that for the Prior
Year (2023: HK$2.4 million). Interest income from IPO financing
increased by 30.6% correspondingly to HK$1.0 million (2023:
HK$0.8 million).

Margin financing

During the Year, the Group’s average daily margin lending
decreased by 9.8% to HK$5.43 billion (2023: HK$6.02 billion).
Driven by the rise in Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”), the Group’s interest income from margin financing
amounted to HK$392.0 million (2023: HK$276.9 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 41.6%, and accounting
for 46.3% (2023: 31.4%) of the total revenue. The Group
implements effective credit control procedures to avoid any bad
debts.
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PERFORMANCE OF PROPRIETARY
INVESTMENTS

The Group held Hong Kong-listed securities, bonds and futures
contracts as investments during the Year. As at 31 March 2024,
the book value of investment portfolio stood at HK$51.7 million
(2023: HK$67.0 million), which included Hong Kong-listed
securities amounted to HK$51.6 million (2023: HK$66.0 million).
During the Year, the investment loss from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss was HK$15.1 million (2023: loss of
HK$3.3 million).

OPERATING EXPENSES AND NET PROFIT
MARGIN

The operating expenses of the Group for the Year increased
by 24.5% to HK$631.2 million as compared to that for the Prior
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Year (2023: HK$507.0 million), and net profit margin of the Group ~ 7R &£ B 4L M| KM T % £66.0% (T~ =4
slightly decreased to 66.0% (2023: 70.4%). 70.4%) °
A breakdown of operating expenses is as follows: ARSI T
Increment,”
2024 2023 (decrement)
i,/
—E-@mE —T=F CR )
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FAT
1
Staff cost BT KA 139,415 120,120 16.1%
Amortisation and depreciation BT E 66,416 74,488 (10.8%)
Net charges for expected credit RHEEERFHE
losses 1,272 752 69.1%
Finance costs B 7 A AR 259,855 114,202 127.5%
Advertising and promotion expenses & &N E&EH X 11,640 15,057 (22.7%)
Auditors’ remuneration % AT B & 1,805 1,768 21%
Commission, handling and KufRe  FEER
settlement expenses HEER 74,266 97,239 (23.6%)
Information and communication B kBAMAXZ
expenses 38,864 44,721 (131%)
Rental, rates and building e ZMkEF
management fees ERE 5,851 5,033 16.3%
Legal and professional fee FEENEEEA 2,075 1,785 16.2%
Miscellaneous expenses MIER Y 29,715 31,856 (6.7%)
631,174 507,021 24.5%
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OUTLOOK

It is undeniable that Hong Kong has always been backed by
its motherland, both economically and geographically, and
has been able to get out of its predicament many times over
the years thanks to its motherland’s aids. Since last year, the
Chinese Government has repeatedly introduced measures
to salvage the economy and has even introduced numerous
policies. The People’s Bank of China has repeatedly lowered
the reserve requirement ratio in the hope of revitalizing the
liquidity of capital in the market, thereby further stimulating
the investment needs of enterprises and the willingness of
residents to spend money, and assisting the real estate market
in accelerating the stabilization, laying the foundation for a solid
and pragmatic economic operation, as well as enhancing the
liquidity and flexibility of the capital market; after the introduction
of a series of policies and measures, it can be witnessed that
the Chinese economy has shown a definite upturn. China’s
economy showed an obvious recovery in the first 3 months
of 2024. National Bureau of Statistics of China reported that
China’s gross domestic product grew by 5.3% in the first quarter
compared to the same period last year, exceeding market
expectations. As the inflationary pressures in the U.S. continued
to ease, in last December, the Federal Reserve also expected
to start reducing interest rates after the middle of this year.
The Federal Reserve is expected to continue to reduce interest
rates in 2024, subject to further improvement in inflationary
pressures. Inflation in Europe continues to run at high levels, and
the European economy fell inevitably into recession in 2023 and
may stabilise in 2024 as inflationary pressures in the U.S. ease.
China’s services trade deficit is expected to widen significantly
in the new year as China will further open up travel outside its
borders. All these factors have caused China decision makers to
focus on domestic demand.
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In the year 2024, it is believed that our country will mainly
continue to promote economic and trade exchanges and
development between China and the countries along the
route in 2023 and begin to develop mutual enhancement and
linkages with regional economic cooperation mechanisms. This
combination may frequently occur between China and the Gulf
States, China and Africa, and China and Latin America. It is
likely that the Shanghai Cooperation Organisation will shift from
a pure security cooperation mechanism to a dual security and
economic cooperation mechanism. The Belt and Road Initiative
will create some kind of economic interaction, thus enabling
the Belt and Road project to be implemented as a multilateral
cooperation to counteract the impact of geopolitical tension. It
will also speed up the progress of RMB digitisation, which will
better stabilise China’s financial system and bolster the Hong
Kong economy.

The Stock Connect is a mechanism that has been implemented
for many years and links the stock markets of Shanghai,
Shenzhen and Hong Kong, allowing Mainland investors to
directly trade Hong Kong stocks and Hong Kong investors
to directly trade Shanghai and Shenzhen A-shares. The
southbound channel of capital flow is Hong Kong Stock
Connect, while the northbound channels of capital flow are
Shanghai Stock Connect and Shenzhen Stock Connect,
respectively. With the introduction of these measures, Hong
Kong’s stock market has enjoyed tremendous opportunities
since Hong Kong’s return, and the achievements were there
for all to see. With the southward flow of capital from the
north, it brings unlimited impetus to the turnover of HKEX;
The Cross-boundary WMC, which was launched by the
governments of Hong Kong and Mainland China this year,
is one of the key initiatives of the connect mechanism of the
capital markets in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
The initial Cross-boundary WMC, which was launched in
September 2021, eligible residents from the Mainland cities
and Hong Kong and Macau in Greater Bay Area can invest
in wealth management products distributed by the banks
from each other through the closed-loop funding channels
established by the Mainland banking system or vice versa. The
breakthrough of the Cross-boundary WMC lies in providing
a formal and convenient channel, allowing retail investors
to directly open and operate investment accounts across
borders for the first time, with greater autonomy to choose
their own wealth management products. In January 2024,
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the relevant financial authorities and regulators of the three
jurisdictions issued enhancements to the Cross-boundary
WMC to optimise the entry conditions for Mainland investors,
expand the number of participating institutions to include
securities firms that meet the requirements, broaden the scope
of eligible investment products, and appropriately increase
the quota for individual investors, and further optimise the
promotional and sales arrangements. As financial reforms will be
deepened continuously and more ties with other markets will be
established in Mainland China, Hong Kong will continue to be
an important gateway to the Mainland market for international
companies and investors. The further expansion of the market
connect plans (including the implementation of Cross-boundary
WMC, the inclusion of ETFs in the Stock Connect mechanism,
and the rapid development of the Greater Bay Area) will bring
about tremendous new opportunities for investors and the
industry. This will increase the capital flow to Hong Kong, which
is believed to bring opportunities to the capital markets and
unlimited business opportunities to the Group.

Developing diversified global financial products

The Group has always seized every opportunity in the
market and adopted an aggressive and courageous business
philosophy. Over the past nearly 30 years since its inception,
the Group has always been concerned about Hong Kong and
committed to moving forward alongside Hong Kong people to
provide quality services to our customers. As the application of
financial technology in wealth management business becomes
more mature, the Group has been promoting the digitalisation
and intelligence of clients’ trading services by combining online
and offline marketing and business operating strategies, utilising
financial technology towards the objectives of reducing costs,
increasing efficiency, expanding client base and enhancing client
experience, so as to further strengthen its core competitiveness.
The Group will continuously seek and expand global investment
products so as to cater to the needs of different clients.
The Group believes that investors’ interest in global financial
products is increasingly growing. Therefore, the Group will
continuously develop more global financial products to meet
market demands, thus consolidating our leading position in the
industry.
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Promoting digital investment services

The Group has always adopted a proactive business model
and all of its trading systems are already connected to major
financial markets around the world, allowing customers to trade
anytime and anywhere through BS Baobao and Doudou APPs
and all online trading channels, and the Group also regularly
optimises and improves all online trading functions and the
speed to place an order; and continuously promotes 24-hour
eDDA service approved by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
This service allows clients to deposit money and trade financial
products anytime, anywhere regardless of time differences and
Hong Kong holidays after going through a simple registration
procedure with any bank account. The Group has always
been keeping client’'s demand in mind. In addition to providing
real-time quotes on U.S. stocks market for our clients earlier, the
Group has once again broken the industry tradition by providing
real-time streaming quotes on Hong Kong stocks market (LV1) to
all our clients, which is the first of its kind in the industry, despite
the decline in turnover in Hong Kong stocks market during the
current year.

Laying a solid foundation and strengthening the sales
network

The Group perpetuated the expansion of its offline network.
Together with the Bright Smart Mobile Teaching Centre that
travels around the Hong Kong, the Group now has a total of 13
outlets. To cater for the needs of our customers, some branches
now open seven days a week, in a bid to provide clients with
considerate services. The Group will capitalise on market
opportunities timely and further refine this branch network to
provide customers with considerate personal services.

To play an important role in investors’ education over years,
the Group launched the first broadcasting channel “Bright
Smart Finance Channel”, through which it makes a financial
programme on each trading day to provide investors with instant
information and answer their questions. Besides, it organised
various investment seminars and stock and futures investment
simulation competitions free of charge. For instance, the Group
partnered with world-renowned stock exchanges, financial
institutions and top industry experts to provide investors
with comprehensive, reliable and free wealth management
information so as to enhance their knowledge about financial
products and economic trends across the world and broaden
their investment choices. The Group believes that investors’
education should be open for all, easy to understand and
diversified so as to enhance the financial literacy and abilities of
the public via different channels and assist them in developing
responsible financial habits, behaviours and decisions.
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Enhancing online trading security

The Group has invested substantial resources in improving the
efficiency and capacity of its online trading systems to meet
clients’ needs. In order to offer a more convenient and stable
online trading platform, the Group has previously made huge
investment in improving its trading systems, relocated its central
computer system to the centralised data centre of HKEX in
Tseung Kwan O, and conducted large-scale tests on all trading
systems, including regular simulated tests involving a trading
volume exceeding five times of the existing peak volume on
HKEX, so as to continuously enhance the efficiency and stability
of the existing securities and futures trading platforms.

In view of the fact that cybersecurity has become an
indispensable part of the public concern, the Group regularly
engages a world-renowned cybersecurity company to conduct
cybersecurity tests for all systems; and are munificent on
the cost of regularly upgrading the security equipment of all
systems, so that all customers can feel safe and secure during
the transactions. In addition, customers will receive SMS or
email alerts from the Group once trading is completed. The
Group will continue to enhance the capacity and speed of the
trading system, conduct regular tests in order to provide fast
and reliable trading platform for our customers to invest with
reassurance.

Internet technology and mobile communication technology
have become an indispensable part of our daily lives, and
with the rapid development of online financing, the issue of
online trading security has also arisen. Investors are becoming
increasingly vigilant of risks and are paying more and more
attention to the safety of online trading. The Group understands
that the online trading security is a top concern of investors
and is committed to ensuring sound and secured trading.
The Group has developed an anti-disruption system, with four
trading platforms for trading global stocks, namely BS Securities
(Baobao), Bright Smart Securities (MH), computer (web version)
and computer (professional version). The platforms can support
and complement each other to provide clients with four-fold
protection. Furthermore, the Group has set up three futures
and two leveraged foreign exchange trading platforms, on
which global futures and leveraged foreign exchange products
can be traded. The platforms can complement each other to
avoid disruptions, which ensure unimpeded and convenient
investments without crashes. Nine-fold protection measures aim
at significantly improving security.
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Conclusion

The Hong Kong market has shown strong resilience in the face
of unprecedented challenges. The Group firmly believes that
despite Hong Kong'’s economy being faced with unprecedented
hardships, Hong Kong remains the most resilient and capable
of overcoming and resolving crises, and its position as an
international financial center remains irreplaceable. During the
past period of adversity, the Group is particularly grateful for
the long-term support and trust of our shareholders and the
dedication of our staff, which have brought many important
results to the Group. All of our employees have not only shown
perseverance but have also been able to adapt to rapid change,
so as to carry out the Group’s missions with determination, and
to meet and exceed exacting standards in the process. This will
continue to be the Group’s top priority as it strives to maintain
strict compliance with the regulatory system in Hong Kong and
to build market and public confidence through the performance
of its daily duties and the implementation of effective cost
control measures. The Group would also like to express its
gratitude to the members of the Board for their continued
guidance and support to the Group.

The Group firmly believes that only by keeping abreast of the
needs of clients can it stands out in the fierce competition. For
the Year, the Group, with the “client-oriented and service-first”
philosophy, adopted both aggressive and defensive strategies
at the moment when the real economy went downhill. On the
one hand, it has been strived to optimizing the performance
of all trading systems, and on the other hand, it introduced
products of great interest to the market, with a view to enhance
customer experience at all times, so that customers can have
access to the most advantageous financial products in the
world; in terms of the promotion strategy, it will allocate more
resources on various online and offline platforms for publicity
and promotion and increasing brand exposure, attracting
more investors to open accounts and trade products through
Bright Smart Securities. The Group plans to further optimise its
branch network, actively look for potential locations to establish
new footholds, and reach a wider range of target clients, in
order to expand its market share and strengthen its brand
competitiveness. The Group’s achievements today depend on
the long-standing support and trust of its clients. The Group
will be dedicated to providing clients with better services and
developing safer, more stable, faster and more convenient
trading platforms in the future, so as to give back clients for their
love and support and make them feel at home. Meanwhile, the
Group will develop more diversified businesses, recruit talents
from different sectors and seize every valuable opportunity, so
as to enhance our operation efficiency and seek higher returns
for shareholders.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s operations were financed by shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operation and bank borrowings.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity with total bank deposits,
bank balances and cash amounting to HK$441.3 million as at
31 March 2024 (2023: HK$504.5 million). The Group had bank
borrowings of HK$3,775.0 million as at 31 March 2024 (2023:
HK$4,409.0 million) which bore interest primarily at floating
rate. The bank borrowings were primarily collateralised by its
margin clients’ securities pledged to the Group. As at 31 March
2024, unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$17,609.9
million (2023: HK$17,637.2 million). The Group’s gearing ratio
(total bank borrowings excluding IPO financing divided by the
total shareholders’ equity) was 261.4% (2023: 254.2%). As at 31
March 2024, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,308.6
million (2023: HK$1,603.5 million) and a current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) of 1.2 times (2023: 1.3
times).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group
ensures that each of the subsidiaries maintains a liquidity level
adequate to support the level of activities with a sufficient buffer
to accommodate increases in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in the level of business activities.
During the Year, all the licensed subsidiaries complied with the
liquidity requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N of the Laws of Hong Kong “FRR”).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 March
2024 and 2023.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2024, corporate guarantees provided by the
Company in respect of banking facilities granted by authorised
institutions to its subsidiaries engaging in securities and futures
broking amounted to HK$15,983.2 million (2023: HK$16,494.2
million). As at 31 March 2024, the subsidiaries of the Company
have utilised HK$3,295.0 million of these aggregate banking
facilities (2023: HK$3,579.0 million).

As at 31 March 2024, the directors did not consider that any
claim would be made against the Group under any of the
guarantees.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments as at 31 March 2024 were
approximately HK$0.2 million (2023: HK$0.6 million).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a work force of 196
employees (2023: 206 employees). Staff costs, excluding
directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$105.4
million for the Year (2023: HK$94.7 million). The Group's
remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent employees.
The Group believes that the remuneration packages are
reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends. The
Group has put in place a bonus scheme for its executives and
employees as a measure to provide a competitive remuneration
package for the Group’s long-term growth and development.
The Group also provides appropriate training and development
programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’'s work ability
and personal efficiency.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not make any significant
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.
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LITIGATION

As at 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this report, the Group
has not been involved in any litigation of significance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due
from clients, brokers and clearing houses. The management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all clients (including cash and
margin clients) based on the underlying collateral. Cash clients
are required to place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s
credit policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
Receivables due from cash clients are due within the settlement
period commonly adopted in the relevant market practices,
which is usually within a few days from the trade date. Because
accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide range
of customers for whom there was no recent history of default,
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable, and the prescribed
deposit requirements and the short settlement period involved,
the credit risk arising from the amounts due from cash clients
is considered low. The Group normally obtains liquid securities
and/or cash deposits as collateral for providing financing to
its cash and margin clients and has policy to manage these
exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans due from margin
clients are repayable on demand. For commodities and
futures brokerage, an initial margin is required prior to opening
transaction. Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account, margin
account and futures account are monitored by the management
on a daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.
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In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and clearing
houses, credit risks are considered low as the Group normally
enters into transactions with brokers and clearing houses which
are registered with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as
credits are granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance
with FRR. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long terms.

Interest rate risk

The Group charges interest to its margin clients and cash clients
with outstanding loan amounts on the basis of its cost of funding
plus a mark-up. Financial assets, such as margin loans and
bank deposits, and financial liabilities, such as bank loans, bear
interest primarily at floating rates. The interest-bearing assets
and liabilities, such as margin loans and bank loans, are mainly
priced based on HIBOR rate. The Group mitigates its interest
rate risk by monitoring market interest rate movements ad
revising the interest rates offered to its customers on an ongoing
basis in order to limit potential adverse effects of interest
rate movements on net interest income. The Group regularly
calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest rate
shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable
and interest-bearing bank deposits.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
financial instruments that are denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”) and British
pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) is pegged
to the USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD as insignificant.
In respect of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept at
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.
The management monitors all the foreign currency positions on
a daily basis.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price changes arising from listed
equity investments, futures contracts and accounts receivable
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s equity investments are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) while
investment in futures contracts are traded on HKFE. Listed
investments held in the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss portfolio have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

Accounts receivable from margin, cash and IPO clients expose
the Group to price risk as their fair value is made with reference
to the fair value of collaterals, capped by the principal amount
and accrued interest, without discounting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. YIP Mow Lum
Chairman & Executive Director

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and elected as the
chairman on 4 August 2010)

Aged 72, is the founder, the Chairman of the Board, an
Executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yip is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the formulation of corporate strategies, overseeing operations
and the overall steering of the Group’s management. Mr. Yip
has solid experience in brokerage industry and investment and
has over 30 years’ management experience in securities and
futures brokerage. He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Yip is a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for
engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated
activity. He is the sole director of New Charming Holdings
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company and the
uncle of Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive
Directors of the Company.
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Mr. HUI Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

(Appointed as a director and Co-Chief Executive Officer on 5
October 2015 and re-designated as Chief Executive Officer on
31 May 2016)

Aged 50, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is responsible for overall business
development, operations and management of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee, a member of the Risk Management Committee and
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 30
years of experience in securities and futures businesses, and
has worked in a number of securities firms. Mr. Hui has expertise
in brokerage operations, sales management and market
operations of securities and futures businesses, particularly with
over 20 years of experience in frontline management. Mr. Hui is
also a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging
in the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on
futures contracts), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities.
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Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson
Executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 59, is an Executive Director of the Company and the
Dealing Director of the Group in charge of the daily dealing
operations of securities and futures businesses. Mr. Chan is
also a director of Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company
Limited, both are subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 24
years’ experience in securities and futures businesses and is
a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging in
the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on
futures contracts), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Mr. Chan is
the nephew of Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the founder, the Chairman of
the Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Yun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 58, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Risk Management Committee as well as a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is a practising
certified public accountant with over 30 years’ experience in
public accounting practice. He is a fellow member of both the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also an
associate member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

BARFETHMEEERIF | T =/ _MFFH

and Senior Management

BR K 3 58 &
HITEE

(RZZ—ZF\ANBEZE)

B95% MARBZHMITEERAKEZ R4
E BAREESFLAHEXRBZAERRZEE - R
%EJTZ%ZK%%IWJ% AR EFBEREE)
BERABLRBTHELREMBRATDZES -
B E ﬁ&ﬁﬂi?¥$*1’324¢i‘“%iﬁﬁ%ﬁé\?
A BEHFRS)  F—RBHEENXS)
FHEGESFRHER) FREGIHEAD

RHER) FLBRHEBBLEIZRE) ME
NERHEEEEE)IRELTHIBEAER -

RELERARBEIMA
REXMEEZNG -

EFEeTERERRK

BYFHTES

REM KE
BUHFHTEE

(RZZ—ZF\ANBEZE)

58% RARAZBIFATES BREER
YNZEeERERZEGCIEAR

?m%é/\.a&faiﬁ HeakERZB8EZKE -

REERAEGEE REFABEA0FARE

B RARBARFARGAMRAEREES

AEAEE T RBEERHBEEEE -

\'—u/c\l:'
B R

61



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEZGRE

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee and
the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Szeto holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws (Hons)
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University
of Hong Kong, and obtained the Professional Certificate in
Chinese Civil & Commercial Law, a course jointly organised by
Tsinghua University in the PRC and the School of Professional
and Continuing Education of The University of Hong Kong in
2002. He also obtained a Professional Diploma for the Financial
Times Non-Executive Director in 2015. Mr. Szeto is a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a member of the Hong
Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association. He was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1985 and worked in a
number of law firms in Hong Kong including Edmund Cheung
& Co. and Y.T. Chan & Co., before founding his own firm Sun
Lawyers LLP (formerly known as W.S. Szeto & Lee, Solicitors)
in 20083. Having retired from the partnership of the firm, he now
remains as its Senior Consultant. Mr. Szeto is also a practising
Notary Public in Hong Kong.
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Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee and
the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Ling has over 25 years’ experience in accounting,
finance and administration and has been a director and the
company secretary of a charitable organisation since 2004.
Mr. Ling has been an independent non-executive director of
Pangaea Connectivity Technology Limited (a company of which
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, Stock Code: 1473) since January 2021. Mr. Ling joined
Midland Realty (Holdings) Limited in 1990 and was an executive
director of the company when he left the company in 1997. Prior
to that, he was a controller of Hong Kong Telephone Company
Limited and has also worked at Chase Manhattan Bank and
the First National Bank of Boston in accounting field. Mr. Ling
is an associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, holding
Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance Professional
dual designations.

BARFETHMEEERIF | T =/ _MFFH

and Senior Management

EEERE
BUHFHTEE
(RZZ—ZF\ANBEZE)

685 ' MARBZEIUNNTES  BEBRZE
€ REZBS FHMZEe EREEZSR

E&%% HekEaZB88cKE - EXE
REst BB RTRIHERSFERI A —

Tﬁ@iiﬁﬁ—% EHBCEERARW
= °/X5|7|3/_:E§—?—7£'E ﬂfLEELR HFLuﬂiH'
REBRRAR(—KBRONRBTEHARIARA

EWz AR RGBSR 1473) 2 B IEETT
FoZLEER hnf¢MA%%%ﬁa%E)

BERRAB R—ANEFBEBRERAZAFZH
TEF -HUZA FBETEFELEFERAA
RMENMPREBRNBRITMETBEE-BRIRT
HiES ﬁlﬁv&%iﬁﬁﬁ AREAER
EER BREg8 HABMMEREF

Aﬁ%%%ﬁéﬁ#‘ °

63



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEZGRE

Ms. WONG Ting Ting, Priscilla
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 3 April 2023)

Aged 41, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
of the Company. Ms. Wong obtained her Bachelor of Laws
(Hons) degree and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The
University of Hong Kong in 2005 and 2006 respectively, and
later completed a Master of Laws degree in Arbitration and
Dispute Resolution from the same institution in 2010. Ms. Wong
specialises in dispute resolution works including commercial
and civil litigation and international arbitrations. Ms. Wong was
admitted as solicitor in Hong Kong in 2008 and has over 15
years of post-qualification experience in the legal profession.
She is also a certified general mediator and a civil celebrant.
Ms. Wong currently serves as a partner in Messrs. Ince & Co,
a law firm in Hong Kong. She was a director of GIFTS Charity
Foundation and its chairlady in 2019-2020.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YIP Mow Lum

(Biographical details are set out on page 59)
Mr. HUI Yik Bun

(Biographical details are set out on page 60)
Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson

(Biographical details are set out on page 61)

=FHA=REZME)

e
B

RARNFIZBIFRITES BEREE
Zeg FNEZEE® RBREEZE
&3 CHEBRERAZE®KE - |/ ﬁﬂ”
IRN—EERAFR_FENFEBHEBRE
BEARETEBNREEBHEERE WR 2T —
%iéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁmﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁi
B4 o m/NMAZPINEFREEMIE  BER
%&E?ﬁ“%&lW@ﬁ°ﬁd@ﬂ_??
NERSEBSREZMERE  REEZRAEFAS®
SFNRELR - BAARARAUGEHABERE
IHEERB A o &/ ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁif?ﬁfﬁﬂ(—ﬁﬁﬁ’\%ﬁ
BREMEBM)ZEBA - BRITFER —h
iﬁ_q_giﬁﬁﬁ§%$22§$&%§
FE e

) | &
[l & wh -
uﬁmmﬂ‘

o0

G

BREEE
EEMEE
(BT R $598)
RPEW KL
(I EEFI R $60H)

BR K 3 5t £

(BEBEYREIR)

64 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2023/24



Biographies of Directors
ESREREERE 2GR

Ms. LI Wan Mei
Chief Financial Officer
(Joined the Group in November 2008)

Aged 40, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge of the
overall financial and accounting management of the Group.
She is also a member of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee. Ms. Li has over 15 years’ accounting
experience, including three years’ experience gained in
PricewaterhouseCoopers. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Business Administration from the Lingnan University and
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Kwan Pak

(February 2011-May 2012; re-appointed in October 2012)

Aged 67, is a member of The Chartered Governance Institute
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, holding
dual designations of Chartered Secretary and Chartered
Governance Professional. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Chan has extensive experience in company secretarial practices
in respect of listed companies.

BARFETHMEEERIF | T =/ _MFFH

and Senior Management

FHENE
MEBEE
(RZZENFE+—AMARER)

0 RAEEZHHEE  AEAKREZE
BHBLEHAEEIE - FPMATR/RE 4
ehEREBEZKE - T/NARABBISE
2R BRR-FRERBKESME
BHzESE BEEEEABRTIHEER LS
i YREEGAMAEEE -

REME
REELE

T —F-AE-E-——-FRA:RE—=
F+ABELZMT)

675 BEFEHARTREAEREBATAEAR
CEE BABTNERFHEREEARE
AR WNMARBRBEFLARGTMAGTERF
eEREEEHMAEEE  ABYE 2 LW
RAMEEBLS -

65



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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SCOPE AND PERIOD OF REPORTING

A major trend for corporate development, sustainability has
become a key topic that draws the attention of stakeholders.
Policies set out in this report have been prepared with
the participation of and upon the consideration by major
stakeholders including shareholders, customers, business
partners and employees to address future challenges.

To achieve sustainability, the Group strives to promote
environmental protection, instilling corporate social
responsibilities to its business and management strategies and
maintaining a culture of sound governance. This report presents
the Group’s sustainability approach and practices from the year
ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year”). This report fully cover the
Group’s operation, which is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), with the aim to inform
stakeholders of the Group’s performance in environmental,
social and governance terms.

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group believes that comprehensive Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) principles will effectively enhance
the Group’s investment value and bring long-term return to
our stakeholders. In order to develop the Company to be a
sustainable enterprise, continuously improve the Group’s ESG
management and performance and gain recognition from capital
market for the Company’s ESG work, the Group has established
an Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (the
“Committee”).

The Committee is responsible for directing and reviewing the
development of the Group’s ESG management policies and
strategies to ensure that they are up-to-date, relevant and meets
applicable legal and regulatory requirements; monitoring the
development and implementation of the Group’s ESG objectives,
including setting the Group’s performance targets for ESG
management, reviewing the progress of achieving those targets,
and advising on the actions required to achieve those targets;
reviewing the main external ESG trends and reporting to the
Board the major trends affecting the Group’s ESG policies and
strategies and its objectives setting; directing and reviewing the
identification and prioritization of the materiality of ESG issues
of the Group; reviewing ESG reports and other ESG-related
disclosures, and making recommendations to the Board for
approval.

EREERHE

THERRALERRENABSE  AETAR
REFMBEHEARE - ABERH S AR
BEEEHOE(DERR - EF - REBHE
BE) XS 8 - B RHE - AR B
B -

BEPEBUAFER Z’S%@@U]T&@Jf&
RE B ﬂé%ﬁ:ﬁ*ﬁﬁmﬁﬂ\ﬁiﬂwﬁaﬁ
WHEFRITHE AL - ARE %WZKE@%Z
EZNFZA=Z=+—RHLEFE(XAFEDA
R FEERFERERME - ARESR
@%$$.@”" DREEBHAERSMAE
RARFESFEMBRA( EMRA DS =+ AT
%@E’J(f&% cHERERHREESINIRE (g
REGHRERSNGRE BERNSHOHEER
AEERIRE HERERFEMNRKE -

Ex2E29H

AEEHEE  2EARE - LS RER ([IRE -
HERERDRABBEURASNEBRNREE
B TAEMNSHETRKEHER - AT
ARARINERA—EAFEZERENDE  TEHIRE
BAEEMNRE HeREATEMER £
RAGIWRE #HgRERIERSINERTS
RIRRA  AREEKLTIRE  He2kEREES
(8=l -

@Eih%ﬂ§€$ggmm% ek
AEEMEMEBNER  UERRH W
VIR MRS - BN A ERRERMES
I’%§$%lh%~ﬁ§&%ﬁﬁﬁm%m
MER BEIEAKERE HLERERE
BEMESBER FELERGLARNER X
%Eﬁ%%ﬁ%%%%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ@%i%ﬁi
ZRHNEIRE - HERERABY  YRNEFE
BEFERNEEHRRE iA&amﬁ R 0B B
&AEH SEMNTEBE HEMEELAKE

CHEREAEEEEUNBEMELX
F? ? %Eiﬁiﬁ CHERERMEMEAERE
HEelEAFHENERE TRNEEFSRHES
At -

66 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2023/24



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE  dERERTKE

The Committee delegates specific tasks to an ESG working
group (the “Working Group”) which comprises members from
relevant departments of the Group. Specific tasks delegated
include preparing annual ESG reports, monitoring ESG
performance, identifying ESG risks and implementing the ESG
activities of the Group in a comprehensive manner.

The Group is committed to constantly reviewing and adjusting
its sustainability policies to satisfy the everchanging needs of our
stakeholders. The Board acknowledges that it has the ultimate
responsibility for the Group’s ESG matters.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has the
overall responsibility for ensuring effectiveness of the Company’s
ESG strategy and reporting with an aim that the Group can
operate its financial services businesses in a responsible and
sustainable manner.

To reinforce the Board’s ESG management approach and
strategy as well as further enhance ESG governance, the Board
has established the Committee for overseeing and managing
ESG matters specifically. The Committee members comprises
an executive director, independent non-executive directors and
senior management of the Company. Under the Committee,
Working Group is established, which comprises representatives
from relevant departments. Their respective roles and functions
are as follows:
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The Committee

direct and review the development of the Group’s ESG
management policies and strategies to ensure that they
are up-to-date, relevant and meets applicable legal and
regulatory requirements;

monitor the development and implementation of the
Group’s ESG objectives, including setting the Group’s
performance targets for ESG management; review the
progress of achieving those targets, and advise on the
actions required to achieve those targets;

review the main external ESG trends and report to the
Board the major trends affecting the Group’s ESG policies
and strategies and its objectives setting;

direct and review the identification and prioritisation of the
materiality of ESG issues of the Group; and

identify ESG risks and opportunities related to the Group,
assess the impact arising from such risks or opportunities
on the Group, and make recommendations to the Board on
responses to those risks or opportunities.

The Committee will report at least once per year to the Board on
the implementation and the progress made towards achieving
ESG objectives.

Based on the recommendation from the Committee, the Board
will review the progress made towards achieving the ESG-
related goals as well as effectiveness of the management
approach and strategy.

The Working Group

68

work through the key performance indicators and the right
tools and resources to handle the ESG issues; and

formulate and execute action plans and ensure execution
by respective teams so as to achieve the ESG-related
goals set by the Board and the Committee.
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK

During the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group has
applied the reporting principles in the ESG Reporting Guide as
the following:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material issues during the Year, thereby adopting the confirmed
material issues as the focus for the preparation of this report.
The materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by the
Board and the Committee. Please refer to the sections headed
“Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment” for
further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in
the calculation of relevant data in this report, as well as the
applicable assumptions were disclosed. The key performance
indicators (“KPI(s)”) data are supplemented by explanatory notes
to establish benchmarks where applicable.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this ESG Report
was substantially consistent with the previous year, and
explanations were provided regarding data with changes in the
scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

This report has undergone the internal review process of the
Group and was approved by the Board.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group is committed to making proactive efforts to
continuously interact with key stakeholder groups. The Group
maintains active engagement with its stakeholders, and collects
their feedback through various communication channels to

understand and address their concerns in order to improve the
Group’s operation and practices correspondingly.

Key stakeholders

ETEROE

Customers
S

Employees

==

Shareholders and
Investors

BREEEE
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Major communication channels
TEBBRE
|

Onsite communications
5% m

Emails and mobile applications
BEELRFHERARER
Customer service hotlines
=PRSS R

Company website

NGIECRS

Performance appraisal interviews
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Staff activities
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Daily communications
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Orientation and training sessions
RGPS

General meetings
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Company website
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Corporate communication documents
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Services quality
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Customer privacy protection
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Employment and labour practices
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Diversity and equal opportunities
ZHlbt R TFERE

Training and development
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Occupational health and safety
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Corporate governance
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Sustainability and profitability
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Key stakeholders

Major communication channels

Issues of concerns

TEHOE TEBBRE BERE
Business Partners and Daily communications o Services quality and performance
Suppliers AERR REEEEKRIR
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Community Community services ° Employee volunteering
e & PR 75 BTEMEESD
Company website ° Community fundraising
NGIE N HRER
Social media ° Energy conservation
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° Waste recycling and management
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Government and Regular dialogues ° Anti-corruption/Anti-money laundering
Regulatory Bodies T HIA R RES/ REE
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Public consultation
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Written correspondence
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ESG POLICIES

The Group’s ESG policies are based on five basic principles set
out below:

72

To enhance corporate value and focus on shareholders’
return;

To foster financial transparency and boost investors’
confidence;

To cater to customers’ needs and protect customers’
interests;

To develop employees and safeguard employees’ interests;
and

To support environmental protection and seek to give back
to the community.

Environmental
Policies on environment and energy

Environmental protection and energy conservation form
an important part of our corporate social responsibilities.
Apart from full compliance with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group also seeks
to prevent pollution, conserve energy and reduce emission,
with a view to achieving sustainability in the course of its
day-to-day operations.

Besides, the Group has deposited funds through green
deposit projects offered by bank, to support and promote
low-carbon transition, environmental protection and
sustainable development projects and businesses that
contribute to the global environment.

Use of resources

Operating in the financial services sector, the Group
upholds energy conservation and advocates the best
use of resources. Disclosures on emissions and use of
resources primarily relate to the use of electricity, water
and paper in its head office and branch offices, as well
as the greenhouse gas emissions in the course of fuel
consumption by vehicles and the yacht of the Company.
Except for the mentioned emissions and use of resources,
the Group’s business has no direct impact on the
environment and natural resources.
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Environment and natural resources RERXARER

Greenhouse gases

Scope of greenhouse

gas emissions Sources of emissions

BERBHREE B BOR

Volume of emissions
(in tonnes of CO,e)
BERE
(LW = E 4L iz
EE23)

Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—-HLEE

2024 2023
—2C-mE —Z-=F
! |
Scope 1
Direct emissions Consumption of fuel by the Group’s 113.3 147.5
fleet of vehicles and the yacht
& BN
BEEHEN AEEBKREENREER
Scope 2
Indirect emissions Purchase and use of electricity 810.0 889.5
E2
B HE BRHEN
Scope 3
Other indirect emissions Consumption of paper 45.8 471
#E3
H 8 4 HE iR HoRE
Total
st 969.1 1,084.1

During the Year, a total of 969.1 tonnes (2023: 1,084.1
tonnes) of CO,e, which mainly comprised carbon
dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide, were emitted
from the Group’s operations as greenhouse gas
emissions.

In order to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions,
the Group has set a medium-term target to achieve a
reduction of carbon emissions, together with specific
action plans formulated. In terms of the greenhouse
gas emissions generated by vehicles, the Group will
decide to reduce the non-essential and aging cars
with low fuel efficiency and giving priority to energy-
saving vehicles in the procurement process.

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

TAFE AEBEEBELANLEREE
REH N E BICIINE (T - =4
1,08411) — Bk ES(FTB A -S|
bR~ Bl » &L DB A) °

RTRVBEREHR  NEEFE
TERBORFOTHER  LHET
AENTYE - EEMELNR
EREHMOTE - AEBEFRER D
B ENIEBFRELTE - X
ERBBETELEEMHETE -

73



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERE

74

Electricity

During the Year, the Group consumed 809,954
kilowatt-hours (2023: 889,546 kilowatt-hours) of
electricity. To identify opportunities for increasing
energy efficiency, the Group monitors the energy
consumption intensity across its operations from
time to time. The Group has set the target to
achieve a better control and reduction of electricity
consumption by gradually replacing the existing
incandescent tubes with LED lamps in office areas.
Other measures were taken for energy conservation,
including setting the default mode of printers and
computers at energy-saving; encouraging switching
off computers, air-conditioners and illumination
systems during non-office hours or periods of
extended away; and ongoing improvements to
equipment including illumination and air-conditioning
systems to uplift the overall energy efficiency.

Water

During the Year, the Group consumed approximately
5883 cubic metres (2023: 758 cubic metres) of water.
As part of the water usage fee was included in the
management fee paid to landlord, full data on water
consumption are not available.

The Group continually strengthens water management
to avoid waste of water resources. The pipelines,
drainage and equipment are regularly inspected to
prevent dripping and leakage. The Group targets to
install hands-free faucets or push button faucets and
dual-flush toilets in public washrooms in its offices
and branches. The Group has also posted signages
in public areas and washrooms to strengthen
employees’ water-saving awareness.
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Fuel

During the Year, the Group consumed 40,026 litres
(2023: 52,046 litres) of petrol and gas oil in its
vehicles and yacht, representing emission of 113.3
tonnes (2023: 147.5 tonnes) of CO,e in aggregate.
The Group will reduce the non-essential and aging
cars with low fuel efficiency and giving priority
to energy-saving vehicles in the procurement
process. Also, vehicle and yacht inspection and
maintenance are regularly performed to keep good
efficiency of vehicles and yacht and thus reduce fuel
consumption.

Hazardous wastes and packaging materials

No hazardous wastes or packaging materials are
produced from the business operations of the Group.
In selecting suppliers or cooperation partners, the
Group takes into consideration, among others, their
environmental and energy policies, to maximise
environmental protection and minimise pollution.

Non-hazardous wastes

Non-hazardous wastes produced from the operations
of the Group primarily comprise paper used in
offices, which amounted to a total of approximately
9.6 tonnes (2023: 9.8 tonnes) of paper and in turn
45.8 tonnes (2023: 47.1 tonnes) of CO,e emission
during the Year. The recycled papers were not
included in the calculation of GHG emission. To
minimise paper consumption, a number of measures
are in place, including measures to encourage setting
double-sided printing as the default mode and reuse
of paper and so forth.

In recent years, the Group has sought for a paperless
working environment by adopting electronic means
for internal dissemination of information, such
as payroll notices, circulars, memoranda and so
forth. This has saved the use of space, facilitated
the sharing of information on our intranet, and cut
down on the use of paper, and in turn augmented
efficiency in our day-to-day operations. The Group
also encourages its staff to recycle waste paper
if possible, fully use the blank area on the paper
for drafting or other internal purposes and use
notebooks or tablets instead of paper for meetings.
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By partnering with its printing solutions provider, the
Group has adopted “Follow You” print solution in
the head office, helping the Group becoming more
cost efficient through smarter printing. The print
solution enables the Group to achieve environmental
objectives by reducing unclaimed printing, as printing
is released only upon presentation of a staff card
from that particular staff who gives the printing
instruction.

Further, digitised services including electronic
statements, account opening through mobile
apps and account opening through the internet
have been made available. We also use electronic
mails and messaging tools in disseminating latest
promotional materials to our customers. To reduce
paper consumption, the Group also sets a target to
switch to electronic statements instead of receiving
paper statements from counterparties and encourage
our clients to switch to electronic statements from
paper statements by raising handling charge on
paper statement and offering commission discount
to clients switching to electronic statement. As at 31
March 2024, over 99% of our clients have opted for
electronic statement, which effectively reduce paper
consumption.

We also recommend shareholders to access
information including HKEX announcements and
shareholders’ correspondences via the internet.
The policies for a paperless workplace contribute
to environmental protection as well as saving on
operating expenses.

Measures for green offices

To produce less wastes and recycle resources,
suppliers are regularly arranged to collect used
printing cartridges and toners for recycling purpose,
while recycling bins are placed at its head and branch
offices for collecting used paper.
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Climate Change Impact

The world’s climate has changed significantly in the past
decades — global temperatures have increased and
extreme weather events are becoming more frequent
and severe, which may cause disruptions to business
operations globally, and in turn poses adverse effects to
the macro economy.

The Group mainly engages in financial services business
which does not involve production. The increase in
temperature may lead to an increase in the energy
consumption of the Group’s offices and branches. Natural
disasters, such as typhoon, may damage our properties
and systems, which may result in business interruption.
We have established a backup office with backup systems
in order to maintain normal business operations in case of
natural disasters.

The Group will continue to monitor the potential risks of
climate change and its impacts on the Group’s operations
and customers, and devise and implement preventive and
emergency measures accordingly. Besides, the Group will
continue its efforts to control energy consumption and
carbon emissions.
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B. Social B. #&
Employment and labour practices EBEREIER
1.  Employment 1. EE
The Group believes that a motivated and balanced REERE  BBERNTFEHNET
workforce is crucial for building a sustainable EBREREL—EFENHER
business model and delivering long-term returns. AMERRPOREZFEE -
As at 31 March 2024, the employees of the Group HEe—_Z-_NWF=A=+—H8 K&
totalled 196 (2023: 206), working in the head office BEERAHEIWGCHE( T _=F"
and branches in Hong Kong. 206%) MEBRITRDITIE -
The demographics of the Group’s workforce are NEBEBETEBKAZS B RSB
summarised below: w
As at 31 March 2024 HE_ZT_MF=R=+—H
14% 18% 1%
34%
By Employment
By Gender By Age 99% Type
RIER RER ZEEER
66% 68%
Male @ Female <30 31-50 @ >51 ® Full-time Part-time
P % ES e
As at 31 March 2023 HE-_ZT_=F=A=+—H
16% 1%
18%
36%
By Employment
By Gender By Age 99% Type
BRI RER ZEEER
64% 66%
Male @ Female <30 31-50 @ >51 ® Full-time Part-time
2 % 2 i
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The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of
gender and age, providing a variety of ideas and
levels of competencies that contribute to the
Group’s success. The Group is firmly committed to
gender equality, and particularly encourages female
participation at managerial and operational levels.

The management believes that employees are
important assets of the Group. Competitive
remuneration and benefit package is provided in
order to attract and retain talents. To ensure that
the Group follows the best-in-class standards,
it regularly reviews the remuneration and benefit
package and benchmark it against its industry
peers. All employees are entitled to discretionary
bonus, medical benefits, annual leaves and other
compassionate leaves, educational subsidies,
examination subsidies and so forth.

To continuously improve employment practices, the
Group’s conducts exit surveys to closely monitor the
turnover rate and gather insights and information from
the employees leaving the Group. This will allow us to
address employees’ concerns and enhance retention
measures.

The turnover rates of the Group’s workforce are as
below:

By Gender
& 1% Bl
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Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLFE

Male

==

>
Female

E28

By Age
RER

2024 2023
—ENE B =F
27% 48%
32% 61%

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLFE

<=30

31-50

>=51
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1% 89%
29% 47%

17% 32%
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To ensure the staff clearly understand their rights
and obligations, the employee handbook and other
policies and guidelines are in place covering the
areas of compensation and dismissal, recruitment,
working hours, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination
and other fringe benefits, etc. The Group has been
reviewing its related policies from time to time to
ensure the Group complies with the latest statutory
requirements. Also, a set of grievance procedures
is also in place, to provide staff with a channel to
confidentially escalate complaints and concerns to
the Human Resources Department or the Chairman
of the Board.

Health and safety

The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for
its employees in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations such as the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

We care about the physical and mental health of
each and every one of our employees, with frequent
production of posters to remind our employees of
occupational safety and health.

The Group enhances emergency preparedness and
ensures there are well-stocked first-aid kits in offices,
warehouse and branches to protect the health and
safety of employees, in the event that they are injured
at work.
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Every case of injury (if any) is required to be reported
to the Human Resources Department and be
individually assessed under the internal guideline
procedures. During the Year, there were no lost
days due to work injuries (2023: Nil). There were no
reported work-related fatalities in the past three years
including the Year.

The Group provides medical insurance to its
employees. Nursing rooms are also provided to
accommodate breastfeeding mother employees.
Additionally, in order to improve the air quality in our
workplace, air purifiers are installed at our offices.
Adjustable design work chairs are provided to protect
employees’ neck and back.

Development and training

The Group acknowledges that employees are
the most important assets of the Company. To
maintain its leading position in the vibrant and
versatile financial market, the Group encourages
and subsidises employees at different job grades to
enroll and/or participate in development or training
courses in support of their career and professional
development. A policy on Training & Development
Program is in place to deploying responsible officers,
sales, operations and compliance staff with sufficient
skills, knowledge, professional qualifications and
experience for the responsible discharge of their
duties.
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During the Year, we provided anti-corruption, anti-
money laundering, cybersecurity, risk management,
compliance and professional development trainings
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and all employees had opportunities to receive the

relevant training.

Trained employees

Percentage of employees trained

ZiEE

EMRBINZIEER

HERA A

Year ended 31 March

BE=ZA=+—HLEE

2024

2023

—EMEF —E-=F

by gender Aok
Male S 90% 96%
Female zZ 94% 95%
Percentage of employees trained B S K &2 /0=
by position grade EEBS K

Management EEE 100% 100%
Manager &8 99% 100%
General staff T@MET 86% 92%
Training Hours 359I B
By gender 1% 1 Bl
Male ES
— Total training hours — MR E 3,607.5 3,526.5
— Average training hours per — BREITFEHEI

employee iSg= 27.75 26.72
Female Z
— Total training hours — 1B &L 1,028.0 901.2
— Average training hours per — BEZEBIFEHE

employee RF & 15.58 1218
By position grade BB ER
Management EEE
— Total training hours — B 172.0 2215
— Average training hours per — BEHEBITFHEH

employee RRF 8 14.33 20.14
Manager gt
— Total training hours — B 2,538.0 2,201.7
— Average training hours per — BEREIFEHEI

employee S 32.54 25.60
General staff TWMET
— Total training hours —-ﬁ-f%aHBT§& 1,925.5 2,004.5
— Average training hours per BHETFHEH

employee i 21 18.17 18.39
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Labour standards

Recruitment are conducted by the Human Resources
Department of the Group according to relevant labour
laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the
“Employment Ordinance” in Hong Kong. Personal
data collected in the course of recruitment are only
used for selecting suitable candidates.

The Group fully complies with relevant laws and
regulations in related regions concerning prevention
of forced or child labour. In the recruitment process,
the Group implements appropriate procedures
to ensure that employment adheres to minimum
age provisions of applicable laws. The Group also
prohibits any form of forced labour. The age and
identity of its employees are verified and employment
contracts are entered into with each of its employees.

We endeavour to provide a harassment-free
working environment to employees. Any types of
discrimination is prohibited in the Company. We have
diversity policy in place to foster equal opportunities
among the workplace that ensures all employees
treat others in dignity and respect and employees
shall not be discriminated by sex, pregnancy, marital
status, disability, family circumstances and race,
while we follow the principle of meritocracy when
recruiting, hiring, training and promoting employees
regardless of their background. A candidate’s life
experience, knowledge, inventiveness, innovation,
self-expression, unique capabilities and talent are
what we seek. Employees facing any forms of
discrimination, inequality and harassment can lodge
complaints following the complaint procedures.
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Operating practices = EEN
1. Supply chain management 1. HEHEERE

The Group attaches great importance to the AEEHsREHEINEERRE

mutually beneficial and long-term relationship with ME RBBRAK AR R AR

its suppliers. In its procurement policies, the Group B RBABREKARNRE - TR

adheres to the principle of “cost effectiveness”, under AIIREEBENERPRY - S3PI78

which high-quality customer services are ensured HEENRFRTBER  TRET

while costs are minimised. Different departments stay BERRH - TRTEHRBR  Hez

in good communication with its suppliers, conduct EHENBATH®RE  EM - R -

review and checking processes from time and R RIRBH GRRE - FEAEEIE

time. In making decisions for procurement, factors SHEAMXEEGENMHER -

including historical price quotations, product offering,

service offering, performance and environmental

and social policies by suppliers are all taken into

consideration, so that suppliers adhering to similar

notions and offering reasonable prices are selected.

The Group will also be alert to whether there is rEBETeBEHEEANERENT

unfavourable news of its engaged suppliers on the RIBREFTEHESHETFIE - a0

environmental aspect. In the event of such news, the BEE  AEBEHETABTR - N

Group will internally discuss the need to change the AREREFEDMMHER -

supplier.

The ESG risk assessment on the suppliers should HEERNERE e kERRBT

be carried out on an ongoing basis during the HIER AN RSB ETT - W7

contract term. In case of any material negative ZEMEEIEEMNENEB@IH

news or behaviour of an engaged supplier, the TR - MR ERPI A E T BN AT 0 [

relevant department should conduct an immediate REMBHRETE ©

assessment and determine the necessary follow-up

actions.

Number of Suppliers by Location Year ended 31 March

RitBE SN HEREE BZ=A=+—HLEE

2024 2023

—EC-NE —E-=F

]

Hong Kong BE 244 306

Other Regions H h 3 [® 6 11
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Product responsibility

Internal control and compliance procedures are
in place to ensure compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations by the Group’s frontline staff
members. The Group also provides relevant training
to its employees, thereby ensuring that employees
apprehend the nature and risks underlying financial
services and that they are equipped with professional
knowledge sufficient for them to provide the
most suitable advice to their customers under all
circumstances. Financial services provided by the
Group are not subject to recalls for health and safety
reasons.

Customer opinions/complaints

With clear black-and-white procedures within the
Group, all disputes and complaints are investigated
and resolved in an impartial and rapid manner.
General complaints are dealt with by the customer
services department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers. Compliance-related
complaints are dealt with independently by the
compliance department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers and/or relevant law
enforcement bodies. During the Year, there were
9 complaints (2023: 12) received from our clients.
All complaints were duly resolved with satisfactory
results.

Laws and regulations

The Group has obtained all licences, qualifications
and permits required of its business operations. The
compliance department is responsible for ensuring
that business operations comply with laws and
regulations. Updates on relevant laws and regulations
are notified to relevant operating units and employees
from time to time. During the Year, there had been no
violation of any laws or regulations on the part of the
Group that would have or would likely have material
adverse effect on the Group.
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Privacy of personal data

For the protection of privacy in respect of personal
data, the Group has developed its policies for the
protection of personal data on the basis of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. With due regards
to personal data privacy, the Group is committed to
fully enforcing and observing the principles of data
protection as well as all relevant provisions in the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. The Group seeks
to ensure that appropriate measures are in place to
prevent the misuse or leakage of personal data, and
shall hold such personal data only for the purpose
of such collection. Relevant staff are provided with
adequate training in compliance with applicable
laws on data privacy protection, to strengthen their
awareness and to protect personal data against loss,
unauthorised access, use, modification or disclosure.
Access to the customer database is limited to
authorised staff, whilst authentication is required
before accessing the data. To reduce the risk of
identity theft, the Group takes appropriate measures
to dispose of documents that contain customer
information.

The Group’s Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance/
Privacy Policy Statement are made available on its
website to disclose the relevant protection policies to
its customers.

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

The Group recognises the importance of intellectual
property rights (“IPR”) and makes effort to protect
IPR and the confidentiality of proprietary information
provided to or owned by us during business activities.
The Group has also formulated relevant measures
for its own IPR protection. We would consider to
take legal actions for infringement of IPR cases after
assessing the materiality and impact, competition and
reputation issues.
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Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption/Anti-money laundering ("AML”)

To build its corporate culture and procedures that
stay in line with laws and regulations as well as
ethics, the Group has established policies on anti-
corruption and AML, which stipulate procedures for
screening customers, “know your customers” policy,
rules for archiving and rules for whistleblowing in
case of suspected deals.

During the Year, anti-corruption training was provided
to directors, management and other general staff.
There was no legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during
the Year.

Gifts and benefits

The Group has developed its policies against
bribery and the receipt or provision of gifts. In all
circumstances, employees must declare any receipt
of gifts or benefits to the compliance department,
which would advise based on the circumstances,
for example whether such gifts or benefits can
be accepted, should be rejected or other ways of
handling.
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Policies for handling internal complaints

We have policies for handling internal complaints,
whereby employees may report to the Chairman of
the Board any improper behaviours on an anonymous
basis. Such improper behaviours include but are not
limited to:

° improper behaviours involving financial
reporting;
° improper behaviours involving internal control;

° behaviours in violation of any applicable laws;

° behaviours posing threat to the safety or health
of the others; and

° wilful concealment of any one of the above.

Whistleblowers do not face intimidation, retaliation or
improper disciplinary actions in any form as a result
of reporting the aforesaid behaviours. The Company
uses its best endeavours to keep all disclosed
information confidential and to handle the same in a
prudent manner. Without consent of the respective
employees, the Company will not disclose the identity
of the reporting employees. However, under certain
circumstances such as where it becomes necessary
to initiate litigation procedures due to investigation,
the Company may be required by law or be obliged
under law to disclose the identity of the reporting
employees. In such event, all reasonable steps
will be taken by the Company to ensure that such
employees will not get affected. Any acts to harass or
affect the whistleblowers will be considered serious
misconducts and once established would result in
termination of employment.
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Customer services

Dedicated customer services have bestowed on
the Group trust and support from its customers.
With clear and black-and-white internal procedures,
the Group impartially and rapidly investigates and
resolves all disputes and complaints. As an integrated
financial services provider, we have set up service
teams that are comprised of different professionals
to provide diversified financial services, including
securities brokerage, margin financing, commodities
and futures brokerage, bullion trading, forex trading
and so forth. As of 31 March 2024, 91 (2023: 93) of
the Group’s employees were persons licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission to engage in one
or more of the regulated activities.

During the Year, the Group was granted the following
accolades with its caring and professional service
attitudes:

—  HKEX “Top Retail Broker”

— CME Group — Excellent Partner Award 2023,
CME Group — Influential Broker 2023, CME
Group — Broker Program Key Partner 2023,
CME Group — Innovative Broker 2023

—  Oriental Daily News — Outstanding Listed
Companies (Securities and Futures)

—  Metro Broadcast/The Chamber of Hong Kong
Computer Industry — Hong Kong Digital Brand
Awards 2023
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Community
Community investment

Recognising the responsibility of a good corporate citizen
to contribute to the community, the Group has long
maintained its eagerness to serve and give back to the
community, with active participation in various community
activities. The management of the Group advocates staff
participation in philanthropic deeds, to arouse attention to
the community and drive further participation from other
people in community services.

The Group has been supporting the charitable organisation
"Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation", has been the sponsor
of the "Joyful Charity Run " for more than 10 years and has
been awarded the "Caring Company". During the Year, the
Group donated HK$100,000 to it.

During the Year, the Group sponsored The Community
Chest BEA Charity Golf Day 2024 with a donation of
HK$45,000 for mental health services provided by the
Chest’s member agencies.

The Group is also passionate about medical charity. During
the year, the Group sponsored “Shanghai Commercial
Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2024” for HK$32,000 to support
the construction of different medical projects in Pok Oi
Hospital.

During the Year, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the
Group, is known for his philanthropy and sponsored the
“In the Name of Love HOHCS Charity Walk 2023” hosted
by the Haven of Hope Christian Service. Mr. Hui Yik Bun,
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, led kindhearted employees to participate the event.
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The Group has also been awarded the following
certificates of appreciation and commendation:

— Joyful Charity Walk 2024 (Diamond Sponsor)

— 2024 Certificate of Appreciation for the Community
Chest BEA Charity Golf Day

—  “In the Name of Love” HOHCS Charity Walk 2023

(Diamond Sponsor)

— Shanghai Commercial Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2024

— 10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo granted by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service

Caring Company Scheme
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance and complying with regulatory
requirements, to secure and uplift confidence of shareholders
as well as potential investors. In order to meet expectations
of the public and shareholders and fulfill its commitment to
good corporate governance, the Board reviews the Company’s
corporate governance practices from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year”), the Company
has applied the principles of, and has complied with, all the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises seven Directors, 4 of them are non-
executive directors independent from the management. The
Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies of
the Company, ensuring the availability of sufficient funds and
resources for implementing such strategies, overseeing the
financial position of the Company, and complying with laws and
regulations in the course of business operations. All members
of the Board possess the skills and experience required by the
businesses of the Group. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum
(Chairman), Mr. Hui Yik Bun (CEO) and Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson; and four independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
and Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023).
The biographical details of the current Directors are set out in
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section
of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. To balance power and authority, Mr. Yip
Mow Lum acts as the Chairman of the Company, whereas Mr.
Hui Yik Bun acts as CEO.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly established. The
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly
discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. In addition, he is also
responsible for ensuring that all Directors are sufficiently briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and that all Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The CEO is responsible for day-to-day management
and administration of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of significant strategies formulated by the Board.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman, is responsible
for formulating the Company’s corporate strategy, overseeing
the management of the Company and evaluating the
business performance, with the ultimate aim to maximise the
shareholders’ value and long-term success of the Company.
The management is responsible for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group within the authority delegated by the
Board.

In addition, the Board has established five Board committees
namely, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee as
well as the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
and has delegated to these committees various functions and
responsibilities set out in their respective terms of reference.
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During the Year, the Board has all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors on the Board. And Mr. Yu Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok
Fai, Joseph have the appropriate professional qualifications
of accounting and related financial management experience.
The independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board, complying with the requirement under
Rules 3.10A of the Listing Rules. In addition, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence to the Group
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson is a nephew of Mr. Yip Mow
Lum. Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Hui Yik Bun and Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson concurrently are directors of several subsidiaries
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there are no other
relationships between the Board members, including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company acknowledges the importance of diversity at
the Board in contributing to the quality of performance of the
Company. The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy.
In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
takes into account a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background
or professional experience. Appointment of Directors is solely
based on meritocracy. The Board Diversity Policy is among
the criteria used in selecting members to join the Board.
Furthermore, the Company also takes into consideration its
own business model and specific needs form time to time in
determining the optimal composition of the Board.

In compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Wong
Ting Ting, Priscilla has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 3 April 2023. As at the date of
this report, the Board comprises seven Directors. Four of them
are independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. Based
on the foregoing, the Nomination Committee considers that the
current Board is sufficiently diversified in terms of its gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional
experience.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board holds at least four regular meetings annually at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s
business development, operations and financial performance.
Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular
Board meetings. All regular Board meetings adhere to a
formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board and the Directors are invited to include matters of
special concerns for discussion in the agenda. All Directors
have access to the Board papers and all related materials, and
are provided with adequate information by the management to
enable the Board to make informed decisions on the matters to
be discussed. The minutes of the Board meetings have sufficient
details of the matters discussed at Board meetings which are
prepared and kept by the Company Secretary and are opened
for inspection by any Director. The Directors are free to access
to the management for enquiries about further information, when
required, and the Directors can obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings and one general
meeting were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors to
the regular Board meetings and general meeting are as follows:
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Name of Director
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RABZHEXRFBOT:

Executive Directors: HITES:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum ERMEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun FFEW R AL

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson B oK BB 5T A
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIHITES:
Mr. Yu Yun Kong REM £

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun RITEMERT R A

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B8 St A

Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) =R/ NE (T 5E)

Note:

Appointed on 3 April 2023
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package from the company
secretary ensuring that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operation, business, the relevant laws
and regulations, the Listing Rules and governance policies.
The Company Secretary also provides the updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from time to
time.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. During the Year, all Directors
participated in continuous professional development through
reading materials on regulatory updates, director’s duties and
responsibilities and corporate governance matters and attending
relevant seminar(s) or course(s) provided by professional bodies.
All Directors have provided the Company with a record of the
relevant training undertaken during the Year as summarized
below:

B

Name of Director
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Type of trainings

BIEE
Seminars
and/or Reading
In-house conferences and online
training and/or forums studying
WHER /%
REEIN EBRAWE HERALEE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yip Mow Lum ERMEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun AFEWLE

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson BR oK 3 % £
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Yu Yun Kong REM & &

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun ARSI &

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph E BBk

Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) E 212/ NME K 7

Note:

Appointed on 3 April 2023
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ACCESS TO INFORMATION BY DIRECTORS

In relation to regular Board meetings, notice of at least 14 days
shall be given to Directors allowing them to have sufficient time
to participate. Meanwhile, Agendas and meeting documents
are sent to all Directors 3 days prior to the respective meeting
to ensure that Directors have sufficient time to familiarize
themselves with the matters to be discussed and to play their
roles of supervision. For meetings of committees under the
Board, notice shall also be given to Directors in accordance with
the requirement specified in terms of reference of respective
committee, and agendas and meeting documents are also sent
to all Directors 3 days prior to the respective meeting.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and financial information, and also entitled to make
enquiry to the management regarding operating data and
financial information of the Company. The management must
submit the information requested by the Directors within
reasonable time so that the Board can play its role effectively.

Further, the Company provides all Directors with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, financial position and
prospects, so that Directors are well aware of the affairs of the
Group and can in turn perform their duties under the Listing
Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
giving the other prior notice in writing (not less than three
months’ notice for Mr. Yip Mow Lum and Mr. Hui Yik Bun; and
not less than twelve months’ notice for Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson). They are subject to retirement from office by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general meetings in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

Each of the four independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a fixed term of one year, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
by giving the other party a three months’ prior notice in writing.
All four independent non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at
the annual general meetings of the Company according to the
provisions of the Articles.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the current Directors, or if there are not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries of each Director, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

The compliance manual of the Company has been prepared by
the Company with reference to relevant regulatory guidelines
and other industry best practices, setting out ethical standards,
values and specific obligations on topics such as dealing in
securities, anti-money laundering and personal benefits, thereby
ensuring that all Directors, management members and staff
members abide by the ethics and integrity in compliance with
standards of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong
Ting Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023). None of them are
involved in the day-to-day management of the Company. Mr. Yu
Yun Kong is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, interim reports and major comments
on financial reporting contained in the financial statements),
examining the Company’s financial reporting system and
procedures for internal supervision and control, and making
recommendations to the Board on matters regarding the
appointment of external auditors and the fixing of the audit fee,
etc. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
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A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2023;

° reviewed the interim financial statements of the Company
for the six months ended 30 September 2023;

° reviewed the effectiveness of the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group; and

° reviewed and recommended the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditor.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Director

Esgs

o

ERZBEERAFREZ2THERELT:

\

e FHARABME-_Z_=F=A=+-—H
HFEEZREBLWHERE

s EBHAQRBE-ZTE-_=FAA=+B1
NEAZHHMBHRE:

o RAANEEG &M R RBREZ WAL
K

o BEBNEHBEEITRTAEERE
i -

ERREENAFEABRTTMAEH
BEREZHFEREFINNT

B

Attendance/
number of Audit
Committee
meetings held
HE/BITERE
EEERBZIRE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REMELE(FRE) 2/2
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AITEHE R A& 2/2
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B 8% % A 2/2
Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) =g e N B (B 7)) 2/2
Note: M &t -

Appointed on 3 April 2023

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants (“KPMG”), be nominated for
re-appointment as the external auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises six members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board and Mr. Hui
Yik Bun, an executive Director and the CEO, together with four
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong
Ting Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023). Mr. Yu Yun Kong
is the chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

100

RZZE-_=ZFNA=ZREZE

ERZREQCMEZTERRE  EARTEER
RBFRGLRAZEBNESHTMEFTHE
BhEB(TRFE))ABARE ZINEZEED -

EBREEEES

RRERZE8eh "NEXBEK BHREES
ITREERMEENMATEERITRAHTEW
TE - UARNEBBIFATESTRIAMELE
BIfEEFEE  ZBRERAREREE/NMA(RZ
TE_-FMA=-HEZT  FIYBELERRAR

ERZEEIFE -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2023/24



Corporate Governance Report

A\ vy \\
1F "E‘:/ﬁiﬁ%

The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
review the risk management and internal control systems other
than the financial control and reporting system and to consider
major investigation findings on the risk management and
internal control matters of the Company. The Risk Management
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Risk Management
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system;
and

° reviewed the risk register to identify, mitigate and monitor
significant risks, including environmental, social and
governance risks.

A Risk Management Committee meeting was held during the
Year. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as
follows:

EsgR

Name of Director

EREEZES I ERERERVBELEK
E#&?uuﬁl\ CRET AR E R E R &AL Es
REIMEEERBRERERASEREENE
BRAEHRE - EREEZECEREETRER -
NBITHE -

RRERRE@RNAEFRE 2 THERLNT:
s WMEREEERZZIME K

o EHEBREIM  ABH - BRERERE
RNEk  BERE HalkERRAR -

REREREEGRNAFERT
MEEZHFELEHIMT

TT—RE&

B

nHlf

Attendance/
number of Risk
Management
Committee
meeting held
HEBITRR
EEZEEER
ZIRE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REB ST E(FE) 11
Mr. Yip Mow Lum HBEMEE 11
Mr. Hui Yik Bun FrEw L 1/1
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AIEMEFEAE 1/1
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B 98 S 11
Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) = e/ NE (T AE) 11
Note: B it -

Appointed on 3 April 2023

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

RZZE-_=ZFNA=ZAEZE

101



Corporate Governance Report

TRER/KRE

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, together with four
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong Ting
Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023). Mr. Yip Mow Lum is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among others,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s strategy; reviewing
the Board’s diversity policy, as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board’s diversity policy, and the progress on achieving
the objectives; identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO; and determining the policy for
nomination of Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the structure, size, diversity of composition and
succession of the Board;

° reviewed the independence of the independent non-
executive Director; and

° made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors.
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A Nomination Committee meetings were held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

EEnA

Name of Director

RAZBERAFERT
ZHFREEIIMT

1
D
>F
23

Attendance/
number of
Nomination
Committee
meeting held
HEBITRE
ZEEER
ZRE

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman) ERMNEE(FE) 11
Mr. Yu Yun Kong R EM 5 £ 1/1
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun RAITEHE R R A& 11
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 4 S A 11
Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) =g e N B (B A7) 11
Note: Mt -

Appointed on 3 April 2023
Nomination Policy

The nomination policy aims to set out the nomination criteria
and procedures to nominate, select and appoint (including the
re-election thereof) suitable candidates to be a director of the
Company.

The selection criteria in assessing the suitability of potential
candidates includes, but not limited to, their character
and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
experience, expertise and measurable objectives set out in the
board diversity policy.

The nomination procedures for each appointment and re-
election of Directors shall be evaluated using a substantially
similar process and shall be fair and transparent. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy to
ensure its effectiveness.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely,
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, and four independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun,
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla
(appointed on 3 April 2023). Mr. Yu Yun Kong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, among others,
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; considering
salaries or fees paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group; ensuring that no Director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration; and
reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation to
the Board;

o reviewed the current remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management and made
recommendation to the Board; and

° reviewed the terms of the Director’s service contract and
letter of appointment and made recommendation to the
Board.
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Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
Year are set out in note 10 to the financial statements in this
annual report. The Directors’ emoluments are determined
with reference to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and the prevailing market rates. The emolument
policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the basis
of their performance, qualifications and competence, as well
as market trends. The work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year included the review and approval of
remuneration scheme of the Group and the remuneration of all
Directors and submission of the same to the Board.

Two Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the
Year. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as
follows:

Esgs

Name of Director

AEEZESTWESRBFRBHANAFRY BT
K10 - BEEME IS EARA ZLEEE -
BAAXRBRRITHEKEMETE - A5EEE
ZHEBRAUBRFEZRE -EERENAR
MEBETL - FHEZEENAFEZTHER
REZ BUARAEFSREAEEZFTHF
ELRMBESEZHM -

FHEARRATERITTMARH  SHE
T2 HERERIIOT

Attendance/
number of
Remuneration
Committee
meeting held
HEBITHMN
ZEE8R
ZRE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REB ST E(FE) 2/2
Mr. Yip Mow Lum BRMEE 2/2
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AITE R 2/2
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B8 e A 2/2
Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) =g/ NEA ) 2/2
Note: B i -

Appointed on 3 April 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Committee
comprises six members, namely, Mr. Hui Yik Bun, an executive
Director and the CEO, together with four independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto
Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong Ting Ting,
Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023), and the Chief Financial
Officer, Ms. Li Wan Mei. Mr. Hui Yik Bun is the chairman of the
ESG Committee.

The major duties of the ESG Committee are to direct and review
the development of the Group’s ESG management policies and
strategies to ensure that they are up-to-date, relevant and meets
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, to monitor the
development and implementation of the Group’s ESG objectives
and to report and make recommendations to the Board.
The ESG Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the ESG Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the ESG objectives, management policies and
strategies of the Group;

° reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness
of the work of the ESG working group, including but not
limited to preparing annual ESG reports, monitoring ESG
performance, identifying ESG risks and implementing the
ESG activities of the Group; and

° reviewed 2023 ESG report and made recommendations to
the Board for approval.

For further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 66 to 91 of this annual report.
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An ESG Committee meeting was held during the Year. RE -HE@NEAREZEERAFEERITT—XE

Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows: ﬁ MEEZHELRSEHINOT:

Attendance/
number of ESG
Committee
meeting held

HE BT
BiE HERER

ZESEE
Name of Director EENR Z IR
./ /|
Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) FERLE(EE) 11
Mr. Yip Mow Lum ERMETE 1/1
Mr. Hui Yik Bun AW EE 11
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun RIEHFT AL 1/1
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph 7 [ 4 S 11
Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) =i/ NEA ) 11
Note: Bt it -
Appointed on 3 April 2023 RZEZ_=FNA=-HEZE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION EERBEE

The Board is responsible for, inter alia, developing and reviewing ZEZ&€ B8 &(HF ) EMEH AR A E’\]/JE
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; ¥EAKRERMER BT NEBEZEL SR
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous M AEMBINIMEESERR  EEME Wﬂ’“
professional development of Directors and senior management; RIEEST/AEZMEERT A AR EME I
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices EHAAGETTRHNBERAERCEEARS
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and FRZHE AL EEARRECHESTEEMN
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and BITELXE AR -

disclosure in the corporate governance report. This corporate

governance report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge

of its corporate governance function.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/SENIOR BEE EREEASHMN
MANAGEMENT

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the TXRINEARFT ZEEZERSRAEIEABNKRE
Directors and senior management of the Company for the Year: & 2 & B 7 :

Number of

persons

HKS$ % 7t A
25,000,001-30,000,000 1

20,000,001-25,000,000 —
15,000,001-20,000,000 —
10,000,001-15,000,000 —
5,000,001-10,000,000 —
1-5,000,000

Total 428

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEREZ

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of BEFEAFERSHHRPBHZUHBRREET
financial statements for each financial period, which give a f{E BV KRR BEEE LA Fit xR AR A
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, and ZMRRAEZHMZ EENELHEE - NERK
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the FEZHBEREE ZEFeRETERER
financial statements for the Year, the Board has selected A2 &R « 4R ENEEEB LR
suitable accounting policies and has applied them consistently, XAEBZ EEEEHERELERE L SHE
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards B - fEH B EA B 2 HE M E:t > Y ERFE
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards which are pertinent to &2 EERFREBIHRE -

its operations and relevant to the financial statements, made

judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and

has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak, the Company Secretary, is an external
service provider and was appointed by the Board. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered and Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute. He reports
to the Chairman and CEO and assists the Board in functioning
effectively. All the Directors could have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary at any time in relation
to their duties and operation of the Board. During the Year, he
undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training to
update his knowledge and skills.

The primary contact person with the Company Secretary during
the Year was Ms. Li Wan Mei, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

During the Year, KPMG, the external auditor of the Group,
provided the following services to the Group:

Service rendered

Fir 12 4 BR %%

RAWE

NREAMERLGBALERINERBIERE BE
FERME - EAREBFAREIMAGTER
SENLERBRHAMERGREFRAAER
SRE -WAEFERITHAZER  LRBE
EZEAMEE MEESHIBERERER
EXQEFEERNARANESKERLRE -
AEE  RAMECZ2ETIRIBNEHZER
Bl AE R E A R RE -

AERERRMENEIEBRBARARAY A
EFEE/E -

B B

AEE AEBZIIBZEMESHRAAEE
BEHEIA T IRTS -

HK$’000
FER

Audit services ERRS

Annual audit FEEZ 1,558
Non-audit services kEZRB

Interim review B 25 ) 247
Taxation service 7% R 7% 35
Total FEE 1,840
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has ultimate responsibility to establish and maintain
adequate risk management and internal control systems and to
review their effectiveness. Hence, such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risk

Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is
primarily responsible for designing and implementing the
policies and procedures of internal controls, while the Board
and the Risk Management Committee oversee the actions of
senior management and review the effectiveness of the controls
established on an annual basis in respect of the financial year.

Risk management of the Group is a continuous process carried
out at all levels of the Group. Each management team is required
to identify the risks in their division faces and classify them into
appropriate categories. All risks identified are given a risk rating
which is evaluated based on the likelihood and consequence
of the risks. Mitigation measures and plans are then developed
based on the control gaps evaluated and the predetermined risk
appetite to manage the risks to an acceptable level.

All risks identified and the corresponding mitigation measures
are recorded in the relevant risk register to facilitate review of the
senior management, the Risk Management Committee and the
Board on an ongoing basis.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function for the Year has been
performed by the Internal Audit Department which has
unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s
business activities and is responsible for quarterly monitoring
and reviews on internal and operational controls. They directly
report to the Chairman of the Board and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Risk Management Committee and the Board have
confirmed that there are no fundamental deficiencies with
material adverse consequences.
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Internal Control System

For the Year, the Board has, through management, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The review covered all material controls over financial,
operational and compliance issues, risk management,
information systems security, the effectiveness of financial
reporting and compliance with the Listing Rules.

In view of the improvements made to the systems and the
appropriate measures taken, the Board considered that the
systems are effective and adequate.

The Board has also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Disclosure of Inside Information
Manual to handle and disseminate inside information to comply
with the requisite inside information disclosure requirements as
specified under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy aims to set out key criteria on payment of
dividends of the Company.

Payment of dividends shall remain to be determined at the
sole discretion of the Board of the Company, except the final
dividend shall be subjected to shareholders’ approval at general
meeting.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia, the operating results, cash flow,
financial condition and capital requirements of the Group and
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The Company’s distribution of dividends shall also be subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles as well as all applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time. The
dividend policy allows the Board to declare special dividends
from time to time in addition to the interim and/or annual
dividends. There is no guarantee that any particular amount of
dividends will be distributed for any specific periods.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
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Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles,
any one or more shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at Head Office
of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
put forward proposal(s) at general meetings in the same
manner.

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice to all shareholders in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the Articles.

Such EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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. Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send in any written enquiries
to the Board for the attention of the Company Secretary
by post to the head office of the Company at 10/F, Wing
On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary would direct the enquiries
received to appropriate Board Member(s) or the Chairman
of the Board Committee(s) who is in charge of the areas of
concern referred therein for further handling. The Board,
assisted by the Company Secretary, would make its best
efforts to ensure that all such enquiries are addressed in a
timely manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’
relationship with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has
compiled a Shareholders Communication Policy and established
various channels of communication with its shareholders, such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company
in a timely manner. The annual general meetings provide an
opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
Moreover, resolutions are proposed at annual general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors and details of the proposed resolutions are
set out in a circular.

The financial and other information relating to the
Group has been published on the websites of the
HKEXnews (https:/www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(https://www.bsgroup.com.hk).

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

s MEFSRETAZEFR

ARABLRRAEFTGREECMNERE
# o RRAIBZEERABIREEAQR AR
EREBATRBHBEPFMNREAKLZERBRKN
E10) AR M EBEW - RAIME S EUWE
ZERNEEBREHRESTEKNERREX
EEBZHBEFZE ST RAFRER
B-EFZQERRWEBYT SBEM
REHEREIESRIEMAEH -

REEME

REARFBERERNEEFEIREERE
ARFCHERRBABRRLETZ ERBHE
BRER MTEFRARERFR R ARA
ZERMBERERELHEBRAS o RETA
HERBEFRAGHREFEIRER - I &
REAFRBRBEFASGLAREREE LB 2
ZR(ERENEFZERRZRER - TR
ERBRZABEHNAERNA -

ERAEBZMBEREAMENCDEHNEES
49 uh (https://www.hkexnews.hk) & 2N 2 &) 48 4
(https://www.bsgroup.com.hk) °

113



Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
while the principal activity of the Group is the provision of
financial services, including securities broking, margin financing,
commodities & futures broking, bullion trading and leveraged
foreign exchange trading.

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

Details of the analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit for the
Year contributed by operating segments are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group, an analysis of the Group’s financial key performance,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 38 to 58 and the environmental
policies can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 66 to 91 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has
a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the
Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders including employees and customers.

The Group provides a harmonious working environment to
employees and ensures all of them are reasonably remunerated.
The Company regularly reviews and updates its policies on
remuneration and benefits, training as well as occupational
health and safety.

The Group has the mission to provide excellent customer service
while maintaining long term profitability and business growth.
The Group pays close attention to various stakeholders and
maintains frequent communication with them, with a view to fully
understanding and listening to their appeals and making positive
responses based on the actual circumstances of the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and affairs of the Group for the Year are set out in the
financial statements on pages 140 to 235 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

To reward all shareholders of the Company for their continued
support over the years, the Board recommended the payment of
a final dividend of 33.00 HK cents per share for the year ended
31 March 2024, subject to the approval of the proposed final
dividend by the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”) to be held on Monday, 19
August 2024. If approved, the final dividend will be paid to
the Company’s shareholders on Monday, 9 September 2024.
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Monday, 26 August 2024 will be entitled to
the proposed final dividend.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM, from Tuesday, 13 August 2024 to Monday, 19
August 2024 (both days inclusive), during this period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the
AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre,
No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 12 August 2024. The AGM will be held on
Monday, 19 August 2024.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED FINAL
DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed,
for the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend, from Friday, 23 August 2024 to
Monday, 26 August 2024 (both days inclusive), during this period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, shareholders should ensure that
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17th
Floor, Far East Finance Centre, No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 22
August 2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 27(c) to the financial statements of this annual
report.
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DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVE

The reserves of the Company are distributable to the equity
shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2024, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$420,848,000 (2023: HK$766,144,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$177,000 (2023: HK$277,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years ended 31 March 2024 are set out in the “Five-
year Financial Summary” section on page 236 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the Year
or subsisted at end of the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the percentage of the Group’s revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest client and the five largest
clients in aggregate were 1.8% and 5.4% (2023: 1.4% and
4.1% respectively) respectively. The Group’s principal activities
are providing securities, commodities and futures brokerage,
margin financing, bullion trading and leveraged foreign exchange
trading financial services. In the Board’s opinion, the Group has
no major suppliers due to the nature of the Group’s principal
activities. Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the chairman, executive Director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, is one of the
Group'’s five largest customers during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, during the Year, none of the Directors nor any of their
close associates nor any shareholders of the Company (which to
the best knowledge of the Directors, who owns more than 5% of
the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme is set out in note 25 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is
to ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Employees’ remuneration are determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experiences,
performance and market pay level.

Details of the Director’'s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the Year are set out in notes 10 and
11 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS 5=

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the WRAFEREEZEAFREHH  ARBZEFAE:
date of this report were:

Executive Directors: HITES:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman) EERMEE(FRE)

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (Chief Executive Officer) AW E(TTRAEE)

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson FoR oK 3 o A

Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHITES:

Mr. Yu Yun Kong R EM £

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun RIEHE R R A&

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 0 S

Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023) BEERENMI(KRZZE_=FNA=AEZF)

In accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of R 1% AN 748 4 = 12 48 Bl £1081{§ » BR ok # %
Association, Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, Mr. Yu Yun Kong 4 - S &)l %4 & & B8 50 4 5 7 FE fE AR SR B
and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph will retire by rotation and, being FAELHERT  HEFEERLESBEE
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming ##fE o

annual general meeting.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management WARFEHRBH KRR ZEZELRSREREZ
of the Company as at the date of this annual report are set outin ~ BEH R AFHRFES0E65HZ [EF R RERE
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section B2 &/ | —&f -

on pages 59 to 65 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done or about the execution of their duty or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Group has arranged
appropriate insurance covers relevant legal actions against the
directors. The level of such insurance coverage is reviewed
annually.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Material Related Party Transactions” as set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statement in this annual report, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or its holding companies or controlling shareholders
or any of its respective subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Material Related Party Transactions” as set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statement in this annual report, no
contract of significance (i) between the Company (or any of
its subsidiaries) and its controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries); or (i) for the provision of services to the Company
(or any of its subsidiaries) by its controlling shareholder (or any of
its subsidiaries) subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Tenancy Agreements

The Group had entered into several tenancy agreements
(as the tenant) with some connected persons, which
constituted connected transactions of the Group under the

Listing Rules:

1.

122

Address of premises

W&

10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central,

Central, Hong Kong

EATREBETRAREEAEIOR

Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 58-60 Queen’s
Road Central, 13-17 Stanley Street, Gentral,
Hong Kong

BERREEAEP58-60% K
TRREBITREARNERE

G/F. & Cockloft, Nos. 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

EETRABEREINUS T RER

1/F, Golden Hill Commercial Building,
Nos. 39-41 Argyle Street, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

BENETHEH9 - 4%
SLEEREIERE

The Entrance (at Left Frontage) of Portion At of
Shops Nos. 6, 7 and 8 on G/F, M/F and 1/F
of Honour House, Nos. 375-381 & 375A-379A
Nathan Road, No. 24 Kansu Street and
Nos. 2-10 Woosung Street, Kowloon

N BT E375-381 )R 375A-379A% -
HEGUR R RBE2105%2BAE
6 TRSRHBAIBACEEELZ
ADES HEZER-B2E

1. HEWHS

THE

Name of counterparty Transaction

(Note 1)

REHAEE
(Hit1)

Victory Beauty Limited
as the landlord

LBAERAA
fER%E

Well Point Limited as
the landlord

ARER A
fFREE

Sea Magic Limited as
the landlord

PHERAA
fER%E

Top Sunshine
Development
Limited as the
landlord

BRERBRAH
fEREE

Fortunate State Limited
as the landlord

ﬁ'ﬁl
=13
ant

NG
BEX

E=S
aF

(Note 2)

Ra
(Hit2)

Tenancy made on 28 January 2022
(monthly rental: HK$1,050,000)

o WE fﬂ
R ANEE &

Egﬁ/\g/$%mﬁ 3*&5

Term of agreement

[E L3

1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024

Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026

(monthly rental: HK$994,000)
RZE-—F—
T4 (AT 1,050,000 )

REBZ=E+-A-+ZHiUZ

M4 ( A 994,000 L)

Tenancy made on 28 January 2022

(monthly rental: HK$400,000)

AZTNBHLZ

ZLZZZERA-HE
“Z-ME=A=+-H

“Z-NERA-BE
“Z-REZR=1-H

1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024

Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026

(monthly rental: HK$400,000)

WZE-ZF-A-+N\Bilix
H A

M4 (A 400,000% )
RZZ-=%+-A-1=8
M4 (A 400,000% )

Tenancy made on 28 January 2022

(monthly rental: HK$230,000)

ZZ__fPR-RE
“Z-ME=A=+-A

“Z-_NFERA-BE
“ZZREZAZT-H

1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024

Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026

(monthly rental: HK$230,000)

RZEZZF-AZ+N\BiuZ
HR4

A% ( A 230,000 7T)
RZE-ZF+-F=1ZH
M%) ( A 230,000 )

Tenancy made on 28 January 2022

(monthly rental: HK$170,000)

ZZZZERA-HE
“Z-ME=A=+-H

“Z-NERA-RAE
“Z-REZR=Z1-H

1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024

Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026

(monthly rental: HK$170,000)

WZE-ZF-A-tN\Bilix
HpA

R4 (A :170,000%7T)
RZZ-=%+-A=-1=8
R4 (A :170,000%7T)

Tenancy made on 28 January 2022

(monthly rental: HK$806,000)

ZZ__fPR-RE
“Z-ME=A=+-A

“Z-_NFERA-BE
“ZZREZAZT-H

1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024

Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026

(monthly rental: HK$806,000)

i e Sl s s AN = H VA4
H A

T4 (A 806,000% )
RZZ-=%+-A-1=8
M4 (A 806,000% L)

ZZ__fPRA-RE
“E-ME=A=+-A

“Z-_NFERA-BE
“ZZREZAZ1-H

AEBEREP)BETHEALIVE
Tﬁ%%%ﬁktﬁ?%ﬁ 1

Value of right-
of-use assets
31 March 2024
HK$'000
EREEEERE
—ECQmE
=ZA=t-H
TER

22,785

9,092

5,226

3,863

18,319
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Value of right-
of-use assets
Name of counterparty Transaction 31 March 2024
Address of premises (Note 1) (Note 2) Term of agreement HK$'000
RRAREEEE
“EomE
RHUFER 25 =ZA=t-H
ES B (Hrit1) (r#2) EES ] TEL
6. 28/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Peaceful Smart Limited ~ Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024 15,691
Central, Hong Kong as the landlord (monthly rental: HK$720,000)
Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026
(monthly rental: HK$685,000)
EBPREHEPNE AL ETAESE RETARAA RZZZZF-A-t/\RiJuz ZE-ZfMA-HE
fEREX 4 (AT :720,000% ) “E-ME=A=1-H
RZEZ=F+-A=+=Riliz ZZ-RmEMA-RZ
T4 (A% 685000% ) ZE-REZRETH
7. 5th to 9th floor and Roof, 79 Pok Fu Lam Road, Realmate Limited as the ~ Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024 11,817
Hong Kong landlord (monthly rental: HK$520,000)
Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026
(monthly rental: HK$520,000)
ARERMETIRSRIELEEXRA BERRRT RZZ-—#-A-t/\Riluyz -T-ZFMA-HZ
FREX (AT 5200008 7T) L =
RZBZ=F+-A-+=Hiuz ZZ-MEMA-RZ
(AT 5200008 T) By =l =
8. Car Parking Space Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, &5S on Great Challenge Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024 450
Lower Ground Floor of Floral Tower, Nos. 1-9 Limited as the (monthly rental: HK$19,800)
Mosque Street, Hong Kong landlord Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026
(monthly rental: HK$19,800)
AREREH RO REAMTIRE BEERAR RZZZZF-A-t)\RiJluz ZE-ZfMA-HE
122834 5R5SHZEEM feh%x B4 (A% 19,8005 ) “E-ME=A=1-H
RZEZ=F+-A=+=Riluz ZZ-REMA-RZ
A4 (AMA:19,8005T) “E-REZfA=t-H
9. Car Parking Space Nos. 2048 and 2049 at 2nd Victory Beauty Limited ~ Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024 295
Basement, The Center, No. 99 Queen’s Road as the landlord (monthly rental: HK$13,000)
Central, Hong Kong Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026
(monthly rental: HK$13,000)
BEEZERETORPRALMTE ZBEBRRA RZZ-—#-A-t)\BiJuyz -Z--FMA-HZ
204820495 & fir FREX (AT 13,0005 7T) ToME=A=+-H
RIBZ=F+-A-+=Hiuz ZZT-MEMA-RZ
(AT 13,0005 7T) Sl g I =
10. All That Car Parking Space No. P3 on Carpark Eastkind Investment Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024 68
Level 9 of Vantage Park, No. 22 Conduit Road, Limited as the (monthly rental: HK$3,000)
Hong Kong landlord Tenancy made on 23 November 2023 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026
(monthly rental: HK$3,000)
EATRERVERHFE RPN MERENL CEREERAA RIZEZZE-A-FN\BFUz ZE-ZEWA-AZ
EREX T4 (A7 : 3,000 ) —EME=A=1-H
RZEZ=F+-A=+=Riliz ZZ-RmEMA-RZ
M4 (A :3,00087T) “E-REZfA=t-H
TOTAL 87,606
@it
Notes: Bt & -
1. Each an associate of Mr. Yip Mow Lum (“Mr. Yip”), 1. ZEEARNRTE RITESHTRG
Chairman, executive Director and controlling shareholder of HEEMALE(ELE N IBE A -
the Company.
2. Monthly rental was exclusive of management fees, 2. BHETAESES R =4 o
government rent and rates.
BIBHZERMEBMERDT | —T =/ _MFFH 123
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2. Financial Services Agreements

The aggregate amounts of interests charged to the
relevant connected persons for the financial services and
the maximum outstanding amounts of financial services
in respect of margin financing and IPO financing to be
provided to the relevant connected persons for the year are

& B AR A% s R

REE  HABEATRASERHEH
FEREREAAFAZERE 22 mRS
KHMzFERKREEERERBEH W
T

set out as below:

Name of connected person

BEALRA

Annual cap

FELR

Amount for

Maximum

amount for
the Year ~ Amount for
the annual cap Payment from/ HK$'000 the Year
HK$'000 to the Group KEE HK$'000
EELRSE REELH/ BEeE KEESE
THT FFREEZEE THEL TAR

Mr. Yip and his associates, together as
“Mr. Yip's Group”

EREREABEA
GEErEEE]

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (“Mr. Hui") and his
associates

AREEE(FEEDREBEA

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson
(“Mr. Chan”) and his associates,
together as “Mr. Chan’s Group”
RoxattE(HEE)REBEA:
nBREEEE]

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (“Mr. Yu") and his
associates

FOUELE(RTENREBEA

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun (“Mr. Szeto”) and his
associates

AEEFTE(RELEDRAREA

124

IPO Annual Cap
BERAREEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FRFE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BERAREREEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FRFE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BERAREEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FRFE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BRRAREEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
RFREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BRDRAZEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

4,000,000 Advance from the Group
REEZ B
1,000,000 Advance from the Group
REEZE2H
Interest paid to the Group
XAFAEEZF R

100,000 Advance from the Group
AEE 2B
10,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZBH
Interest paid to the Group
INFAEEZHE

20,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZE2H

10,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZEBH
Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZHE

20,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZBH

10,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZE2H
Interest paid to the Group
XNFREEZHE

20,000 Advance from the Group
REEZBR

10,000 Advance from the Group
REEZBR
Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZH R

50

322,588

14,360

551

50

50

144
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Maximum
amount for
Amount for the Year ~ Amount for
the annual cap Payment from/ HK$'000 the Year
HK$'000 to the Group ’EE HK$'000
Name of connected person Annual cap EELRSE REALRA/ ERtE LEESE
BEALHZ FELR THET AFrEEzEE TEL TET

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph IPO Annual Cap

20,000 Advance from the Group -

(“Mr. Ling) and his associates ERRARBEEELR AEEZBH
REBEE(RLEDREBZEA Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group -
FEEELR AEEZBH
Interest paid to the Group -

Note:

Mr. Yip, Mr. Hui and Mr. Chan are executive Directors of the
Company. Mr. Yu, Mr. Szeto and Mr. Ling are independent non-
executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Chan is a nephew of Mr.
Yip.

3. Brokerage Services Agreements

The aggregate amount of brokerage commission income
by the relevant connected persons for the brokerage
services provided by the Group for the Year are set out as
below:

Name of connected person

BEATHSR

SNFAREEZHE

g
BEE HARERREERRARNITES -

RELE  RAIERERELRERKNRRBILIEHR
TEE - BREEREEEZING -

R RIR 1R

AREE  HEBEA LR ARERHE 2L
KRBELCMERABBEHIIMT

Amount for

Annual Cap the Year
HK$’000 HK$’000
FELR rXFESHE
TET FHET

Mr. Yip’s Group
ErEgH

Mr. Chan’s Group
Bk o & £ [E

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

10,000 516
2,900 1
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126

Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions were:

(@) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favorable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

() entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

FEBERZZFEEX

BYNITEECER LIBERESS
WHERZERXS:

(a) AEBEZEER—REHBEPE

k%

b) R—BEBEEKIBRTERAEE
MTHREBUE=TT ZIGFETT
I54

© BIRERSEOIERRHET
DT AR R AARD R R F 28
26 -

Bl S

ARBZEMCERE  UREBEBBER
BRI 300058 (RERNDIESL MK E
MESAHBHAINERER] A2RE
B EETEN A B2 B R E74055% [ #
REB(ETRADAAFEBEIZNZ
BN ARBEZ B EREIZEH
W& o RIBE WA RAFE14A56(F - X BUAD
ERAKEEMBRBECHBEREXSELH
BEBRESHERNEWIEREBR KM -
AR (A B SR P B 33 A% BURM BK A BI X o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. Those related party transactions which constituted
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
on pages 122 to 126 of this annual report, have complied with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, certain transactions
are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules as they are (i) below the de minimis threshold
under Rule 14A.76(1) or (ii) financial assistances received on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and
were for the benefit of the Group and no security over the assets
of the Group was granted in respect of those transactions under
Rule 14A.90.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

BBL XS

AEBRBPEBBEPETCERNER TS
CHBHRAFREAMBREMFIIA - 1R
BETRABRBERS HEBRERXS (FER
RERBI22E126B [BIER S N BEHER S
—f) 2B A RSB BT EMRBIE14AE - K
i EFTRXPEREETEMRANE4AZENRE
BT BRABERZ)ERIREFE14A.76(1) &
E’J?fﬁﬁ%@ﬁaﬂ@?%(ii)ﬁﬁuﬁzﬁxH’Jﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁmﬁf
MEAEEREBRAFABIFTALAEEF
&Iﬁﬁ‘f%MAQOIETZEZI"%TEH‘?$§EK@
MEE -

RRARAEERBESTRAERALQF
EFAEEEE ZRD - HERGOR
BERcEERXR

A

“HWHE=A=+—H &R 7%%&?%
7 ERARR B ARE AR (ZGE
K B 5 B (KR8 25 S B E AR 1)) XV &R P 5

a0 %
Nl

T

ZEFR)ZEN HERODKESTEEATE
mMoKke MzEERLABRERRE(GE

KB EGRG)EIS2ER T RBEZELMAL
o IRBHRIAESF LR T TR DD

(EMBETAESTETERXSNFRETANER
ETFRNERITHEARARA MRS K

N
KA
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Interests in shares of the Company (the “Shares”)

Name of Director

EEH BEMEE

Nature of interest

RAQXTF R (TRHE)) 2 #E®

Approximate
percentage of

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note 1)

ERMWEEMN 1) corporation
XEEEER

Mr. Yip Mow Lum

BRMESE ERBEAA
Mr. Hui Yik Bun Beneficial owner
FrEW LS EREEA
Mr. Yu Yun Kong Beneficial owner
REM & EREAA
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun Beneficial owner
EEE b A ERBEEA
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph Beneficial owner
% B 5t ERERAA
Note:

Interest in a controlled

Beneficial owner

Long/short Number of the issued

positions Shares voting Shares

HERT

RERG

B/ KRR B4 8B ZBRED L

(%)

Long position 834,568,000 49.17%
=y

Long position 133,000,000 7.83%
Sy

Long position 600,000 0.03%
iR

Long position 1,108,829 0.07%
e

Long position 669,666 0.04%
A

Long position 210,700 0.01%
e

M it -

834,568,000 Shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited, 834,568,000l h T RAAIEBRER A G (EEE T
a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the Chairman of the EEXMNELELZEHRBZRANEFHE - At - EHEM
Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to be interested in these AR B(EEFER B EEH) G AR ZZ D T

Shares by virtue of the SFO.

128
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
PARTIES OTHER THAN DIRECTORS OR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2024, the parties (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange are as follows:

Nature of interest

EaitE

Name of Shareholder

BREMR

Long/short positions

#/ %R

BREXHBEEN R_F_NEF=ZA=1+—
B ARAIZREFHESTBRAEBMEEANLRF]
o A AAREAE (R(GEHF R BMEHEHD)EXV
mAiE 2 E ) 2 EMRD - BERDRESS
BRECTAEDZIAR  MEFEDIREZER
ARARECE 7 MK BB R H) £ 35216 18 T B
wRzECMARE  AREFETICHAE
ARBMBRZAzEmIAE -

RRARESHBRSTHRABUML
RALQ T R 5 K8 B RG28 s &K

)=

RIZE-NF=A=1+—H AQRFEELES
TTHRABUIALTRBRGRBERD R ESL
THREIARE MZERZIABRERARF
RIBE(EE R EIEG)EIGIEREEAERTZ
ZRMARRE  KESTMEEAAE RBRAT
2RSS AR

Number of Approximate
Shares and  percentage of
underlying the issued

Shares voting Shares

ROBER HEBTRERSG
HERH#E ZERED

Beneficial owner

EnlBA

New Charming Holdings Limited (Note)

HERAERBRAR (M 2) HA

Note:

834,568,000 Shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited,
a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the chairman of the
Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to have an interest in
these Shares.

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

Long position

834,568,000 49.17%

834,568,000k R ¥ RAFIERBR AR (EFEE

FEEMELEZEREBZRARNFE - B - BEM
EERB AR ZERNDTHEAER
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the
parties (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, its holding
company or any of their subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board of Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, there has been sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section on pages 92 to 113 of this annual report.

BREXFIEEEN RZE_NF=ZA=+—
B BEXMNALERRQARESIRESTHRAER
BRI AR sk B (D - A RN AR A
BIE(EAEL B EIEN)EI6IER T EAERTZ
ERfrm o skBAEME XA ARR KRB
FrzfEmEmekxe -

EEBARDHEST ZEF

RAFEREMER  ARF - HERAFR
BREZEAMBRATAMELBEM LY FE
SERBARRRSEMEMERZ BHSLE
HmER -

ARARERE

REAARAINSZARERRBESEEMA
BEAFRBAY  ARAEHTROTABEB
BHHARFTER  HALMRAUARE 2 TR

ARFREEL -

EEEHK

AFEEAARARRY EF I FEREBENE
MEBEEXBABZERRITHAELN -
TEER

ARAMHRMZ TECEERTRENLFR
FRENMAZ[EERRE]—H °
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to discharging its corporate social
responsibility as well as protecting the environment by
minimizing the negative impact of the Group’s existing business
activities on the environment. Details of which are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 66 to
91 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
have been audited by Messrs. KPMG, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs.
KPMG, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG Certified
Public Accountants, as the independent auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares
of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

BRERERRHE

AEBFNRBETELELEER AREE
BREAKSERAEXGEHHRENAEZEN
RERE - AAFBHNANFRFOEINAN
R -HEhERMS -

BRABUFHUITES2BLMY

ARREWESBLIFRTESRIE EMAR
FIBHEREBUMEH 2 FRER - ARAR
RERBIYUFNTEFHIREL -

B % BE

BE_T_NEF=-A=+-HILFEZVBHR
REHRESHEAMEHAAESHMERZ -
ESHEHMEBMANEERRBFRGH
REERME HEERYBERTER -EFE
BREERRBFASLIRZ2EBEFSHE
AEBARARB B L ZBENZ RASR -

BRECEEBBRER

MARFREAEBEWE  BH - HE R
2 5 17 5 7 B AN AR 2. A ) 2 Bt 5
e ERESEREEAL -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES EE2€ BB ARENSEE
FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of ZZ€EASRESVHEMEEE LA T
accounts for each financial period, which gives a true and fair KMBAEE 2 EHERN  ZHBEERE LR
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and E27 KR - REHEBE T -_WE=/F=1+—H
cash flows for that period. In preparing the accounts for the IFFEEERR SE@CERTEHERS
year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors has selected EZ &€zt K - (L EEA IR~ HI B M(HEF
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, WEEKEBELLEERLUKA -EFC8ER
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and 7FEEZ ST NEBERAIEERIMHE
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern  ZN£ B ~ BF #& k0 -

basis. The Board of Directors is responsible for keeping proper

accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at

any time, the financial position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board REREES

Hui Yik Bun HITEFFITHAE
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer TEW

Hong Kong B

24 June 2024 —E-MFEARA=-+MH
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e

To the shareholders of
Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bright
Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 140 to
235, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2024 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition: Brokerage commission income

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 178.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Brokerage commission income represented Our audit procedures to assess the recognition
53% of the total revenue of the Group for the of brokerage commission income included the

year ended 31 March 2024,

Brokerage commission income arising from o
brokerage trading of securities, commodities
and futures is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are
executed.

Where the customer is given rights to
additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights
are utilised by the customers or expire.
Management judgement is involved in
determining the appropriate amount of the ¢
deferred brokerage commission income
mainly based on historical deferred rebate
utilisation rate.

The commission income subject to volume
rebate arrangements is recognised once
it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. .

We identified the recognition of brokerage
commission income as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk that the o
timing of recognition of revenue and the
amount recognised could be manipulated to
meet specific targets or expectations.

134

following:

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to revenue recognition.
For the key underlying systems used for
the processing of transactions in relation to
the brokerage commission income, trading
volumes, commission rates and volume
rebates, this included involving our information
technology specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of a selection of relevant key internal controls
over access to these systems and controls
over data and change management;

developing an expectation of brokerage
commission income and deferred revenue for
the current year based on our consideration
of trading volumes, commission rates and
historical data, comparing our expectation
with the actual brokerage commission income
recorded by the Group and investigating
any significant differences between our
expectation and the amounts recorded by the
Group;

performing retrospective review on the material
rights estimated to be utilised by customers
by comparing the estimated deferred rebate
utilisation rate in the prior year against the actual
utilisation rate in the current year,

assessing the appropriateness of the estimated
deferred rebate utilisation rate by comparing with
the historical deferred rebate utilisation and our
understanding of the business; and

comparing details of journal entries raised during
the current year which affected revenue with
underlying documentation on a sample basis.
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Valuation of accounts receivable from margin clients

Refer to notes 17 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 193 to 195

and pages 211 to 227.

The Key Audit Matter

At 31 March 2024 accounts receivable from
margin clients totalled HK$4,810 million,
representing 68% of the Group’s total
assets.

Margin clients are required to pledge
securities as collateral in order to obtain
margin loans. When determining the fair
value of the accounts receivable at the
reporting date, management evaluate
the margin loan portfolios on a fair value
basis by primarily considering the value of
collateral, which principally comprised listed
securities, with reference to the quoted
prices, to the extent of the outstanding loan
amounts. The Group classified accounts
receivable from margin clients as financial
assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss (‘FVPL).

In cases of collateral shortfalls, management
exercises judgement by taking into account
other factors such as available remedies for
recovery and the financial situation of the
borrower.

We identified assessing valuation of
accounts receivable from margin clients
as a key audit matter because of its
significance in the context of the Group’s
financial statements and also because of the
judgement exercised by the management in
determining the inputs used in the valuation.

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
accounts receivable from margin clients included
the following:

o understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of the key internal controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of accounts
receivable from margin clients and collateral
shortfalls and valuation procedures;

o understanding the business model of
margin financing business and assessing
the classification of accounts receivable
with reference to the prevailing accounting
standard;

o assessing the existence of collateral by
comparing the underlying securities held
as collateral as extracted from the Group’s
records with custodian statements from
brokers or clearing houses on a sample basis;

o identifying collateral shortfalls, which affect the
valuation of accounts receivable from margin
clients, by comparing the carrying value of
individual accounts receivable to the value
of underlying securities with reference to the
publicly available market prices on a sample
basis;

o in cases of material collateral shortfalls,
assessing the available remedies for recovery
such as the fair value of the assets placed
with the Group and other possible sources of
repayment from the borrower; and

o assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Po Shan.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AETEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_Z-_OF=ZA=+—HIEFECABTIT)

2024 2023
—E-WEF —E=F
Note $’000 $°000
Bt 5 Fr T
e >
Revenue A 5 846,218 881,733
Other income H At i 7
— Interest income calculated using — REBMNELHED
effective interest rate method BB A 6 294,685 196,721
— Interest income calculated using — REMFEFED
other method B U A 6 40,528 36,481
— Others — HAth 6 74,762 92,955
Other net loss Hfh & B F58 7 (19,971) (8,674)
1,236,222 1,199,216
Staff costs BIKA 8(b) (139,415) (120,120)
Amortisation and depreciation BiERITE (66,416) (74,488)
Net charges for expected credit losses B Hi{z B 718 % 58 (1,272) (752)
Other operating expenses Hibh & X 8(c) (164,216) (197,459)
Profit from operations rE@mA 864,903 806,397
Finance costs B 7 B AR 8(a) (259,855) (114,202)
Profit before taxation R Bt A a R 8 605,048 692,195
Income tax Frig &t 9 (46,206) (71,600)
Profit for the year FRER 558,842 620,595
Other comprehensive income for SREMEEKHE :
the year:
ltems that may be reclassified HiErgEmoEs
subsequently to profit or loss B=mrIEE
— Exchange reserve — E N FEE (333) 285
Total comprehensive income EEBRRELCFREZE
attributable to equity WME
shareholders for the year 558,509 620,880
Earnings per share BEREF
Basic (cents) A ML) 12 32.93 36.56
Diluted (cents) e (L) 12 32.93 36.56

The notes on pages 146 to 235 form part of these financial 55146 Z= 2358 2 M 71 i Ak th 81 # R = E AP &
statements. Details of dividends declared for the year are set out % © FR T R I B 2 =15 SR 5£27(b) ©
in note 27(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A B IR 3R

At 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZB-ME=ZA=+—B(AETIHIR)

2024 2023
—ENEF ==
Note $’000 $’000
B 5 T T
' e A
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB NREE 14 112,094 88,667
Intangible assets BEEE 15 5,783 5,783
Deferred tax assets BELEHIREE 26(b) 3,761 801
Other receivables, deposits and HiEWHIE ek
prepayments A B 18 15,530 2,941
Other assets Hi&E 16 55,239 41,843
Total non-current assets  _ : *RBEESE 192407 140,035
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JiE I BR 3R 17 6,349,686 6,971,713
Other receivables, deposits and HthprsrE ek
prepayments TET R IE 18 20,338 36,914
Financial assets at fair value through R FEFFABZEZ
profit or loss TREE 51,578 66,012
Financial assets at amortised cost HHEKAGFECEREE 162 943
Tax recoverable Al AR [B] 75 18 26(a) 23,010 9,222
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEYD 19(a) 441,275 504,531
Total current assets ABEEHAE 6,886,049 7,589,335
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable JE 1 BR 3R 21 1,702,548 1,464,115
Accrued expenses and other payables J& &t 5 5z & H b JE (< 2B 22 47,595 51,648
Bank loans RITER 23 3,775,000 4,409,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 50,789 54,322
Current taxation BV AR % 18 26(a) 1,499 6,718
Total current liabilites ~~ #®af#es 5577431 5,985,803
Netcurrentassets  #“#&&E®E® 1,308618 1,608,632
Total assets less current liabilites EEREBERABAR 1,501,025 1,748,567
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Accrued expenses and other payables & 51 B 32 & H {th j& (- 70 18 22 7,640 608
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 49,110 8,545
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELE 56,750 9,153
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,444,275 1,734,414
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e R R R

At 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZT_NMEF=A=+—BAETIIR)

2024 2023

—EMEF —E-=F

Note $’000 $’000

M 5 Fr T
'/ /! ! |

EQUITY e

Share capital % 2 27 509,189 509,189

Share premium I% 9 & (& 27 388,020 738,020

Exchange reserve P 7 1 27(d) - 333

Merger reserve & HiEE 27(d) (20,000) (20,000)

Retained profits IR & & 27 567,066 506,872

TOTAL EQUITY EmAE 1,444,275 1,734,414

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on &K EEFE N T PUF X A Z+ IUHt & I =% #
24 June 2024. iz -

Directors

2

Yip Mow Lum Hui Yik Bun
ERM W

The notes on pages 146 to 235 form part of these financial S5146ZE 2358 2 M s M B IL F B # R &k E A &8

IN o

statements. 7]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZ-WNF=A=1+—HILEFEABTIR)

Share Share  Exchange Merger Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits  Total equity
B R 3% E BN SHRE REEF BHAE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i3 T T T T i Tr
! ' ! ' [ ' [ | |
At 1 April 2022 R-ZE--£NA-H 509,189 738,020 48 (20,000) 1,244,114 2,471,371
Changes in equity for the year ended HEZ-F=-=&
31 March 2023: =ZA=t+-AL
EEvERZE:
Profit for the year FR&EF - - - - 620,595 620,595
Other comprehensive income Hh2EME - - 285 - - 285
Total comprehensive income FREENRAE
for the year - - 285 - 620,595 620,380
Dividend paid during the year FRRMHRE 27(0) - - - - (1357,837)  (1,357,837)
At 31 March 2023 R-B-=%
ZRA=+-8H 509,189 738,020 333 (20,000) 506,872 1,734,414
At 1 April 2023 RZB-=§mA-A 509,189 738,020 333 (20,000) 506,872 1,734,414
Changes in equity for the year ended HE-E_If
31 March 2024: =RF=t-HL
FEZERZD:
Profit for the year FREH - - - - 558,842 558,842
Other comprehensive income HtzENE - - (333) - - (333)
Total comprehensive income FRE2ERHAE
for the year - - (333) - 558,842 558,509
Dividend paid during the year FRRAHRE 27(0) - (350,000) - - (498,648) (848,648)
At 31 March 2024 RZB-m¥
ZA=t+-H 509,189 388,020 - (20,000 567,066 1,444,275

The notes on pages 146 to 235 form part of these financial $F146Z= 2358 2 Wi BRI E T BHRE E P I
statements. e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
LERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_Z-_OF=ZA=+—HIEFECABTIT)

2024 2023
—E-WEF —T=%F
Note $’000 $°000
Bt 5 Fr T
S S
Operating activities RESEE
Cash generated from operations REXBEMEBRE 19(b) 1,473,548 2,119,058
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEENEH (68,173) (54,840)
Net cash generated from RETBMBEESEE
_.operating activities .. 1,405,375 2,064,218
Investing activities RETEE
Purchase of financial assets at fair value B ERAFEFAEBZRZZ
through profit or loss TEREE (15,052) (108,861)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R A FEFABZ 2
at fair value through profit or loss SmMEEMMSHNA 14,368 89,135
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HE®%¥ - BE KRB
and equipment FT 1S 3k 18 2,940 2,742
Payment for purchase of property, BEYWE BER
plant and equipment BEENEN (1,912) (15,308)
Dividend received 2R B 2,205 2,083
Interest received 2 A 335,268 233,306
Net cash generated from investing RETBHFRERETFH
activities 337,817 203,097
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEBREIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-_Z-_OF=ZA=+—HIEFECABTIITR)

2024 2023
—E-ME —ZT=-=
Note $’000 $°000
Bt & Fr Tt

I
Financing activities MEETE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEHEHE 2 ERLD (53,857) (57,083)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHERe 2R EHD (1,821) (1,444)
Net repayment of bank loans RITERERFHE (634,000) (748,358)
Dividend paid BB (848,648) (1,357,837)
Interest paid =XRPUPS) (258,034) (112,758)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEFARESFE (1,796,360) (2,277,480)
Net decrease in cash and cash REeRBEEEEY

equivalents WA FE (53,168) (10,165)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April AT A—BZzBER

REEEY 504,531 524,716

Effect of foreign exchange rates ExgFHsoLE

changes (10,088) (10,020)
Cash and cash equivalents at R=ZA=+—-HZBE2K

31 March ReEEEY 19(a) 441,275 504,531

The notes on pages 146 to 235 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 SRR B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEBI - ETIIR)

146

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(“the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 4 August 2009 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman lIslands. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Material
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br 1& SRR M &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B % & 5=

2

BIESETREEFRAF | —F

CAETTEIR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except that certain financial instruments are stated
at their fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs require management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that year, or in the year of the revision and future
years if the revision affects both current and future
years.
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B RS R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEBI - ETIIR)

2

148

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©)

Basis of consolidation

U]

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii))
unless the investment is classified as held for
sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br 1& SRR M &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B % & 5=

2

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

CAETTEIR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations involving entities
under common control

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses as if they
had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or business first came under
the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or
business are recognised at the carrying values
prior to the common control combination.

The consolidated financial statements include
the results of each of the combining entities
or business from the earliest date presented
or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under the control of the
controlling parties, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at
the previous reporting date or when they first
came under control of the controlling parties,
whichever is shorter.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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CAETTEIR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Over the
Lease term

—  Properties leased for own use

Shorter of the
unexpired term of
lease and 3 years

—  Leasehold improvements

—  Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years
—  Office equipment 5 years
—  Furniture and fixtures 5 years
—  Computers and software 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.
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B RS SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEBEI - LBITTIHIR)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

®

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include club and school debentures.

The intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)). Amortisation
begins when the asset is available for use, i.e. when
it is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended.
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Debentures are amortised over the unexpired
term

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as
set out above.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities
Investments

Investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see note 2(p)(iii)).

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

U]

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit loss from financial instruments
The Group recognises expected credit losses
allowance (“ECL”) on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments).

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non —
recycling) and derivative financial assets, are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, accounts
receivable and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;
and

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

156

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U]

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

For accounts receivable, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, financial assets at
amortised cost, and cash and cash equivalents,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

2

BEAXASTEHE®)

(h FEEBEREERE®R)

(i)

EMTANGFEBRE)

BHEEERA G E (&)
MARREEREREREZ &
EHHAAASREEYERERR
ZEREAHNEE -

REEEMEEBRE K%
BeftEEEFMNHBZKA
KTHFTAAESzAEME
BESFENER BRBEHE
EEMF - BN R RKEH
RS TEORI B B Y o

EHEEEBRRAUATEER

=

= .

- REARBEEER &
BHRRERRI12(E A
WNATRE A Z BHEMM
BRZER &

- 2HBEHEEEBE ER
EABHEEEBBER
ZBEZEHFEHANRE

AREENEHMER B
8 o

JE W B AR~ EoAl R URR - 1R
& KB FR h%%&ﬁ#
%Z%ﬂﬁ@u&ﬁ%&ﬁi
FEY ASEEAZEM2
EABEMEEBRNERER
BREERMTANEERBRE
IRTERIR KB LTt - BIVERIG o
Bt BRBREESANEH
EMEEERNESRITE -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2023/24



Notes to the Financial Statements
Br 1& SRR M &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B % & 5=

2

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

CAETTEIR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant

deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U]

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for investments
in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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CAETTEIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-
impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(p)iii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower

will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U]

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-

impaired financial assets (Continued)

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of loss allowance in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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(B = EEBEI - LBITTIHIR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

intangible assets; and

investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

BrRSETREEFRAF |

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

162

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the period
in which the reversals are recognised.

Accounts receivable and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an

unconditional right to receive consideration. A right

to receive consideration is unconditional if only the

passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised

before the group has an unconditional right to receive

consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@)

)

(k)

@)

Accounts receivable and other receivables
(Continued)

Except for accounts receivable arising from cash
clients, margin clients and subscriptions of new
shares in IPO which are stated at financial assets
measured at FVPL; receivables are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, and demand deposits with banks. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(h)(i).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(1)

(i

(i)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at the grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

Where the Company enters into equity-
settled share-based payment arrangements
involving employees of subsidiaries, the cost is
recognised in “Investment in subsidiaries” and
credited to the “Share option reserve” over the
vesting period. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the vested option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

2

BEASTEHE®)

m) FrE#H

AEZZAEHEe @SN EEE
EHRBAEERBEED - WHHA
RELHREERREZESHHERS
R ESRREMEERERE
BEREaER AR - EARRRD
B H A 2 W an ok B X R a

7

B

BD 35 74 7B 45 51 7K 4 7 AR WA IR
FIR R4 B RIS R4 2 B 4B 5 2 B
HEHE 2B SEE - AR BB
4 BB A 2 FE T % -

ERENIAE E R BE DRI RE AT B
KERMEREZRE B ER®RE
MZEERBRREERAREZ
MeEZB - ELRBEENRER
BRANEBEEMABARELSL -

165



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 SRR B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEBI - ETIIR)

2

166

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets
are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

(0)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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2
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant
transactions are executed. Volume rebate to
customers is recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Where the customer is given rights
to additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights are
utilised by the customers or expire.

Income from bullion trading
Income from bullion trading is recognised when
the related services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Handling and settlement fee income
Handling and settlement fee income are
recognised when the related services are
rendered.
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2

170

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Investment trading

Income from investment including realised fair
value gains or losses on trading investment is
recognised on a trade date basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in
other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding
or placing of assets on behalf of its customers.
These assets arising thereon are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(8) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parents.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third party.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of the Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

2

BEAXASTEHE®)

() BEAL#E)

(if)

ﬁfﬁTﬁMﬂﬂ%ﬁ Al E
BEANEEARE

(1)

ZERHERNEEBR—
BsKER T(Eﬂ%tﬁ
A B AR KRR B
AR ZEEABE) -

BAS—EREB
XAMﬁitiﬁﬁ
%%%%@ﬁT%
AZEE R NFHAE

| > of

_I )ﬂﬂfii} —‘l )ﬂﬂfﬁ}

B> M 30 mE |

He D

MAMERY AR —E=
ZRBLE -

BREBE=FE
¥ mMR—E
Pl R o/NE]

:m)a

kil kol

26
vl

ND%
 odE g
|H9%

D
o

ZEBAANEELERE
EARMEZEEIERRT
AR S BE B 1R AR A A

g -

S (i) TR P &8 B A
CRZE S

i&t
‘ﬂﬂfii}
gt
#m

oy
Het
S

BB ALHZE
RBEEAFENAEZE
BEHZERZERAZ
FTEEREAB

ZERIZEEMESHE
ZIEMKBRARAEE
IAREEZHRAREEE
ZEEABRSE -

FAMALTZOARREEZERR

iSSEE)

X5
FEZANTHIZBALT

FEIFKEKE -

172 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2023/24



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

New and amended HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRS and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group as follows:

—  HKFRS 17, “Insurance contracts”

— Amendments to HKAS 8, “Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting estimates”

— Amendments to HKAS 1, “Presentation of
financial statements” and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, “Making materiality judgements:
Disclosure of accounting policies”
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3

174

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@)

(ii)

New and amended HKFRSs (Continued)

— Amendments to HKAS 12, “/ncome taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction”

— Amendments to HKAS 12, “/ncome taxes:
International tax reform — Pillar Two model
rules”

None of these developments has had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented in this annual report.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment
and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come into effect
from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Once the
Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an employer can
no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived
from its mandatory contributions to mandatory
provident fund (“MPF”) scheme to reduce the long
service payment (“LSP”) in respect of an employee’s
service from the Transition Date (the abolition of
the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP
in respect of the service before the Transition Date
will be calculated based on the employee’s monthly
salary immediately before the Transition Date and the
years of service up to that date.
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3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(ii) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting

implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism (Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides accounting
guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism
and the abolition of the mechanism. In particular,
the guidance indicates that entities may account
for the accrued benefits derived from mandatory
MPF contributions that are expected to be used to
reduce the LSP payable to an employee as deemed
contributions by that employee towards the LSP.

However, applying this approach, upon the
enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in June
2022, it is no longer permissible to apply the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 that
previously allowed such deemed contributions to be
recognised as reduction of service cost (negative
service cost) in the period the contributions were
made; instead these deemed contributions should be
attributed to periods of service in the same manner
as the gross LSP benefit.

The Group has assessed the implications of this
new guidance on the above accounting policies and
has decided to change those accounting policies to
conform with the guidance. However, it did not have
a material impact on either the consolidated-level or
company-level statement of financial position as at 31
March 2024 and 2023.
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4.

176

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following accounting
judgements and significant sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

()

Revenue recognition: Brokerage commission
income

As explained in policy note 2(p), brokerage
commission income is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are executed.
Where the customer is given rights to additional
discounted or free services in the future as a result
of paying brokerage commission, an appropriate
amount of the brokerage commission income is
deferred and recognised when those material rights
are utilised by the customers or expire. Management
considers the deferred commission plan gives
clients rights to additional discounted or free
services in the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission and an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income should be deferred.
Management’s judgement and estimates are made in
determining the appropriate amount of commission
income to be deferred, including the estimation of the
utilisation rate of the rebate. Based on the Group’s
experience on its business cycle, management
considered the most recent 36 months’ historical
rebate utilisation in estimating the utilisation rate. It
is considered reasonable based on management’s
experience on business cycle of the Group.
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4.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(ii) Valuation of accounts receivable from margin

clients

Margin clients are required to pledge securities as
collateral in order to obtain margin loans. The Group
classified accounts receivable from margin clients as
financial assets measured at FVPL. When determining
the fair value of the accounts receivable at the
reporting date, management exercised judgement
in determining the inputs used in the valuation.
Management evaluates the margin loan portfolios
on a fair value basis by primarily considering the
value of collateral, which principally comprised listed
securities, with reference to the quoted prices,
to the extent of the outstanding loan amounts. In
cases of collateral shortfalls, management exercises
judgement by taking into account other factors such
as available remedies for recovery and the financial
situation of the borrower to determine the fair value
of accounts receivable from margin clients. Note 29
contains information about the sources of relating to
fair value of financial instruments.
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REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are securities broking,
margin and IPO financings, commodities and futures
broking, bullion trading and leveraged foreign exchange
trading.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as
follows:

A
AEBEIZEBRBLFERL  FRRER

AARERE PAnhkYELEL BB
RZARBERAINERS -

EBEERNBASENT

2024 2023
—E-WEF —T-=F
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
1
Revenue from contracts with EBUBEHREERF155
customers within HERAZEFEHWKWA
the scope of HKFRS 15
Brokerage commission Kems 446,155 598,269
Revenue from other sources Hfth 3ROR K A
Dealing income from bullion trading EeBRIBA 6,284 4,876
Dealing income from leveraged foreign BERAIERSHHA
exchange trading 770 948
Interest income from financial assets FEWAKEE A FEFAEB
carried at FVPL mZARINEZEREE
— Margin clients —HFREP 391,994 276,863
— Subscriptions of news shares in IPO —REBEXARE ST 1,015 777
400,063 283,464
846,218 881,733

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer
had transactions which exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and does not disclose
information about the remaining performance obligation
that have original expected durations of one year or less.
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6 OTHER INCOME 6 Hidz=
2024 2023
—ENE — =
$°000 $°000
T FT
[ [ [ |
Interest income from F B WA KBH
Financial assets carried at BREBHERAYER2ERMEE
amortised cost
— Authorised institutions — RO E 276,443 188,762
— Others — HAb 18,242 7,959
294,685 196,721
Financial assets carried at FVPL UEAFEFAEBRZZAR
IR ERmMEE
— Cash clients - BexEF 40,528 36,481
335,213 233,202
Handling and settlement fees FEBREEER 62,563 76,192
Dividend income i B Uk A 2,205 2,083
Government grants XS #6 Bh 37 2,585
Sundry income HMIAW A 9,957 12,095
409,975 326,157
7 OTHER NET LOSS 7 HEMEEFHE
2024 2023
—E-WF —E-=F
$’000 $'000
Fr T

Realised (loss)/gain from EER(EBEE) WmKE
— Financial assets at fair value through — BAVEFAERZ
profit or loss TRIEE (849) 1,466

Unrealised loss from REFEIERE
— Financial assets at fair value through — BAVEFAERZ
profit or loss SREE (14,269) (4,755)
(15,118) (3,289)
Net foreign exchange loss ANEE E5 18 5 5 (4,494) (4,356)
Loss on disposals of property, LEME BMEK
plant and equipment REBE (18) (69)
Error trades arising from dealings HERS (13) (12)
Others Hh (328) (948)
(19,971) (8,674)
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8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8 BRFATIER

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: B % AR A 2 FOBR T 51 %18 -

2024 2023
—E-MmE —E=F
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
(a) Finance costs B 7 B AR
Interest expenses on AT & IEF R
— Bank loans for IPO financing — BRARHEEREZ
RITERX - 106
— Other bank loans — HEMR1TER 240,811 104,608
— Lease liabilities (note 14) — HEBaBWHE14) 1,821 1,444
— Others — Hf 17,223 8,044
259,855 114,202
(b) Staff costs ETIRAK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e EUEREWREF
kind 99,933 103,317
Discretionary bonuses B 15 76 41 36,459 13,454
Contributions to Mandatory Provident EHEAES MK
Fund 3,023 3,349
139,415 120,120
(c) Other operating expenses HiREmxX
Advertising and promotion expenses BEEREEMAE 11,640 15,057
Auditors’ remuneration = E A B & 1,805 1,768
Commission, handling and KL fEe  FEEBNM
settlement expenses EEHEA 74,266 97,239
Information and communication SR
expenses 38,864 44,721
Legal and professional fees FEREXER 2,075 1,785
Operating lease payments KEE NN
— property rentals —WEHES - 87
Rates and building management fees EMRIEFERE 5,851 4,946
Miscellaneous expenses MIERAY 29,715 31,856
164,216 197,459
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9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9 HFHEZTEKRERZFAEBH
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HEEZEWERZBIERE:
comprehensive income represents:

2024 2023
—EC-NE —E-=F
$°000 $'000

T T+

I
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BI{ifiE — FBFEH

Provision for the year FAEAE 49,165 70,598
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BAFE

prior years TR/ (5 BE 1 (17)

49,166 70,581

Deferred tax IE B 1R
Origination and reversal of temporary TRFERE 2 EA RER

differences (note 26(b)(}) (K1 2 26(b)() (2,960) 1,019
Total tax charge for the year FAMBEL DR 46,206 71,600
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2024 is ZENEZBEBENEREETIAE
calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) of the estimated WA FHERBUR N 3216.6% (Z T ==
assessable profits for the year, except for one F16.5%)FTE  EAEE—HWE
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying NRIFE PRSI FAF B2 R EFBRIN o
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime.
For this subsidiary, the first $2 million of assessable BZHBARIME - E2,000,0007TE
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining R M 1528.25% U FE - AN ERRER
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision i F) B 2 16.5% U Ft - 2B AR 2
for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was BAMNGHBERE-_S-=FER
calculated at the same basis in 2023. LEEHE o
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9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9 HFmEZTEKERZFABHR &)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(@)

(b)

182

Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HKETEWBRZBEE: (&)
comprehensive income represents: (Continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2024 is ZECNFEZBRANEHBEED R
taken into account a reduction granted by the Hong BEEFMNTHERIRR =%
Kong SAR Government of 100% of the tax payable “HFRBEERTEH —EHE100%
for the year of assessment 2023-24 subject to a (J:BEU%S 0007T) Z FERT B IR E R (=
maximum reduction of $3,000 for each business *i = BREBERR
(2023: a maximum reduction of $6,000 was granted E‘JL TEZCFRBEFEETZ
for the year of assessment 2022-23 and was taken Eim@,OOOTE%/JEX) °

into account in calculating the provision for 2023).

Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REBABEFEZHEBEXHES
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: AR AR
2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
'
Profit before taxation B B¢ A A 605,048 692,195
Notional tax on profit before taxation ZEANHEBEEREF 2
calculated at the rates applicable to MEFEZRBA
profits in the countries concerned A B ETIE 99,668 114,058
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TT?D B 2B % ’E 4,808 2,246
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARMBE oW BT E (55,199) (43,617)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERRBABIEEE 2
recognised M e 987 272
Utilisation of tax loss previously not By S RT R R
recognised T IE & (9) (29)
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFETR,
prior years (EBEE) BB 1 (17
Others Hth (4,050) (1,317)
Total tax charge for the year FABREL HER 46,206 71,600
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10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10 EEEE

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulations are as follows:

2R EFB(R B & HI)%383(1) & (A A
(BREEENDER)RADE2RAREZ
EEMEOT:

2024
ZECQE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to Mandatory
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total
5% 2ER
EEHe ENEF HERAL BELHR o
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r r i r i
' ! ! ! ' [ |
Yip Mow Lum ERM - 18,144 8,804 - 27,038
Hui Yik Bun TEW - 3,008 1,664 18 4,690
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson PR ok & - 1,091 218 18 1,327
Yu Yun Kong £90 285 - - - 285
Szeto Wai Sun BkiE £ 248 - - - 248
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph KB E 210 - - - 210
Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Notg/ ERE(WE) 241 - - - 241
Total @ 984 22,43 10,776 36 34,039
2023
—ZE-=H%
Salaries, Contributions
allowances and  Discretionary  to Mandatory
Directors’ fees  benefits in kind bonuses  Provident Fund Total
& 2Rk
BEHS ENRH WERLD  BERER @t
$:000 $000 $000 $:000 $000
T i i S i
' ! ! ! /' [ |
Yip Mow Lum ERM - 14,952 4,563 - 19,515
Hui Yik Bun TEW - 2,520 1,375 18 3913
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson PR ok & - 1,040 236 18 1,294
Yu Yun Kong ESLE 273 - - - 273
Szeto Wai Sun BkiE £ 237 - - - 237
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph EEE 201 - - - 201
Total st M 18,512 6,174 36 25,433
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10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 10 E $ EH ﬁ (%)
No director received any emoluments from the Group as MEEEEAEBEKIBERMSES - EAMN
an inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation AR ASE s ReRBEREE  TE
for loss of office and, no director waived or has agreed to EEHEXRAEREEMAHS -

waive any emoluments.

Note: B it -
Appointed on 3 April 2023 RZEZ="FNA=-—HEZT

11 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST 11 BESHHMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Included in the emoluments of the five individuals with hEFHEsmEETRERA(ZE-_=
the highest emoluments were the emoluments of 2 F-MB)ESF - BN EXMFE10
(2023: 2) Directors. The emoluments of Directors have WRE B I=R(CE_=F:=)ATZ
been disclosed in note 10 above. The aggregate of the & @BEmT

184

emoluments in respect of the other 3 (2023: 3) individuals
are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-MEF ZTEZ=F
$°000 $'000
Fr T
e '
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FELEYEF 3,647 3,574
Discretionary bonuses B 1B L4 813 2,521
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund 38 & & fft & 54 39
4,514 6,134
The emoluments of the 3 (2023: 3) individuals with the Z-R(CEZ=F:ZR)EaFMAL
highest emoluments are within the following bands: ZBENFUTEHE:
2024 2023
—E-MEF ZTEZ=F
$°000 $'000
Fr T
L
Nil to $2,000,000 £ % 2,000,0007T 3 2
$2,000,001 to $4,000,000 2,000,0017T 2£4,000,0007T — 1
No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as BB R R A 52 E A A A B
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as SEAMBASE XA INAR L S HE
compensation for loss of office during the financial year REBMECE_=F &)

(2023: Nil).
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12

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

12 SREF

BEREXEF

SR ERRFRIAEFERADEE A S
5 L B DA GF PO B8 77 3 38 M 2 D T4
B3t -

2024 2023
—E-ME —EF-=

e ' -
Earnings el
Profit for the year attributable to owners of A& E AR R HEEF A

the Company ($°000) FEAE & F (For) 558,842 620,595
Number of shares R 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary EETERR

shares in issue (in thousands) hoRE S & (FAR) 1,697,296 1,697,296
Basic earnings per share (cents) BREAXRRRN L) 32.93 36.56
Diluted earnings per share BREERR

There was no dilutive potential ordinary share during the
year (2023: Nil) and diluted earnings per share is therefore
equal to basic earnings per share.

M F 5

FRAYEHIEEEEAR (T =5
) Rt SRBERNAENERE
ARERF| o
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13

186

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

—  Securities broking — provision of broking services
in securities traded in Hong Kong and overseas
markets, margin and IPO financing services to those
broking clients.

— Commodities and futures broking — provision
of broking services in commodities and futures
contracts traded in Hong Kong and overseas
markets.

— Bullion trading — provision of trading services in
bullion contracts traded in overseas markets.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of unallocated
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include liabilities
and accruals attributable to the activities of the
individual segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
earnings before finance costs and taxes (“EBIT”).
To arrive at EBIT, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as corporate administration
costs.

13

&P

ok

ZINE S
% o
ZS S

B &

EERSHIREBRARB ERAE
A B BB E RS B R R A
ERSTHRERABNL2MER —

BzARAEFNUAT=ZEr]HheE a0 - #E
BHHEE D EBAERK T A AR E DR -

(a)

BHRER - BRURBERBINTS
BEZRBFZBERYE  MBRLEP
REAFRMERAMESRERS -

$7|\rh E'i'“f,tZFﬁuu&HHE’m\ UZ?&%E
ARTS -

BBy - BRENEIMEESR
EEBANNR IR -

DHEE -BEERRAE

BAEOERBREERED HED A
BR ALEESESTHREREABRIU
TEEERZARED ILEIGEE -
BEN,AE:

NHEEBREMBEREERRD

BE  WRPE2RBIBEERN - 5

HaBEaEER S EEEEE AR
N ERTEaE -

RMEDHBEFNEAB 2R ERR
B %5 B AN K B B BT 2 B R (TEBITY) ©
RS HEBITE » AEEBEZF B &£iE
EHBEBNSBER (WMARITH
RA)VEH#E— AR -
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13 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13 ZHHEE)
(b) Segment information (b)y DEEE
2024
“ECNE
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading Total
Bmk
EHEL HERLE EBELERZ @it
$'000 $’000 $°000 $’000
i 1 i 1
- ! | |
Revenue from customers: REEPZHA:
— Brokerage commission - B FEe 244,963 201,675 - 446,638
— Dealing income LN - - 6,284 6,284
— Interest income from margin financing — # & & & F B A 391,994 - - 391,994
— Interest income from IPO financing ~ — BAAREERE
MEKA 1,015 - - 1,015
Reportable segment revenue AREIBHA 637,972 201,675 6,284 845,931
Interest income from cash clients ReRPHEKA 40,528 - - 40,528
Other interest income it M S A 240,436 53,128 171 293,735
Handling and settlement fees FRERKEER 62,528 35 - 62,563
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) % 5 &% 5 (EBIT) 725,705 123,562 3,783 853,050
Amortisation and depreciation FREHERNE
for the year (12,566) - - (12,566)
Finance costs AR A (286,223) (26) - (286,249)
Additions to non-current segment assets ERFRE 2k RB D HEE
during the year 1,912 - - 1,912
Reportable segment assets IRENBEE 6,999,067 958,205 21,122 7,978,394
Reportable segment liabilities AREDBEE (5,429,811) (628,198) (9,271)  (6,067,280)
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13 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13 ﬁ:'l\ %B ﬁ % (4&)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b)) oHER (&)
2023
—E-=F
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading Total
Rk
FHEy BEgE E2BRS @i
$:000 $'000 $'000 $000
L L i R
I e
Revenue from customers: REZEPZWA:
— Brokerage commission -Brie 348,578 250,032 - 598,610
— Dealing income LN - - 4,876 4,876
— Interest income from margin financing — # & & &5l B A 276,863 - - 276,863
— Interest income from IPO financing ~ — BAAREERE
MEKA 777 - - 777
Reportable segment revenue DE LR ON 626,218 250,032 4,876 881,126
Interest income from cash clients ReRPAEKMA 36,481 - - 36,481
Other interest income E R SWA 168,229 28,468 - 196,697
Handling and settlement fees FEERKEER 76,169 23 - 76,192
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) %5 5 #E T (EBIT) 655,117 141,301 2,355 798,773
Amortisation and depreciation FRERRAE
for the year (17,229) 2) - (17,231)
Finance costs KA (132,927) (1) - (132,928)
Additions to non-current segment assets FRRE 2k RB D HEE
during the year 15,306 - - 15,306
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 6,986,752 992,403 29,152 8,008,307
Reportable segment liabilities AREHHEE (5,599,447) (535,710) (10,491)  (6,145,648)

188 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2023/24



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEBEI - LBITTIHIR)

13 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

13

TEERE 2

(¢) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, o0 THREFWBUA - EF  BEER
profit, assets and liabilities BEEZHE
2024 2023
—E-MF —E=F
$’°000 $’000
Fr T
1
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue AR & 2 2B A 845,931 881,126
Elimination ¥ 4 (483) (341)
Unallocated corporate revenue KoOoBE AR KA 770 948
Consolidated revenue FEAEWA 846,218 881,733
Profit Y F
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) Al 3R & 9 &6 & A (EBIT) 853,050 798,773
Finance costs B 75 B AR (259,855) (114,202)
Unallocated corporate income AOBE AR A 138,132 117,481
Unallocated corporate expenses KA RRFAEZ (126,279) (109,857)
Consolidated profit before taxation 4R A B R & A 605,048 692,195
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets s D BEE 7,978,394 8,008,307
Elimination Ea) fﬁ (1,067,561) (404,685)
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEAREE 167,623 125,748
Consolidated total assets e ﬁ ERE 7,078,456 7,729,370
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities s HBaE (6,067,280) (6,145,648)
Elimination ¥t 55 1,143,544 1,168,476
Unallocated corporate liabilities KA RFRIBE (710,445) (1,017,784)
Consolidated total liabilities rEBEERE (5,634,181) (5,994,956)
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 V¥ BERRXE
Properties Motor
leased for Leasehold  vehicles and Office  Furnitureand ~ Computers
ownuse improvements yacht  equipment fixtures  and software Total
BRRAENE BEEE REREE  BOERE  BAREE  ZHREH @it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
n T Tr Tr Tr Tr n
' |
Cost: A&
At 1 April 2022 e S 1Y 282,008 51,352 36,036 18,464 11,013 37,760 436,633
Additions HE 9,53 4,959 8,587 407 132 1,228 24,843
Disposals HE - (2,846) (3,807) (1,174) (1,056) (2,869) (11,446)
Derecognition of right-of use assets X 7 E BEEE (16909 - - - - - (16903
Lease modification HELH 492 - - - - - 4925
Fxchange adjusiments EXHZ - (19 - (17 - Wy (57)
NS Mach 2028 R= S %5 S A6 e 10089 %09 4T
At 1 Apri 2023 R-E-=EMA-A 279,565 53,452 41,116 17,680 10,089 36,093 437,995
Additions TE - 1| 204 241 14 1,206 1,912
Disposals ih & - (3,309) (4,199) (1,328) (297) (788) (9,921)
Derecognition of right-of use assets X I- B [F HEEE (3,646) - - - - - (3,646)
Lease modification REBH 90,889 - - - - - 90,889
Exchange adjustments Exg - 8 - (10) - (16) (34)
At 31 March 2024 RZE-RE=A=1-A 366,808 50,376 3121 16,589 9,806 36,495 517,195
Accumulated depreciation: ~ ERE#E:
At 1 April 2022 je SR 176,344 43,449 20,506 171 10,533 32,421 300,435
Charge for the year EREY 57,651 6,744 6,740 673 186 2,494 74,488
Written back on disposals MEERBE - 2,846) (701) (1,169) (1,056) 2,863) 8,639)
Derecognition of ight-of-use assets & |- Z1(F BEEE (16903 - - - - - (16903)
Exchange adjusiments EZRZ - (19 - (1 - y (1)
AtdtMarch2023 WoBoZE=A=t-B A70 A4S ;MM 164 gees %01 349328 _
At 1 April 2023 R-B-=FNA-H 217,092 47,334 26,544 16,664 9,663 32,031 349,328
Charge for the year ERER 53,840 3,509 6,289 446 157 2,175 66,416
Written back on disposals RHEREMD - (3,309) (1,260) (1,309) (207) (788) (6,963)
Derecognition of ight-of-use assets & I- Bz (F BEEE (3,646) - - - - - (3,646)
Exchange adjustments EXjg - 6] - (10) - (16) (34)
AtdtMarch204 RoF-BEZR=f-B 67286  415H 35 IS A . 405,01
Net book value: FEFE:
At 31 March 2024 RZE-RE=A=1-A 99,522 2,850 5,548 798 283 3,093 112,094
At 31 March 2023 e o 62473 6,118 14572 1016 426 4,062 88,667
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ¥ -HBERRE®)

(Continued)

EREERE

Right-of-use assets

RN EEEMNE D2 EREEEREF

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by

class of underlying asset is as follows: BEomT:
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
—E_NE B =4
=A=+—-H =A=+—H
$°000 $'000
F 7T

e
Properties leased for own use, carried at BEREEYWE  RIFER K
depreciated cost 7 B 99,522 62,473

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases HRNERER 2 HEEBA  AIBE N

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: FINNE
2024 2023
—EB-QmEF —T-=F
$’000 $°'000
T T

1
Depreciation charge on properties leased BRAEWETER S

for own use 53,840 57,561
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8(a)) HESENB (K i28@E) 1,821 1,444
Expense relating to short-term leases and B HAHE KB AM2E AR

other leases with lease terms end within & RMEMTEE BB 2 M

12 months - 87
FRAREEUEABCAREE(ZZ =

During the year, there was no additions to right-of-use

assets of the Group (2023: $9,535,000), which primarily
related to the capitalised lease payments payable under
new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities as of 31 March 2024 are set out
in notes 19(d) and 24, respectively.

As of 31 March 2024, there are no leases subject to
variable lease payment arrangement.

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

% :9,535,0007T) * £ E HRIE M EH
ZENZERNMCEEREGR -

BE-_Z-_WNF=A=+—HzHEBE2
mbeBEkAEAENHBE S MEBE DR
BB 5E19(d) ke 24 o

K-B-MEZA=+—R BEEEY
RS R R -
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 B EE
Debentures
&%
2024 2023
—EMF e
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
Cost less accumulated amortisation AR AR 2 18 5,783 5,783
Impairment BB - —
Net book value IR FEE 5,783 5,783
16 OTHER ASSETS 16 Hitt&EE
2024 2023
—E_-MEF —FE-=
$’000 $'000
Frx Tt
Statutory deposits with exchanges and RGREEMZEEES
clearing houses 55,239 41,843
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17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 17 EEWERR
2024 2023
—E-WF —E-=F
$°000 $’000
F Tt
1y A
Accounts receivable from: FEUER ok 8 ¢
— Clearing houses — BERT 876,687 857,424
— Brokers and dealers — RBREERZE 297,021 267,855
Less: Loss allowance (note 29(a)) W iR B (K i 29() (2,053) 2,011)
Financial assets measured at amortised  ZE K AT EZ 2 MEE
cost 1,171,655 1,123,268
Accounts receivable from: FEURBR PR A -
— Cash clients - BerF 368,470 382,430
— Margin clients — BREF 4,809,561 5,466,015
Financial assets measured at FVPL WEAFEFAERZ
FRAEBEZEHEE 5,178,031 5,848,445
6,349,686 6,971,713
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BR#R 2T
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable from cash RBEBHRCERIBESEFPERIIZ
clients based on the settlement date as of the end of EEBZERETOT
the reporting period is as follows:
2024 2023
—E-_MEF —_FE-=
$’000 $'000
T Tt
'
Current B ER 37,418 47,804
Less than 1 month L H11{E A 146,697 142,317
1 to 3 months 1Z231E A 49,293 118,071
More than 3 months % 318 A 135,062 74,238
331,052 334,626
368,470 382,430
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17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(a) Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. These receivables are secured by
their portfolios of securities. Cash clients are required
to place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s credit
policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
At 31 March 2024, the total market value of their
portfolios of securities was $2,091,511,000 (2023:

$2,176,486,000).

Margin clients are required to pledge securities
as collateral to the Group in order to obtain
margin loans. When determining the fair value
of the accounts receivable at the reporting date,
management evaluate the margin loan portfolios
on a fair value basis by primarily considering the
value of collateral, which principally comprised listed
securities, with reference to the quoted prices, to
the extent of the outstanding loan amounts. At 31
March 2024, margin loans due from margin clients
were current and repayable on demand except
for $197,000 (2023: $166,000) where the margin
loans were past due. $49,000 (2023: $5,000) were
past due for less than 1 month. $1,000 (2023:
$7,000) were past due for 1 to 3 months. $3,000
(2023: $34,000) were past due for 3 months to 1
year. $144,000 (2023: $120,000) were past due
for over 1 year following the trading suspension of
the pledged securities. At 31 March 2024, the total
market value of securities pledged as collateral in
respect of the loans to borrowing margin clients
and all margin clients were $11,340,040,000 and
$19,883,253,000 respectively (2023: $13,431,769,000
and $22,710,446,000 respectively). Margin loans
that were past due were considered immaterial by

management.

17

FE W BR FR ()
(a) B®BIW(E)

JEWBRSBEFERSIRZHAHT
BRRLB2EP - ZSEWHRE
MEBHFEAAERT - RATH
MEBEBERZH  BeFFAERASE
B2EEBRRGER - RZEZNF
A=+ B HEBHMAAzZHEM
8 A2,091,511,0007C (Z & = =4 :
2,176,486,0007T) °

FREFARANSEIKITESHKIHE
MABRBIFRER - BEREEH
R BR SR A FER - BEENUR
FTEAEERFHTFEBERESR
EZEMNTIEA=ZEEAAR(ETERE
FHRBHFNEE BEL2ERE
BARKBEENEREST R
“HME=Z/A=+—H - K197,000
7T (ZZT =% :166,0007T) Z
REFBHBIN BURABREFZ
HFREZANPLRBREREE -
49,0007t (=& = = : 5,0007T)
wmE LR —M@A - 1,000 (==
Z =4 :70007m) #@E —F = @
A -+ 38,0007t (ZZ = =% : 34,000
J) @A =8 B = —F -+ 144,000
7T (ZZF =% :120,000t) B 2
BHRZFLHEEEERABABEGB—
F o R _E-_WNF=ZA=+—H
REBEFIATREFPREZHARE
FEEEREHEBEAEER Z
5 E 5 Bl £11,340,040,000
7T $19,883,253,0007T (= & = =
F 5 Bl A13,431,769,0007T K&
22,710,446,0007t) - mHAFFRE R
WEBERATEK -

194 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2023/24



Notes to the Financial Statements
Br 1& SRR M &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S BHEBH - ETIIR)

17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers
and dealers are current. These represent (1) pending
trades arising from the business of dealing in
securities, which are normally due within a few days
after the trade date and (2) margin deposits arising
from the business of dealing in futures and options
contracts.

Loss allowance of accounts receivable

Loss allowance in respect of accounts receivable
measured at amortised cost are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
loss is written off against the accounts receivable
directly.

17 FEWRR (@)

(@)

(b)

AR 20 #T (&)

UMEER BEERSE RN
R BRRFRENEEEHX
BrHaEEERS  —RRXHH
BRHEERNIHPRQESTHE K%
BHERBZARRESR -

YRR ERRE

NEHR AT EZRRERZER
BBABEIRCRE - EAKEEAHK
B 5K I8 2 AT RE MR SEH RSN - IR
T B R R ORI o

18 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 18 HMBEWMIE R REMNRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2024 2023
—E-WE T =%
$°000 $°000
Fr Ft
./ '/ |
Rental and utility deposits MERKEEZS 15,935 16,126
Prepayments TET OB 5,520 2,719
Other receivables H At JE W R IE 15,741 21,926
37,196 40,771
Less: Loss allowance (note 29(a)) B BB E (W i229(a) (1,328) 916)
35,868 39,855

Included in the above balances are amounts of
$15,530,000 as at 31 March 2024 (2023: $2,941,000)
which are expected to be recovered in more than one year.

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

M F 5

RZE-_WNE=ZA=+—H8 " A L#ll&
# 2 X TH A15,530,000 T (Z B = =4F:
2,941,00070) * TEEIE R —F &M E -
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 RERBETEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a ReREASEEYERE:

2024 2023

—E-WEF —E=F

$’000 $'000

Fr T

Deposits with banks RITEX 67,020 55,567
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFRES 374,376 448,993
441,396 504,560

Less: Loss allowance (note 29(a)) B BREEBE (K E29@E) (121) (29)
441,275 504,531

The Group maintains segregated accounts with AEERRUKEREBLES  REE

authorised institutions to hold client money in the XBRERRFEEFL,ES o

normal course of business.

At 31 March 2024, client money maintained in RZE-_WNFE=ZA=+—H8B HTEaRBEL
segregated accounts not otherwise dealt with in the FEPETERUBRRAMEDER 2
financial statements amounted to $5,702,300,000 BFE$ A5,702,300,0007T (=T == :
(2023: $7,758,668,000). 7,758,668,0007T) °
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(B = EEBEI - LBITTIHIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(b)

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

19 RekBEEEW#)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBANEAELLEEEFERS
generated from operating activities: ZHER:
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=%F
$’°000 $’000
Fr Fr
Profit before taxation R 750 A1 s A 605,048 692,195
Adjustments for: MUATHEELFE:
Amortisation and depreciation BERTE 66,416 74,488
Finance costs B 7% B AR 259,855 114,202
Dividend income B B4 A (2,205) (2,083)
Interest income FERATBEFR R
(excluding interest income from BHAAREE
margin and IPO financings) B & 2 F B A) (335,213) (233,202)
Net foreign exchange loss SNVE B 18558 4,494 4,356
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE BER
plant and equipment HEZEE 18 69
Net loss/(gain) arising from disposal of HEZAFEGFABERZ
financial assets at fair value TREEMEEAZ
through profit or loss FEE () 849 (1,466)
Net unrealised loss on financial assets at EZAFEFAERZ
fair value through profit or loss TREECRER
FEE 14,269 4,755
Others HAh 1,180 758
Changes in working capital: EEEaH
(Increase)/decrease in other assets H & EGEMm,m (13,396) 38,135
Decrease in accounts receivable & UY BR FOR 614,308 1,929,538
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, E b ZHE L4 &
deposits and prepayments TE A 3R IE Ot ),/ 48 N 3,552 (9,349)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable & BE 23 0GR ) 251,391 (458,934)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses  FE &t 5 3 [ H b fE 1+
and other payables BN, CR ) 2,982 (34,404)
Cash generated from operations REXBGHRERE 1,473,548 2,119,058
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19 BERBEZEEBY (%)

(¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from ¢ BMEIDELAMNEBGSZHIER:

financing activities:

Lease Accounts

Bank loans liabilities payable Total
BITEX HESE EEERR @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T Fr
At 1 April 2022 i S
MA—H 5,162,165 105,490 1,939,351 7,207,006
Changes from financing cash flows: RMERS M EF:
Net repayment of bank loans BERITERFE (748,358) - - (748,358)
Other borrowing cost paid BREMEERA (104,714) - (8,044) (112,758)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEERE 2 EAES - (57,083) - (57,083)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHERE 2FEHS - (1,444) - (1,444
Changes from operating cash flows: meRen 2y
Change in accounts payable [ERERFE ) - - (458,934) (458,934
Exchange adjustments ERLAZ (4,807) - (16,302) (21,109)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering Az #TAEM
into new leases ENEESE - 9,535 - 9,535
Increase in lease liabilities from lease By A& mEm
modification HE&ERE - 4,925 - 4,925
Interest expenses FIBHZ 104,714 1,444 8,044 114,202
At 31 March 2023 R=-Z==
=ZB=+-H 4,409,000 62,867 1,464,115 5,935,982
At 1 April 2023 =B =
MA—H 4,409,000 62,867 1,464,115 5,935,982
Changes from financing cash flows: RMERS M EY:
Net repayment of bank loans BERITERFE (634,000) - - (634,000)
Other borrowing cost paid BREMEERA (240,811) - (17,223) (258,034)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERE 2 EATH - (53,857) = (53,857)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEREZFBEHS - (1,821) - (1,821)
Changes from operating cash flows: meRen 2y
Change in accounts payable e ERFE - - 251,391 251,391
Exchange adjustments ERAE - - (12,958) (12,958)
Increase in lease liabilities from lease 1& 2 7 & i 42 0
modification HEBRE - 90,889 - 90,889
Interest expenses FIEHAY 240,811 1,821 17,223 259,855
At 31 March 2024 R-ZE-ImF
=A=t+-H 3,775,000 99,899 1,702,548 5,577,447
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19 BERBEZEBY (%)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases d HERESARLHAE

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for ReREXRMIBEERBRIE:
leases comprise the following:

2024 2023
—EB-QmEF —EZ=fF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Within operating cash flows RELEHRESREN - 87
Within financing cash flows REEFHHRESREAN 55,678 58,527
55,678 58,614
20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 AMBRAIZRE
At 31 March 2024, the Company had direct or indirect RZEBEZWFE=ZA=+—8  AAAHMN
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are T WJ% NGIE e EE? RS ZEW
private companies, particulars of which are set out below: RNEIHBILARFE - FHEHINGOT:
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company operations paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
AR B VE VA £ 30 E?% R&RKRA EERAER TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI) US$100 100% - Investment holding
BTREARERAT EBRLES 100% 7T REBR
Marick Investments Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI) US$1 100% - Investment holding
EBRLES E REBER
Bright Smart Advertising Company Limited Hong Kong HK$_1 - 100%  Administrative services
BR 1B THR%
Bright Smart Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Asset management
BTEEEERRAA B 5,000,000/ 7T services
BEERRE
Bright Smart Facilities Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BIRIEERERAA B BT TH R %
Bright Smart Facilities Service Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BIRERRBEERAT B BT TH R %
Bright Smart Finance Channel Management Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
Limited ¥ B TR

BTRMERERARAR
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(B %= B #EHI

20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

200

P AETTEIR)

Name of company

NAEB

Bright Smart Finance Online Channel Limited

BTHERLERERDT

Bright Smart Forex Limited
BT BRI ERRLT

Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company
Limited
BIHGRBRBRAA

Bright Smart Global Bullion Limited
B7BHEEERAT

Bright Smart Management Services Limited
(formerly known as Bright Smart Investment
Consultancy (China) Limited)

BTERRBEARAA
(MBRTREAZAER(FE)BRAR)

Bright\Smart Promotion Limited
BT EEERAT

Bright Smart Property & Facility Management
Limited

BINERREEERBRAA

Bright Smart Property Management Limited

BINEERERAR

Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited
RAEABAR(BE)BRATA

Bright Smart Select Fund OFC
BIRERHAERERT

Charm Capital Limited
BERRAA

Everlasting Source Limited
EVARLA

Glow Dragon Limited
BEARLH

Place of incorporation/
operations

Issued and fully
paid-up capital

EMALLY EEEE BRORARRK

Hong Kong
&b

Ho\ng Kong

li

Hong Kong
%Q

li

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
N

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&b

HK$1
BT

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000/ 1T
HK$214,000,000
214,000,000 T

HK$10,000
10,000% 7T

HK$1
BT

HK$1
BT

HKS1
BT
HK$1
1T
HK$1,141,000,000
1,141,000,0007% 1
HK$1
BT

HK$1
T

HK$1
T

HK$1
T

Attributable
equity interest

BiERFER

Direct

E%

Indirect

L
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

20 RMIB AR 2R E (#)

Principal activities

EXE 3

Production and broadcast
finance programs

RERERMEHE

Forex trading service
MERHRB

Futures and commodities
broking
HEREREL

Bullion dealing and
provision of bullion
trading service to
customer

EREEERMEPRY
ECBRIME

Administrative services

T R #%

Administrative services

T R #%

Administrative services

T R #%

A_dministrative Services
TH RS

Securities broking and
margin financing

EFELLTRAE

[nvestment fund

REES

Administrative services

T3 MR 7%

Administrative services

T3 MR #%

Administrative services

T3 MR 7%
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

21

20 RNBAR 2R E(4#)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company operations paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
AR EMRUEE E¥HE EBERORBERK EERARER TEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE Gk

Huge Dynasty Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
RERRLA BE 1T THRS
Ideal Magic Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
HEERAT BE 1T THRS
Merit Act Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
ERERLA BR AT THRS
Rainbow Town Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
TEERRA BR 1T THR
Victor Tone Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
ERERAA BR 1T B RS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 21 BAEERRX
2024 2023
—EB-mEF —T_=%F
$’000 $'000
Frx Tt
Accounts payable FETBR 3R
— Cash clients —-HeEP 233,369 447,948
— Margin clients - HHERERP 934,506 892,294
— Clearing houses — BEEAT 129,411 1,288
— Brokers — &% 405,262 122,585
1,702,548 1,464,115

PIERMNBERARR —FREERARE

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

No ageing analysis in respect of accounts payable is ERRENERNEBLE  RROWITE
disclosed as the ageing analysis does not give additional MYPBEIIEE WA RBEUHBRERER S
value in view of the business nature. #T o
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22

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER 22 EiBEEXREMERNKE

PAYABLES

2024 2023
—E-lE —_T_=F
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Commission rebate payable FE 1R & Bl B 10,327 19,784
Accrued bonuses JEETTEAL 17,061 6,000

Stamp duty, trading levy and trading fee ~ BETEIER - KFHER
payables RGE 4,420 7,780
Receipt in advance W R IAE 645 528
Other payables H {th {4 318 22,782 18,164
55,235 52,256

Included in the above balances are amounts of $7,640,000

R-ZZE-_WE=A=+—H " st A L

as at 31 March 2024 (2023: $608,000) which are expected 48R 2 I8 /7,640,000 (Z T = =4 ¢
to be settled in more than one year. 608,0007T) " JITEEIR —F B EN

23 BANK LOANS 23 S|ITER
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E-=F
$’000 $'000
Fr T
'
Secured loans BEMER
— Bank loans — RITERK 3,175,000 3,465,000
Unsecured loans EEAER
— Bank loans — IRITEK 600,000 944,000
3,775,000 4,409,000
All the bank loans are repayable within one year and FIERITERAEAR —FANEBERDEAR
classified as current liabilities. The carrying amounts of the PaE ROEECEREBEEAZAFEMR
bank borrowings approximate their fair value. 5o

202

The bank loans as at 31 March 2024 are interest-bearing.
Securities collateral deposited by the Group’s margin
clients was re-pledged to banks to secure loan facilities.
Such banking facilities were utilised to the extent of
$3,175,000,000 (2023: $3,465,000,000). The fair value of
the collateral re-pledged to banks as at 31 March 2024
amounted to $5,9383,698,000 (2023: $7,155,583,000).

R-ZE-NF=ZA=Z+—HZRITEZY
BB - AKBHFREFHTEZEFER
BBEBTRIT UEREERBE - A
B8 4R 1T b & B & A3,175,000,0007 T (=&
— =% :3,465,000,0007T) c X = ZF = [
FZA=+—H BEBFERITZERR
A F 1 /A5,933,698,0007L (=T — =4 :
7,155,583,0007T) °

N
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24 LEASE LIABILITIES 24 HEESE

The Group had obligations under contractual maturities of AEEHEEEHEABEZANIHBANT
the lease liabilities as follows:

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
R=2-ME=A=+-AH RZZ-Z=4=A=t-H
Present value Present value
of the minimum Total minimum of the minimum Total minimum
lease payments lease payment lease payments lease payment
RERERERE SEEENELE SEHRENERE SEHESRELE
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
r Tr Tr Tr
| e A
Within one year -ER 50,789 54,281 54,322 54,958
After one year but within  —F&ERLER
five years 49,110 50,376 8,545 8,754
99,899 104,657 62,867 63,712
Less: total future interest 5 R RF S X HAHE
expenses (4,758) (845)
Presentvalue of lease ~ HESERE
liabilities 99,899 62,867
25 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 25 BEERKERN — EFEEFENK
— DEFINED CONTRIBUTION =t &
RETIREMENT PLAN
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme AEBERBEESRGIEAESTEEIN A
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory BEESEREKRIREEERERRAGE
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees TR EHEEERRTERE BB A
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong FlMEAEeE((RESHE)  RES
Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by e A EEHRFGRINGTE - ABIETA
the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme B - RERESFTE  BEIREEES
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered BB % & BB A 25% M & &) 1E
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the P WELAE AMEBE N AZ0,000(ZE ==
employer and its employees are each required to make % :30,00070) B LR o sHEIERANKEEB
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant REE  MEESWERATHRANEEAMNU
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of WA IR A FRKE -

$30,000 (2023: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.
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26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26 MEMBRRARZFAER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) (Tax recoverable)/current taxation in the (a) ZEAEPBRARZ(TEREHE)
consolidated statement of financial position BN HA B TE $8
represents:
2024 2023
—E-WEF —E=F
$’000 $'000
Fr T
'
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FABRBFNEHAX
expense for the year B 49,165 70,598
Provisional Profits Tax paid AT E R 15 (70,679) (73,149)
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax relating &1 FE &8
to prior year F 15 B 48 24 3 47
(21,511) (2,504)
Represented by: NTHEERR:
Current taxation Bl HA 7 18 1,499 6,718
Tax recoverable AR B %18 (23,010) (9,222)
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26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26 MEMBRRRZFABEH &)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)
(b)(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities represents: L) EEHEEEREEE:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities REEMBRAKRER CELERIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (BE)/BEAKRT»RFREEH M
position and the movements during the year are as ™
follows:
Differences
between
depreciation
allowance and
Credit loss Accrued the related
allowance bonuses  depreciation Total
FEF#R REREH
BB it REHEZZR @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T Tr Tr

1 e
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities AUTREMEEZERRE
arising from: (BE)/&f:

At 1 April 2022 W-B--#ME-A (426) 2370) 976 (1,820)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated REA2EREERNG/
statement of comprehensive income (3t A)(#/#29)

fote 9) 8 1,374 (439) 1,019
At 31 March 2023 R-ZE-=E=f=+-H (343) (996) 538 (801)
At 1 April 2023 W-2-=EMA-A (343) (996) 538 (801)
Credited to consolidated statement of R AZEMEE

comprehensive income (1ote 9a)) A #98) (22 (1,763) (1,175) (2,960)
At 31 March 2024 W-2-mE=f=t-A (365 (2,759) (637) (3,761)

(b)(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of bHEGFETHERIRZEER
financial position
2024 2023
—E-NF ZEZ=F
$°000 $°000
T FT

[ ]
Net deferred tax asset recognised in the B R 44 B # AR L X &

consolidated statement of financial MRAZELEHIBEE
position FE 3,761 801
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX - #EERRE

206

(a) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year
are set out below:

(a) EREARBIZ2EH

AEEGERESAEARSY FHHE
FREBZHFRIRNRAEDZED
& o AR EME R #E S A RO R 1)
REREZEHFBHIWT

The Company RAFE
Share Retained
capital Share premium profits Total equity
B 4% B RE R ERAE
$000 $:000 $:000 $:000
T T Tr Tr

At 1 April 2022 RZBE--ENA-H 509,189 738,020 15,749 1,262,958
Profit and total comprehensive FREHREZANGLEE
income for the year - - 1,370,212 1,370,212
Dividend paid during the year FRRAZHEE - - (1,357,837) (1,357,837)
At 31 March 2023 R-E-=%
ZA=t+-H 509,189 738,020 28,124 1,275,333
At 1 April 2023 RZB-=£NA-H 509,189 738,020 28,124 1,275,333
Profit and total comprehensive FREHREZANGLE
income for the year - - 503,352 503,352
Dividend paid during the year FERET 2R E - (350,000) (498,648) (848,648)
At 31 March 2024 R-E-M%
ZA=t+-H 509,189 388,020 32,828 930,037
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX - REERRE @)

(Continued)
(b) Dividends b KE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of () *EEEZREELGLAEE
the Group attributable to the year EARE
Dividends declared in respect of the current MAFEEERZBEMOT:

year are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-mEF —F-=
$000 $000
T T
' )
Final dividend proposed of 33.0 cents AEEBR -_ZT-_MFLAH
(2023: 50.0 cents) per ordinary share for ~ 1,697,296,308 K E & 1T
a total of 1,697,296,308 issued shares (ZZ==%:
in 2024 (2023: 1,697,296,308 issued 1,697,296,308 % B % 17 ik
shares) by the Group ) E#RERAKRETR
A3 (ZT==F
50.01ll) 560,108 848,648
Special dividend paid of 70.0 cents BT =F&H
per ordinary share for a total of 1,697,296,308 % B 21T 17
1,697,296,308 issued shares in 2023 EXMEARETRY B R
70.01ll - 1,188,107
The final dividend proposed after the end of AREREZRHREBHR
the reporting period is subject to approval of RRARAEERRBFAE
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual FHERTRER - BXER
general meeting of the Company and has not WEPRERBAER -

been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)

27 EXR - -BEERE #)

(b RE#E)

(i) AEEESRREMLLE-FK

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Group attributable to the previous

(ii)

FEZEARE(FREHER

208

financial year, approved and paid during the TRA) -
year:
2024 2023
—E-NEF .
$°000 $000
Fr Frr
1 )
Final dividend in respect of previous F-UBEEF-_T-_MF
financial year, approved and paid during & #£1,697,296,308% &
the year, of 50.0 cents (2023: 10.0 BIkH (ZEZ=%F:
cents) per ordinary share for a total of 1,697,296,308/% & % 17
1,697,296,308 issued shares in 2024 B fn) kB KRR SRR
(2023: 1,697,296,308 issued shares) BZ50.011(ZZ==%:10.0
) (F A B L ROk ) 848,648 169,730
(¢) Share capital () B=E
2024 20283
—E-NE —E--E
No. of shares  Nominal value No. of shares  Nominal value
RAEE EE Bt HAE
$000 $:000
r T

Authorised ordinary shares of SREE030TH
$0.30 each: EELER:
At 1 April/31 March REUA—R/
=R=+-8 10,000,000,000 3,000,000  10,000,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR:
At 1 April/31 March RUE-8/
=R=+-8 1,697,296,308 509,189  1,697,296,308 509,189

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

EBERFAEAERRBTIREIRZ
BERERRARBREG ERHERK
IR—F - RARBRGBEEMS -
FrEEBRAZFARFMA
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the
Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to
be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as the effective portion
of any foreign exchange differences arising
from hedges of the net investment in these
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 2(q).

Merger reserve

On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired
the entire issued share capital of Bright
Smart Futures & Commodities Co., Ltd,
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Merit Act Limited through Bright
Smart Investment Holdings Limited from
their respective shareholders. The difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the
restructuring exercise and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Merger reserve”.

MOEFH,

27 EXR - -BEERE #)

d RFEMEEREH

(i)

(i)

(iii)

gy
RERSHERRE  ARA
ZRB A aE BRI AR MR X
ok B R - B4R =2 B B 5
AR IR AR BEIR - ARE)
Bt NEHEEBEREFEN
HEBER -

E L #
EXRRBEREMBEELERE
BINEBHERER ZIIMNEZ R
K E S i FEF IR FRE
i E & 2 EE RINEZ &2
o o BERERIRME2(0)FrE
ZEETBEREIE -

]
R-ZE—ZTFXA-THhH &
RE|BEBRARELRERA
RIARA BERERERAT
BAEFEHFBEB(FEB)BRRAA
MrrAERAGB ZEBBRER
BEZERR 22 BITHRA -
AELAEZHmEKEZHEA
Al AN E B ARRDE EITIE
BREZBRAEEMEZ =5
BIEEZEHERE WL AlE
BEREEIA -
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(e

210

(iv) Distributability of reserve

The reserves of the Company are distributable
to the equity shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2024, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company was
$420,848,000 (2023: $766,144,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. In
addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group licensed
by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”)
are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”) at all times.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures each
of them maintains a liquid capital level adequate to
support the level of activities with sufficient buffer to
accommodate for increases in liquidity requirements
arising from potential increases in the level of
business activities. During the financial year, all the
licensed subsidiaries complied with the liquid capital
requirements under the FRR.

27 EXR - -BEERE #)

d) REEEREN@E)

(e)

(iv) 2k f#
BIEARNR ZABERKFAR
A W BREEL DR
BARRARAEENRATERB
BHRREBEHARET - AQF
ARERKRRD RS -

RZE-_ME=/A=+—8" 7
HAORTFARBERERE ZH
& 48 & %8 5420,848,0007T (=
T~ =4 :766,144,0007T) °

EXERE

AEBEREAZEZRBRRRER
SERFEREZRS  WEBBERE
[ B K A EE R N IR TS TE BIA KA S
ERARGHE #BR/BRRER
B3 & BB i =515 A A KA e
o BESEMEEHEREZES
(BEgNRUER 2 AKEE TH
BRRAREMNRBRNAES LY
E(HMBRER) SR (THEBRERRAL
ATZEERDESRE -

AEEEGLERRTLREEENRN
il ErREHEERREEKTEZR
= RRR B BB R E AR R
HRERREZERSTFE YEE
RERRZBEHENEBIFLH
EopEMNBARME  NEEE
REMBRARYRF[FESEEAE -
RUSHEBEE  UWREXHED
AREEBBEEMIIAHERPESZ
FREFABITERMNEN - RAMK
FE MEREMBEATSETHR
BRMRAUABTZRBESRE °
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28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2024 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

28

Contracted for

BEREE
RZZ-ME=A=F+—HHRNU B R
REBHBZERAENT
2024 2023
—E-EF —T-=
$’°000 $'000
T FI
189 5592

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency
and equity price risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and
the financial risk management policies and practices used
by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
amounts due from clients, brokers and clearing
houses. The management has a credit policy in place
and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an

ongoing basis.

BABLZEREBERAR | —T =/ —MFFR

29

MEERBREERAFE

AEBZAREBELRESE RBHED
MR HNE R BB R B o X E il A R E
FrEY cZEFRERASEEEE SR
BAFRDM M HRAREERRKE -

(a FERR

AEBZEERREIZREBEE
F BERk@EEMzER  BEE
AEGRERE  IHREBEZEFEER

G o
AA

211



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEBI - ETIIR)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

212

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all clients
(including cash and margin clients) based on
underlying collateral. Cash clients are required to
place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s credit
policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
Receivables due from cash clients are due within the
settlement period commonly adopted in the relevant
market practices, which is usually within a few days
from the trade date. Because accounts receivable
from cash clients relate to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of default, there
has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are considered fully receivable, and
the prescribed deposit requirements and the short
settlement period involved, the credit risk arising from
the amounts due from cash clients is considered low.
The Group normally obtains liquid securities and/or
cash deposits as collateral for providing financing to
its cash and margin clients and has policy to manage
these exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans
due from margin clients are repayable on demand.
For commodities and futures brokerage, an initial
margin is required prior to opening transaction.
Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account,
margin account and futures account are monitored
by the management on a daily basis. Margin calls and
forced liquidation are made where necessary.

29

BEEREERAFESE)

(a)

FERBE)

FBRUEEFERATE FIEEF (B2
ReMFREFP)HAERBHER
& ZAE R E E G - RBITEM
BEXSH  BREeXPARAEEZ
EERKMIAFEARSE - BYR
SEFPRBADRBENSENEE
RAZEEHRIE  —RARSH
BERA - ERNEURRESEPER
WhERNPIBERRLE TR
EEERIBEEAEY  ABBER
WE BRI 2HKE - MEEFFRE
KSR EERE  HRKAEEP
RRELZEERREN ~EHE
—REAERE RFREFIER

BER /SR FRIERMBRSRM
BMEZEMR  ATARRRAFE
ERnERER - RBUFREPZARE
ERBEREREE -BEAMRNE
RexBms  RAEMANER
BE BEEESEEBREEMANURK
EREHRP FREFRHPERPZ
EFEAmERESELRN WA
FE QEARIFSNBRITHA -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a)

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and
clearing houses, credit risks are considered low as
the Group normally enters into transactions with
brokers and clearing houses which are registered
with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation in
the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk as credits are granted to a large population of
clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 and measures the

related loss provision by 12-month ECLs or lifetime
ECLs.

M F 5

29

BHEEREERAFE®E

(a)

FERRE)

RARARE—ARED M EEE BT
AXERNBERHZELREEME
TR HEWERLREERERRX
ZEERBER -

HRAKERRZEFPREHEE - &
VTEBREFEERR -

AEEBYERHEEMEMER B
SAKREEmHEEERR -
AEECRMBBH B RS ERF

A RREABREEBEEREH
BHEEEBEFENEBHERS -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIKRREERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) @ FERRE)

The movements in the expected credit losses during FANEEBEZEHNT:
the year are as follows:

2024 2023
It i }2 It Jult
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-
12-month ECL impaired) impaired)  12-month ECL impaired) impaired)
2HES 2HRS ey ey

1288 FEER FEER 126 A FER# FEF#
REGEEE (REEAE) (CREWE) BHEREE  (REREE) (EEERE)

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
I r T r r T

1 Sy A
Accounts receivable ERER
At 1 April REUA-H 2,011 - - 2,539 - -
Recognition/reversal of loss 132/ (BE)EEEE

allowance 42 - - (528) - -
At 31 March R=A=1-H 2,053 - - 2,011 - -
Other receivables, deposits HftiEWFE  #E R

and prepayments Rt FE
At 1 April REA-H 916 - - 29 - -
Recognition of loss allowance  E B %E 44 - - 887 - -
Exchange adjustments ExfR ] - - - - -
At 31 March R=A=1-H 1,328 - - 916 - -
Financial assets at REERATEZ SR

amortised cost EE
At 1 April REA-H - - 6,941 - - 6,542
Recognition of loss allowance % B2 & & - - 724 - - 399
At 31 March R=A=t-A - - 7,665 - - 6,941
Cash and cash equivalents BE&RkEEZEY
At 1 Aprl REA-A 2 - - 3% - -
Recognition/reversal of loss %2/ (BE) &%

allowance 92 - - ©) - -
At 31 March R=A=t-A 121 - - 29 - -
Except financial assets at amortised cost are BRIZBEK AT EZEREENEA
classified as Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired), all other HEHSEEBR(EEERE) N
financial instruments measured at amortised cost are HEMZBEEX AT ENEm T AS
classified as 12-month ECL. HANREAEHEEEIE -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b)

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, and to ensure compliance with FRR. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding in
the short and longer term. Except accrued expenses
and other payables amounted to $7,640,000
(2023: $608,000) and lease liabilities amounted to
$49,110,000 (2023: $8,545,000), all of the Group’s
liabilities are expected to be settled within one year.
The carrying amounts of all financial liabilities equal
the contractual undiscounted cash outflow, except
for bank loans of which the contractual undiscounted
cash outflow as at 31 March 2024 amounted to
$3,776,306,000 (2023: $4,410,669,000) and lease
liabilities as set out in note 24.

MOEFH,

29

BHEEREERAFE®E

(b)

REBE SRR

AEEAEHELERAESAZH
TEE  BEEREFAENERE
EFE  ARRTAVHERBRA
AEBZBRRREREEENRE
HRHESHFE  WETHEERR
EREFEHREHEBERAEAR
MHERBIARAERERE - R
NEEHRHESFE -

AEBBRERATHEEEMRTE
BRHESTE  BREFINES
MECHBUEBNEEHEE - B
FERHRA S K B Ath fE {3k 787,640,0007T
—ZT =4 :608,000t) KB AR
49,110,0007T (ZZF = =4 : 8,545,000
TN AEBZEIEREESBER
—FREMS -FBEEHBEZEEE
HEREFTHORUBRBARHE &
FABERITER AR -OF
ZA=+—HZEBRHRMBEEESR
2 43,776,306,0007T (Z 2= =4 :
4,410,669,0007T) * 77T B 15 & 7 R
24 EEE -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29

216

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

(i) Interest rate profile

The Group charges interest on its margin clients
and cash clients with outstanding loan amounts
on the basis of its cost of funding plus a mark-
up. Financial assets (such as margin loans and
deposits with banks) and financial liabilities
(such as bank loans) are primarily at floating
rates. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are not subject to significant interest rate

risk.

The interest rate profile of the Group at the

(© FEmEk

(i) F=E4HAse

@B -

A REERAFEESE)

AEBZEESRASMIKE
DICENEE-S ¢
ReEPRBAE - EBEE
(MFREREBTHEFOEE
BAEBMRITEF) TBRY
BHEREFE - AEEZBAR
RERSREALEEHE KN

ZHREFP R

TRENAKERHBEARZ

reporting date is as follows: FlEBEE
2024 2023
—EZNE —E=F
$’°000 $°000
Fr T
1
Assets BE
Deposits with banks RITEX 67,020 55,567
Statutory deposits with exchanges XRSRBEHEHMZEATE S
and clearing houses 52,889 39,493
Accounts receivable from FEW AT 18 2 BR 3K
— Margin loans — FRE® 4,809,561 5,466,015
— Cash clients with outstanding — MAREEERH
loan amounts BexyP 331,052 334,626
Financial assets at amortised HHMENAGTEC SR
cost BE 162 943
5,260,684 5,896,644
2024 2023
—E-NEF —E=F
$’000 $’000
Fr T
1y
Liabilities &a1&
Secured bank loans EEARITER 3,175,000 3,465,000
Unsecured bank loans EEMARITERK 600,000 944,000
Lease liabilities HEARE 99,899 62,867
3,874,899 4,471,867
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

Interest rate profile (Continued)

Except for financial assets at amortised cost
amounted to $162,000 (2023: $943,000), all
the above interest-bearing financial assets are
receivable on demand or within one year.

Expect for lease liabilities amounted to
$49,110,000 (2023: $8,545,000), all the above
interest-bearing financial liabilities are repayable
within one year.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2024, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would have increased by approximately
$13,858,000 (2023: $14,248,000).

As at 31 March 2024, if interest rates had been
100 basis point lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before taxation
would have decreased by approximately
$13,858,000 (2023: $13,979,000).

The increased/decreased profit before taxation
results mainly from higher/lower interest income
from deposits with banks, statutory deposits
with exchanges and clearing houses and margin
loans and higher/lower interest expense on bank
loans. Other components of equity would not be
significantly affected by the changes in interest
rates.

MOEFH,

29 BIERBEERAFEE)

(¢ F=EREbE)

U]

(ii)

FREE(E)
BRiZEEK A E2E2RmE
E162,0007T (= & — = 4

943,0007TC) 5 + FT A Ll FH B
T RVE E AR E kIR E sk R
—FERUE -

B & & 549,110,000t (= =
— =% :8,545,0007T) 4N * BT
T ESREBEEEN —FR

EiE -

EMBEEMEREFTTE IS
ST 8 R 100 E 2
BI AN 25 @& 7 B B B o 1) FE 3 n
#913,858,000t (=T = =4 :
14,248,0007T) °

RZZE-_WME=R=+—H"
FRBEEMEHERTE G
ST v WA R T 100 E 2
BI 7 &= @) 7 BR B B0 s 7 R A
#713,858,000L (=& = =4 :
13,979,0007T) °

BRBATEME N, RS EER
RIBITER XBREEMZ
EERERAFRER 2B
AR R RITE A R
FASKIE N, MADPTE - w2
HibAAK O T ERMEKE S
MEERTE -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

218

(©)

(d

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
reporting dates and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to interest
rate risk at the reporting dates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2023.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from financial instruments that are
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”)
and British pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”) is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the HKD and the USD as insignificant. In respect
of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept at an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances. The management
monitors all the foreign currency positions on a daily
basis.

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity analysis
The Group’s significant net exposure to RMB, SGD,
JPY, AUD and GBP at the reporting date and the
estimated impact to the Group’s profit/(loss) for
the year had the foreign exchange rates of RMB,
SGD, JPY, AUD and GBP changed at that date are
illustrated below. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD
would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the USD against other
currencies.

29 BIERBEERAFEE)

(©)

MERmEBE)

(i) BREDH(E)

L HRESTETEREN X

YRR EAALE BEEE
AREFFEAEEMFAER
WMEAHERNAEEEE M X
ERvemTE S4AEE2
%m@mﬂﬁEZ%F“E

AWTHERBE - =FHRA
B AEHET o

d) IME = B

REBMAAZINERBREZERE MU
EoL AR - 3N - HERT
FEgiEzemIT A ARET
EZEITHEME - MAKERA - BLHE
En2HREREBRABREM o FLA
EMmERGE eI AMS A%
EEEZZMEN TIRANEEREA
SR EINEABREIRE Bk EIER - &
AR BB F BB A 5 2 2K o
EREEGHEIEMBINERE -

SN E B AR R R E DA
WSR2 AR ~ #pgoT - A
B RTRESEXEMES A&
ERmEAMUARE - ST
HE - -RBTkEZEMATE KRR
FE AREBAEEFANZET,
(J%TE)ZEW SERBIIRAT - gk
ERRBTEXTTERHBIE
I%ERE@ S REB 2T ME
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIKREREEBERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) d) IERBEZ)
2024 2023
ZBomE it 3
Appreciation/ Appreciation/
Net asset (depreciation) Effect on Net asset  (depreciation) Effect on
in foreign in foreign  profit before in foreign in foreign ~ profit before
currency currency taxation currency currency taxation

WowiEZ  HEAE/ BRIA ONEHEZ  NERE/ HEHA
BERE (BfE) #ERewg BEFE (RfE) &BWFE

$000 % $000 $:000 % $:000
7 % i 1 % 1
1 e e
RMB AR 141,348 5 7,067 143,556 5 7,178
(5) (7,067) (5) (7,178)
SGD FmE 5,099 5 255 5,521 5 276
(5) (255) (o) (276)
JPY AE 4,651 5 233 7,124 5 356
(5) (233) (5) (356)
AUD B 4,228 5 211 3,659 5 183
(5) (211) (5) (183)
GBP R 5,749 5 287 2,213 5 111
(5) (287) () (111)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change BRESMEBRRIINESER BB
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re- ERREMFERNRELIEHA
measure those financial instruments which expose SERBRIIMNERR SR ITE - %
the Group to foreign currency risk at the reporting EAMDERAR S - =F R &
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for KT o

2023.
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29

220

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIKRREERAFEE)

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(e) Equity price risk (e)

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from listed equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, which have been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations.

The following table shows the approximate change in
the Group’s other components of equity in response
to reasonable change in the value of listed equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

2024

—g=mg
%
%

i 18 /= B

AEEBAZBERDBER/ERAVE
AABmZEMEEN ETBRAR
BZBREZRER -

AEBNMETREDEET BB
£ DRBEREIRREDE
VTERERRBARERREHEN -

TREIEADBERIZAFEFAR
HZEREENLTRAREEE
HRMWAEEHEUARE D H
AR B D EER O :

Effects Effects

on profit on profit
before tax 2023 before tax
IR BARR HBRHART
hEe —BC-CE iE%
$'000 % $'000

r % Tr

Change in the relevant equity price risk B R (B R B & 516

variable: 2%
Financial assets at fair value through A FEABR 2

profit or loss: ERHEE:
Increase #0 10
Decrease W (10)

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk in
relation to collaterals held for cash clients and margin
clients. Detailed analysis of the fair value of collaterals
held is set out in note 17.

5,158 10 6,601
(5,158) (10) (6,601)

AEETHHERARREEFL TR
EFFAMNERRORERR -
R R TES A DT E R
FE17 ©
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

®

Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

° Level 3 valuation: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a finance team performing
daily valuations for the financial instruments.
The team reports directly to the chief financial
officer.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

A REERAFEESE)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued) & 2FEFESE)
() Financial assets measured at fair value () EBELATFETENEMEEE)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) REEERE)

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2023 categorised into

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2024 categorised into

RZBZMEZA=1-AK RZE-=F=A=+-Hf
AYEHESEA NEEHENER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level
£-% £ £=8 £- £28 E=f
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r r r r T I

(ii)

222

Recurring fair value measurements ~ EF AT EH E
Asses: BE:
Financial assets at far value through A FE AR 2
profit or loss SREAE
— Listed securities - [TE% 51,578 - 66,012 - -
~ Accounts receivable - BUER - 5171532 - 5847193 1,252

There were no other transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level
3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of fully collateralised accounts
receivables from cash clients, margin clients
and subscription in new shares in IPO is
determined by the fair value of collaterals,
capped by the principal amount and accrued
interest, without discounting.

(ii)

F-ERE_BzMRLMBEL
EMEE KBA S EHES
ZEAREZBRIINEL
BREIOEHRERRFES
RRBEMRPN 2HEONEE -

FE_EBLFESEMAMGE
FER@AE
2HEBERMIKEREER
HFREFPARABERLHEE
IRz BWERR 2 RFETHZ
BRmzAFEEE  ERANX
THEREFME S FTRR -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIKREREEBERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued) ) DFEEFEE)
(iii)y Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) WIHEAAFEIENEMEE
carried at other than fair value keaBEzr¥E
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial AEERKAIENESRIA
instruments carried at cost are not materially ZHERMEEER T -_NF=
different from their fair values as at 31 March AZ+—BR-_ZE-_=ZF=A
2024 and 31 March 2023. =S+—BZAFEITEERE
®o
(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g EHEtMEERSRES
liabilities
() Financial assets subject to offsetting, (i) ZIEE BIFEIELHDS
enforceable master netting arrangements or HUMBEARZERMEE

similar agreements

As 31 March 2024
RZZ-BE=R=1-H
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial assets
liabilities ~ presented
Gross offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset

amount of consolidated consolidated in the consolidated statement

recognised  statement  statement of financial position

financial ~ of financial ~ of financial ~ Collateral Financial

Type of financial assets assets position position received instruments  Net amount

R&&

BHRRR &4
E#e MERREZ  LERGRMEMRK
BRERER CEISR 252eR i pal k3

SRHEEES BEAE  BEAE  EEFE chERR S$RIE B
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
I Iz Iz T I I

1 e
Accounts receivable due from EREEH R

clearing houses 1,342,201 (1,131,848) 210,353 - (129,411) 80,942
Accounts receivable due EUREZER
from clients 6,221,947 (1,044,138) 5,177,809 (5,177,495) - 314

7,564,148  (2,175,986) 5,388,162  (5,177,495) (129,411) 81,256
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIRERBEERAFE®RE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g BEHEREEREMAEEHE)
liabilities (Continued)
() Financial assets subject to offsetting, () ZEE LFEIIREEDH
enforceable master netting arrangements or BB RzeMEEE)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2023
RZE-=F=F=1-H
Gross
amountof  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross  offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset
amount of  consolidated  consolidated in the consolidated statement
recognised statement statement of financial position
financial of financial of financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial assets assets position position received  instruments  Net amount
nEs

BHERRR A
Bz HBHRE  LERGAMEMNK
ERZcE CEDQER  2l.ER BERBLE

SHEEER BEpm  ABEE  GESRE CUHEBR 2RI 28
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T r r r T T

L
Accounts receivable due from  EWEERZER

clearing houses 2074846 (1828377 246,469 - (1288 245,181

Accounts receivable due ERERZER
from clents 730709 (1473338 5847301 (847,119 - om
035575 B3017IS 609380 (5847119 (1288) 245453
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIKREREEBERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g E#HsmEEREREE#E)
liabilities (Continued)
(i)  Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) ZWE BFEIEZTHSR
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUBEARzemEE

similar agreements

As 31 March 2024
RZE-ME=R=1-A
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial liabilities
assets offset  presented
Gross in the inthe Related amounts not offset in
amount of consolidated consolidated the consolidated statement of
recognised statement of statement of financial position
financial financial financial  Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position pledged instruments  Net amount
waa

HERRE R&4
B¥z BEARE  LERGAHEMRE
BERER CEISE 2h24eR it pA ] A
SRERES ERIE  EESE  AEFE CRERR  SRIZ FE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T n I Iz

Accounts payable due to EREEHZER

clearing houses 1,261,259  (1,131,848) 129,411 (129,411) - -
Accounts payable due EREPZER

to clients 1,390,644 (1,044,138) 346,506 - - 346,506

2,651,903 (2,175,986) 475917 (129,411) - 346,506
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIRERBEERAFE®RE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g) HEETREERERMEBEE)
liabilities (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) SHEYE LFEIIRHES
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUWBREARzemBE (&)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2023
RZE-=F=F=1-H
Gross
amountof  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial liabilities
assets offset presented
Gross in the inthe  Related amounts not offset in
amountof  consolidated  consolidated  the consolidated statement of
recognised  statement of  statement of financial position
financial financial financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position pledged  instruments  Net amount

BHERRR A
Bz  HBHRE  LERGAMEMNK
ERdcE CEDQER 2.2 BEIRBLE

SREEER BfRE  AEEE  BEFE EMEER $BIZ 58
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r r r r r r
1 A
Accounts payable due to EREEHZER
clearing houses 1,829,666  (1,828,377) 1,288 (1,288) - -
Accounts payable due EREPZER
to clients 2,065,401 (1,473,338) 582,063 - - 582,063
3,885,066 (3,301,715) 583,351 (1,288) - 582,063
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 29 BIKREREEBERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g E#HsmEEREREE#E)
liabilities (Continued)

(iii) The tables below reconcile the “net amounts (i) TRAGEHBERIERET
of financial assets and financial liabilities ZeMEERESREBEZFE]
presented in the consolidated statement of (an £ XX prah) B 4 & B 3 AR R
financial position”, as set out above, to the REVEWERARREMSERR
accounts receivable and accounts payable ZH R

presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=%F
$’000 $'000

i FT

1
Net amount of financial assets after %0 F il i $4 18 © &l & &

offsetting as stated above FEE 5,388,162 6,093,860
Financial assets not in scope of WHEEFEHRE
offsetting disclosure THEE 963,577 879,864
Loss allowance &5 18 Bt (2,053) (2,011)
6,349,686 6,971,713
Net amount of financial liabilities mEMEEZEERAE
after offsetting as stated above F R 475,917 583,351
Financial liabilities not in scope of ~ W IFIXEIWEHE >~
offsetting disclosure THAE 1,226,631 880,764
1,702,548 1,464,115
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30

31

228

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company in respect of banking facilities
granted by authorised institutions to its subsidiaries
engaging in securities and futures broking amounted
to $15,983,000,000 (2023: $16,494,000,000). As at 31
March 2024, the subsidiaries of the Company have utilised
$2,965,000,000 of these aggregate banking facility (2023:
$3,579,000,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors did
not consider that any claim would be made against the
Group under any of the guarantees. The Group has
not recognised any deferred income in respect of the
guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and the transaction price was nil.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(@) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 10 and certain of the

30

31

ZAREE

RMEBR  ARBIRNEEFRPEL
LEBZHBARBRURBEIG ZRT
B & 2 £15,983,000,0007C (- B — =4 :
16,494,000,00070) 2 ARl FER - RZZF
“HEZAZ=Z+—B AR ZHEAT
EEAZEFRITRIE 8% 2 2,965,000,000
7T (ZZ = =% :3,579,000,0007T) °

RBERR  EERARETERY A%
MR EASRROBETA - ARERZ
ATFETRARIERZHBAT B4
5 B RS AR REMELIN -

EXBEALRS

RSB REMEORECHEALER
S REBAIBETIERBEALRS °

(@ FTEEEASHMH
AEETEEBEARZHM (BN

10T B R ARRE SR LM 11
BEAETESFHEEI Nz

highest paid employees as disclosed in note 11, is as BT :
follows:
2024 2023
—E-MF —F-=
$’000 $°000
F T
1
Directors’ fees EENWE 984 711
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & - 28 & B 9 4& 7 23,599 20,975
Discretionary bonuses B 15 15 4T 11,088 7,942
Contributions to Mandatory BHEAEEHE
Provident Fund 54 57
35,725 29,685

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 8(b)).

o Et ATE T AR K &
8(b)) °
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXBEALIXRF @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with b ESERHEEEZEEEEENER
directors
YipMow Lumand  Hui Yik Bun and Chan Wing Shing, Szeto Wai Sun and
his connected his connected Wilson and his his connected Ling Kwok Fai and his
Name of borrower entities entities connected entities  Yu Yun Kong entities connected entities
ERKR FEER RA#HR AfEFR EEER
EHALH HpEER HpEER HBEER KO8 HBEER HBEER

' ey
Relationship with the Company  Director of the Company Director of the Company Director of the Company Director of the Company Director of the Company Director of the Company

and entities connected  and entities connected  and entities connected and entities connected  and entities connected
to director to director to director to director to director
ERRAZBE FAREERESEE ALUEEREEE  KQAEEREEE  ALQEE AAAEEREES ALNRMESRAES
EREER EREER RBEER RBEER RREER
Terms of the loan
ERET
— Terms of the loan Repayable on demand  Repayable on demand  Repayable on demand  Repayable on demand  Repayable on demand ~ Repayable on demand
- ERBRERER RRETRE BRETRE BEETRE BEETRR BEETRR AEETER
— Facilties granted
- ERRE
— IPO loan 4,000,000,000 100,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
- BRDREEER
— Margin loan 1,000,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
- FRER
— Interest rate
- i
— IPO loan - - - - - -
- ERDREEER
— Margin loan HIBOR plus 1.5% per ~ HIBOR plus 4% per ~ Hong Kong Dollar HIBOR plus 4% per ~ HIBOR plus 4% per ~ HIBOR plus 4% per
annum - Hong Kong ~ annum -Hong Kong ~ Prime Rate plus annum annum annum - Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate Dollar 5% per annum Dollar
plus 5% per annum ~ Prime Rate plus Prime Rate plus
5% per annum 5% per annum
- FRER ERRAAXRE  BRRORERE  EnREENE BERORZRE  BEROAERE  FRARARXAR
M.EREHE - T4REH = - MoEH = JILTE Man% 7 = T4pEH = -
AREENE AREENE ETREENE
Mo EH % Moo M % JIRTESTES
— Security Marketable securities  Marketable securifies  Marketable securities — Marketable securities — Marketable securities  Marketable securities
- &5 REES BEES BEES BEES BEES BEES
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 3 EXBEAETRSZ &)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with (b) EERHEEEZFHREEENER
directors (Continued) (#&)
YipMow Lumand  Hui Yik Bun and Chan Wing Shing, Szeto Wai Sun and
his connected his connected Wilson and his his connected Ling Kwok Fai and his
Name of borrower entities entities connected entities  Yu Yun Kong entities connected entities
ERAR FEER RX#HR AR REER
EHALHE HpEER HpERR HpERR e HpEERR HpEER

' ! [ ]
Balance of the loan
LR
— At 1 April 2002
- RZE-C#WA-R
- IPO loan - - - - - -

- BRARRBEER

- Margin loan 313,609,000 8,505,000 - 47,000 - -

- fRER

— At 31 March 2023 and
1 April 2023
- RZFZ=E
ZA=t-Rk
“EZERA-R
- IPO loan - - - - - -
- BRARREER
— Margin loan 253,215,000 1,989,000 - - - -
- FRER

— At 31 March 2024
- MZBZME=A=1-A

— PO loan - - - - - -
- BRRRREER
— Margin loan 232,644,000 7,000 - - - -
- FEEX

Maximum balance outstanding

KEESRER

- During 2024
\_E_ME
— PO loan 50,000 551,000 50,000 - - -
- ERDREEER
— Margin loan 322,588,000 - 50,000 144,000
- FRER

- During 2023
N 3
— PO loan 100,000 50,000 50,000 - - -
- ERDREEER
— Margin loan 389,986,000 9,374,000 - 81,000 449,000 -
- FEEX
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31

BIESETHEERRAR | —FT_=/

CAETTEIR)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©)

Balances with related parties

(i)

(if)

(iil)

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had accounts
receivable from related parties of $232,651,000
(2023: $255,204,000) and accounts payable
due to related parties of $19,611,000 (2023:
$54,903,000) respectively which was arising
from the Group’s ordinary course of business
in securities broking, margin financing and
commodities and futures broking. Accounts
receivable/payable from/to related parties are
set at the same terms as those normally offered
to third party clients.

As at 31 March 2024, included in the other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were
rental and office management deposits of
$12,677,000 (2023: $12,645,000) which had
been made to related companies owned by Mr.
Yip. These amounts were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable upon expiry of the respective
leases.

As at 31 March 2024, right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities arising from the lease
arrangements with related companies owned
by Mr. Yip were amounted to $87,606,000 and
$87,771,000 (2023: $46,529,000 of right-of-use
assets and $46,768,000 of lease liabilities). For
the year ended 31 March 2024, the depreciation
of the right-of-use assets and the interest
expense of the lease liabilities were amounted to
$45,620,000 and $1,487,000 respectively (2023:
$46,529,000 and $1,168,000 respectively).

MOEFH,

31

EXBAEAELIXRZ®)

(0 EBEEALTZHER

(i)

(if)

(ii)

RZE_WFE=A=+—8 "
AEBERBEALTZERS
232,651,00070 (= & = = % :
2552040007%)&&1#?%%&@/\
TZRE 7%1961100075(
— =4 :54,903,0007T) ° J
X§$$E%‘¥i‘%¢ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
ZEHERL  TRBEARSE
MEHELLER - BIRERE
/\irzﬁE RS EEALY
ERE—RIEETFE=ZFARF
HIEFKHMER -

R-ZZE-_WMF=A=+—8 -

b & Y2 51 1E - &é&ﬁﬁm
#ﬁm6ﬁownm_7_5¢:
12,645,0007T) B 7 [ 2 5 4 A
BAEZEB L RN ZzZHE R
RAEEEZRD  LERES
EEF R R B WS E R
HEmEEE

RZE—_m&EF=A=+—H" ' A
HMELEFER 2 BB A2
MEZHmMEEZFTRBEEE
M & B ES R 587,606, 0007c
587,771,000 (ZE = =% :
Rl & {8 A #E B EE46,529, 0007_1
N 78 & & 1546,768,0007T) ° &
EZE-NMF=ZA=+—HIEF
E - FRAEEENTERHEES
&R B 95 445,620, 00075
}1,487,000C(Z T = =4 :
R A46,529,0007C &1,168,000
JT) °
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©

(d)

232

Balances with related parties (Continued)

(iv)

On 9 July 2018, the Company entered into
a loan facility letter with World Mix Limited
(“WML”), a company which is 100% beneficially
owned by Mr. Yip, for the provision of
$1,000,000,000 revolving loan facility from WML
to the Company for the Company’s general
working capital purpose. The loan bore interest
at HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum, is unsecured
and repayable on demand. No interest expense
was incurred during the year (2023: $Nil). As at
31 March 2024, no drawing was made (2023:
$Nil) under the facility.

On 9 July 2018, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a loan facility letter with China
Finance (Worldwide) Limited (“CFW”), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned
by Mr. Yip, for the provision of a revolving loan
facility of $1,000,000,000 by CFW to BSSI for
BSSI's general working capital purposes. The
loan bore interest at HIBOR plus 2.75% per
annum, is unsecured and repayable on demand.
No interest expense was incurred during the
year (2023: $Nil). As at 31 March 2024, no
drawing was made (2023: $Nil) under the
facility.

Other transactions with related parties

Brokerage income of $557,000 (2023: $797,000) and
interest income of $14,361,000 (2023: $10,957,000)
was received from the directors of the Company,
their close family members and related companies
owned by a director of the Company in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business of securities broking,
commodities and futures broking and margin and IPO
financings. Commission rates are set at the same
level as those normally offered to third party clients.

31 EXBEANEIRZ &)

(©)

d)

BREBEALZERE)

ivy RZZE—NFLANH  KTRAF
HittmERAR (4] Ex
A2 BEEHBZ AR
MEFRMEHE AR FEH
BRARFRIREBRESRME
1,000,000,0007C A {E A A Al 2
—REEEL BREEAR
77 R 2 37 B n2.75% F ) R &t
B BEMERALREREE -
FRATEEAFNERAI(CCZE
Z=FF) c RZEZWE=
A=+—8 #BEREZERE
ROEMREBEBCZEZ=ZF: %
TT) °

RZE-—N\FEANE BF
BEHEBBREB BRAA(R
THEE] ARBZEEE2ER
BB % (BEER)ER
ARI(FEBE] EXxE2E
EnEAEZ AR —MER
BEERY NAEBETREGH
MBS EHFRERRENRE
1,000,000,0007C * LA4E 8 A &
FRE—REBEES - BEL
BEBRITRAZERE IN2.75% F
FEFBE AEEBERARE
KEE - TR EEEF BHFH
S(ZEZ=F:ZFx) - N=F
“HFE=ZA=1+—H HMER
BZEBRERRNEMKEAE(ZE
T=FE T e

HEEALZHMAERS

&40 W AB57,000T(ZF = =4
797,0007T) & #) B Uk A14,361,0007T
— T~ =4 :10,957,0007T) Jh N &=
BEHEERFETESLL Bk
BHEKLURFEREAARAEE
MEEBMEAARRES FEZR
NRERERARR —ZEEHERFZ
BB A EIE o AR BIZE— W
F=FEPIEME ZBRKFEHET
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32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32
FINANCIAL POSITION

DNEEE 2 M BRR K

At 31 March 2024 R=ZE-mNF=HA=+—8H

BARFETMEEERAF | T =/ —_MFFH

2024 2023
—EC-NE —E-=F
Note $’°000 $’000
B 5 T Tt
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R ERAR ZIEE 19,887 19,887
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIEE B 1 1
Total non-current asset  : FrmeEERE 19888 19888
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ NI 1,547,800 2,365,073
Other receivables, deposits and HEthpEhgmE  Eaek
prepayments TEF 3R - 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 15,500 12,797
Total current assets REBEEHAE 1,563,300 2,382,870
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables b BT FRIA 843 415
Amounts due to subsidiaries N ENG e 51,022 181,040
Bank loans BITENR 600,000 944,000
Current taxation B HA F4 18 1,286 1,970
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 653,151 1,127,425
Net current assets REBEEFE 910,149 1,255,445
NET ASSETS EEFHE 930,037 1,275,333
EQUITY EE
Share capital % Z< 27 509,189 509,189
Share premium B (B 27 388,020 738,020
Retained profits R = T 27 32,828 28,124
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 930,037 1,275,333

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 24 June 2024.

Yip Mow Lum
EEM

Directors

5%

REZFGN_FT_NFA-_THA#E

I A T B o

Hui Yik Bun

233



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 SRR B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(= EEAI -

33

34

234

LA TR )

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company as at 31 March 2024 to
be New Charming Holdings Limited which was incorporated
on 6 July 2009 in the British Virgin Islands under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands and beneficially owned by Mr
Yip Mow Lum. New Charming Holdings Limited does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2024

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2024 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

— Amendments to HKAS 1, “Presentation of financial
statements. Classification of liabilities as current or
non-current (“2020 amendments”)” !

— Amendments to HKAS 1, “Presentation of financial
statements: Non-current liabilities with covenants
(2022 amendments”)” 1

— Amendments to HKFRS 16, “Leases:. Lease liability in
sale and leaseback” '
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2024 (Continued)

— Amendments to HKAS 7, “Statement of cash flows”
and HKFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
Supplier finance arrangements” '

— Amendments to HKAS 21, “The effects of changes in
foreign exchange rates: Lack of exchangeability” ?

1 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2024

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2025

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Five-year Financial Summary
IFMBERE

Year ended 31 March

BZE-A=t+-ALEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Results - “EME —ZE-=F Z%-C B —2C%F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TAT TET TAT
S S

Revenue YA 846,218 881,733 1,068,012 1,285,201 864,017
Profit before taxation BB AR A 605,048 692,195 656,214 817,188 528,911
Income tax e (46,206) (71,600) (94,712) (113,283) (57,933)
Profit for the year FRE 558,842 620,595 561,502 703,905 470,978
Other comprehensive income EzmEka (333) 285 (157) (293) 233
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ER 2 E W & AE 558,509 620,880 561,345 703,612 471,211

As at 31 March
R=ZBA=+-H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Assets and Liabilities BERER ZE-pE —T-=f ZT-Zf Z--F CZZ-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T FiEw TEL T FiET
[ ! | [ [ | |

Current assets MEEE 6,886,049 7,589,335 9,541,311 15,663,569 6,198,745
Non-current assets ERBEE 192,407 140,035 227,203 194,818 260,390
Total assets BELE 7,078,456 7,729,370 0,768,514 15,858,387 6,459,135
Current liabilities nEEE 5,577,431 5,985,803 7245045 13,719,716 4,490,487
Non-current liabilities EneasE 56,750 9,153 52,098 7,996 66,342
Total liabilities BERE 5,634,181 5,994,956 7,297,143 13,727,712 4,556,829
Net assets BEFE 1,444,275 1,734,414 2,471,371 2,130,675 1,902,306
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